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Financialand operational highlights

Revenue Gross margin
$487 million !

+92% 46.9%

Diluted EPS
$0.62 ser share

+29%

‘Operating cashflow
$95 millicn

+183

Operating profit

STiZmiition

+91%

Operating margin

23%




CSRataglance -

CSRisthe marketleaderinsingle chip wireless
solutions using the 2.4GHz Bluetooth personal ares
network standard, designed to support data and veice
communications between a wide range of products
overshortrange radio links.
- [n2005, CSR's market share of units shipped
increased to over 50% from £5% in 2004 as the Bluetooth
market more than doubledto shipments of 317 million
units comparedto 142 millien units in 2004.

During 2005, CSR significantly expanded its
operations and completed the acquisitions of Clarity
Technologies Inc, and the software business of
UbiNetics, both of which have significantly enhanced
the Company's existing products and capabilities.

Clobal operations

Sweden Lund W
«=
]

Denmark Aalborg e ‘ [N
US Detroit ﬁ ©

US Dallas ( i

UK Cambridge ‘\in\——o\r\

France Sophia Antipolis \\,\ / Y
Korea Seoul \}\/[\ S
Japan Tokyo L
Taiwan Taipei

China Shenzhen L

india Bangalore - : \

Total number of employees 688
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Chairman'’s statement

During the pastyear, significantvalue
creation has been achieved by your
company, earnings pershare reseirom
$0.6810 $0.62 and market eapitalisation
passed the billion peund mark.

4 Changing the way the world connects

2005 has proved ye‘t another remarkable year
for CSR. Our sales grew impressively by 92% to
$486.5 million, earnings per share rose from $0.48
t0 $0.62, and our market capitalisation passed the
billion pound mark. .
Suchresults do not come easily; they have
been won by excellent product and application
knowledge, good organisation and systems (ERP
is now implemented across most of the company)
and hard work by our staff and partners alike -
combined, of course, with good executive leadership.
Many events occur throughout a year which can
disrupt progress. Last year we had a major challenge;
afire at an assembly plant belonging to our production
partner ASE. CSR and ASE staff worked highly
effectively to achieve an astonishingly quick recovery —
for which | congratulate them. 2005 also stands out

for positive challenges, notably CSR’s first acguisitions.

Clarity Technologies, Inc. was acquired in March and
this was followed by.the acquisition of the software
business of UbiNetics in August. Clarity Technologies
provides innovative software to filter out background
noise and improve the quality of audic reception.

* Thetechnology has been integrated extremely quickly

into cur product offering and was available to

customers before year end. UbiNetics complements
CSR's skill base with extensive wireless software
know-how. Among its assets is a substantial technical
development centre in India, giving us access to

highly cost effective skills and rescurces for our future

technology and product development.

As aresult ofthis corporate development and
our own organic growth, CSR has evolved into a
substantial company with almost 700 staff, and 11
locations across the world.

There have been a number of changes to the
Board in the past year. John Hodgson —who has
led CSR for the last six years —indicated his wish to
retire and rejoin his family in the USA. John Scarisbrick,
who joined your Board in 2004 and had served as a
non-executive director, takes over from 1 March
20086. John, having been a Senior Vice President of
Texas Instruments Inc responsible for TI's $5 billion
DSP (digital signal processor) and Wireless businesses,
in addition tc other senior roles in the industry, brings
a profound knowledge of semiconductor business
development. He will have a significant impact on
your company'’s future progress and | look forward
to working with him.




Mike Shone, chairman of CSR up to the IPO and
subsequently a non-executive director, retired from
the Board as agreed in March 2005. In July 20085,
we brought the non-executive element of your
Board back up to strength with the appointment of
Anthony Carliste, who has spent his career in
marketing and communications and who has an

extensive knowledge of the mobile telephony market.

Progress towards good corporate governance
has also been made by your Board.

Because of my personal experience with
public companies, | became chairman of the
Remuneration Committee at the time of the IPO,
as a practical measure. | have now relinquished
this role in favour of cne of our independent non-
executive directors, Ron Mackintosh. We have
alsc undertaken our first Board Effectiveness review
which shows that the Board has matured rapidly
and is working together effectively.

During the past year significant value creation
has been achieved by your company. This is a
conseguence hot only of our own actions, but also
those of our manufacturing partners, our suppliers
and our energetic customers who develop the

application markets so effectively. To all these
stakeholders, our thanks for their patronage, support
and initiative.

And finally, | must express the Board's deep
appreciation to all our staff, be they in Cambridge,
Asia, Europs, or the USA who respond so well to
the dynamics of the business with such dedication.
In particular, | must single out John Hodgson who
retired in February 2006, He has done so much for
CSR over the last six years that it is hard to do it justice
in a few words. His energy, enthusiasm, diligence -
and above all leadership skills - deserve the greatest
praise. Thank you John, and enjoy the future.

AR Mo

John Whybrow
Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’s review

2005 was another strong yearfor CSR...
with our pre-tax profits nearly doubling.
Thecombinationofa fast growing Blueteoth
marketandourcontinued leadership in

designwins, make us confident forthe
outlook for 2000 as @ whole.

6 Changing the way the world connects

2005 was another strong year for CSR with our
revenue of $486.5 million dollars representing an
increase of over 90% compared with 2004 as we
shipped (directly and under manufacturing licence)
over 150 million single chip Bluetcoth devices.

Our pre-tax profits néarly doubled to $114.4 million
dollars and at year end the share price closed at
more than four and a half times the I1PO price of 200p.
In early 2006 we entered the list of the top 200
companies on the London Stock Exchange.
Highlights of the year included;

e continued strong growth of the Bluetooth market
with the first products for the consumer segment
such as stereo headsets being offered on the market
and the adoption of cellular products by consumers
inthe USA. ‘

¢ growth in CSR’s share of the Bluetooth market
from 45% to over 50% and the release of
BlueCoreb, our fifth generation Blustooth solution.

* successful completion of the design of our UniFi
solution for the embedded Wi-Fi market.

¢ the successful acquisition and integration of Clarity
Technologies, Inc. providing noise and echo
suppression technology with ‘Clear Voice Capture’
software and establishing CSR Detroit as an audio
engineering centre.

¢ the acquisition and integration of UbiNetics’
software business which will play a key role in
securing Bluetooth and UniFi design wins in mobile
phones and enabling the convergence of fixed
and mobile services.

* aggressive cost reduction programs allowing us
to maintain our gross margins as we continued
to drive down the cost of Bluetooth solutions to
enable further adoption of the technology in our
customer’s products.

¢ building our organisation tc aimost 700 people
in 11 locations worldwide.

Leading in Bluetooth designs

CSR continues to lead the Bluetcoth market.

Over the lifetime of the Bluetooth standard, we have
secured more than 60% of the total recorded design
wins. We maintained that level in 2005 with a
particularly strong performance in GSM (global
system for mobile communications) handsets.

We continued to secure more design wins than all
our competitors combined, not just overall but in
every application sector. At year end, CSR had won
70% of the designs for the new v2.0 specification
with EDR (Enhanced Data Rate) with our fourth
generation BlueCore4 product family. This design
performance enabled CSR to achieve unit market
share of over 50% of all Bluetooth devices shipped




inthe year, a significant increase on the 45% unit
share achieved during 2004.

An expanding Bluetooth market

We believe the Bluetooth market is still early in

its growth phase. Major customers using our
products are Undertaking significant consumer
marketing programmes around the world, including
television advertising.

Mobile phones and headsets are currently the
largest markets for Bluetooth, and at the end of 2005
we believe that only about 25% of all mobile phones
shipped were Bluetooth enabled. We see this attach
rate increasing. For example a leading European
specialist mobile phone chain now offers Bluetooth
in 80% of their models, and major retail chainsinthe .
USA and Europe are increasingly offering their own
branded low cost Bluetooth headsets. We expect
the rate at which Bluetooth is adopted into mobile
phones to increase to around 35% at the end of 2006,
significantly increasing the volume demand
in 2006 and continuing to grow beyond there.

The use ofiBluetooth in PCs has lagged that in
mobile phones but emerging use of the technology
in wireless stereo headphones is now increasing the
attach rates with applications for music streaming,

gaming playing, and VolP (Moice over Internet
Protocol) phone calls. CSR's strengths in EDR
technology provides a further stimulus to both the
PC and consumer Bluetooth market segments.
Bluetooth for automobiles is a market that continues
to develop for both OEM and aftermarket products as
legislation requiring ‘hands on’ driving continues to
spread around the world. Volume vehicle
manufacturers are now following the lead of prestige
brands in embedding Bluetooth capability into the
dashboard with a number of product qualifications
inthe vear.

The evolution of the Bluetooth specification is also
opening up the consumer market segment. Bluetooth
specification additions such as the AV (audio visual)
Profile and EDR enable new applications such as
streaming sterec audio over a Bluetooth link. Multi-
function sterec headphones became available in
2005 which can stream music from MP3 players and
FM radio receivers and pause the music to take calls
from a mobile phone on the stereo headset. Stereo
headsets can be used with PCs, mobile phones and
other portable devices such as MP3 players. Wireless
conscles and controllers were announced in 2005 by
the leading manufacturers of gaming products.

C8R ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2005 7
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Acquisitions
During the year our resources were strengthened
with two acquisitions and we are delighted with the
progress made in integrating our organisations.

In March 2005, we acquired Clarity Technologies
based in Detroit, USA. Its leading technology for
noise and echo suppression in wireless headsets
and automotive ‘handsfree’ systems is marketed
as CVC (Clear Voice Capture) and has already been
incorporated into CSR's BlueCore devices in products
sold by a number of our major customers.

In August 2005, fhe acquisition of the Cambridge
headquartered software business of UbiNetics was
completed. UbiNstics provides CSR with a strong
R&D team who developed an industry leading
multi-mode wireless communications software.

This adds significant capability to enable us to
design our BlueCore and UniFi devices into mobile
phones and to independently develop software for
FMC (Fixed and Mobile Convergence).

Automotive applications benefit
fr‘om CSR's CVC technology through
the suppression of noise and echo,
giving improved sound quality

Lowering cost, improving performance
Afundamental belief at CSR is that we must
continuously drive down the cost of the solutions we
offer and increase their performance, thereby both
encouraging further adoption of the technology and
maintaining our competitive position. Beyond the
traditional cost reduction activities focusing on silicon,
package and test, we offer continuously higher levels
of integration to reduce the bill of materials of the end
application and provide increased functionality.

Our successful BlueCore3-MM (muiti-media)
device for stereo headphones, for example, provides
added value by integrating onto the device a CSR
developed DSP (digital signal processor), a stereo
Hi-Fi quality CODEC (coder-decoder) and battery
charging and power management functions. These
reduce the physical size, power requirements and
cost of the solution.
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Total shipments into the Bluetooth Market

Millions of units

‘source IMS
*CSRestimate

Wi-Fiand Bluetooth brings new

connectivity solutions to mobile devices

.
"

CSR continues to dominate both stereo
and mono headset qualified design wins

Our headset solutions also offer a licence for
our added-value CVC software from CSR Detroit
that suppresses echo and neise for much improved
audio quality. CVCis being used on a broad range
of headset and autometive products which our
customers are developing.

CSR's fifth generation Bluetooth solution,
BlueCoreb, was announced in 2005 and will be
available for design in and production this year.
Inctuded in the family of devices is BlueCore5-MM
offering an improved DSP, lower power requirements
and reduced cost of the bill of materials. CVC software
is available with the device for next generation designs.

In 2006 CSR intends to build on the very strong
base we have in Blustooth and broaden our market
position with our UniFi device which we announced
at the end of 2004. The highly integrated UniFi device
is the first single chip Wi-Fi product for the embedded
marketplace. Two on-chip radios enable it to meet
the |[EEE 802.11 a/b/g specifications. UniFi solutions
are now being offered by our partners as completed
madules. At the Consumer Electronics Show in

// CSR pic Annual Report and Financial Statements 20059
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Chief Executive
Officer’s review
continued

Las Vegas in the first week of 2008, the first product
was shown using CSR's reference design with UniFi
and BlueCcre4 on a single circuit board. We are the
firstto be able to proyide the silicon for this combined
solution solving the co-existence issues for

our customers. ‘

The number of broadcast radics and the
complexity of connectivity within the modern mobile
phone are increasing. This makes it increasingly
difficult for equipment manufacturers to make new,
very small form factor designs. Connectivity has now
expanded from Bluetooth to include Wi-Fi and will
add UWB (ultra wideband) in the future. GPS (global
positioning systems) is established today and new
broadcast receivers such as FM radio and Digital TV
broadcast will be added in the next few years.

This trend has led to the emergence of ‘non-cellular
wireless’ as an increasing value centre in personal
portable devices. Integration of more than one
‘non-celiular wireless' technology onto one IC is the
best way of meeting our customers’ time-to-market
and size requirements. CSR's proven competence
in wireless systems integration positions us well to
exploit this opportunity.

Our research and development organisation
expanded further in 2005 and in particular our
software resources grew significantly with the
acquisitions of Clarity Technologies and UbiNetics
in addition to organic growth as we expanded existing
teams. The investment in R&D more than doubled
year onyear and we expect it to continue to increase.
In addition to the UniFi product line, announcements
have been made on the integration of an FM radio
receiver into the BlueCore5 family and the planned
development of a UWB radio to meet the Bluetooth
SIG (special interest group) Seattle specification.
Other standards are being considered and worked on.

As afabless supplier of semiconductor chips
we rely on our manufacturing partners and enjoy
close relationships with two industry leaders; TSMC
for wafer fabrication and ASE for assembly and test.
On 1 May 2005 a major fire at ASE’s Chung Li facility
disrupted production but the effects on our customers
were minimised with close co-operation throughout
the supply chain. The incident underlined the value of
the ongoing detailed review of our supply chain being
undertaken in order to improve our delivery capability
and further reduce risk. Our devices are now
produced at three separate wafer faps in Taiwan with
one more being added in Taiwan in the second half of
2006 and afifth currently being brought on line in the
USA. Assembly and test has been expanded from
two sites in Talwan, with the addition of a further facility
in South Korea and two others planned for later in the




year of which one will be in China. This in a year when
we increased unit shipments to more than 150 million
which was maore than double the prior year; whilst
maintaining high quality levels and further driving unit
costs down. .

At the close of 2005, the headcount at CSR had
doubled from the beginning of the year and we now
occupy 12 sitesin 11 different locations worldwide.
During the year new design centres were opened in
Lund, Sweden and Sophia Antipolis, France. The
acquisitions of Clarity Technologies and UbiNetics
added Detroit USA, Shenzhen China, and Bangalore
India. Approximately 70% of our staff have technical
gualifications and over 60% are in R&D.

We believe that 2006 will be ancther year of
strong growth and CSR is well positioned to expand
from the current business base to exploit both existing
and smerging wireless communications markets.

We expect the Blustooth market to continue
growing strongly in 2006 and estimate the year on
year growth in-unit shipmenits to be around 60%.
Whilst the market is highly competitive, CSR’s share
of design winsiremains strong. We will continue to
drive down the average selling price of our products
by between 15 and 20% in 2006 with the units
shipped under manufacturing licence diminishing.

The combination of a fast growing Bluetooth
market, our continued leadership in design wins
and our knowledge of our customers’ development
programmes, make us confident for the outlook for
2006 as awhole.

As previously announced, | retired at the end
of February. My successor John Scarisbrick, has
been closely involved with CSR and its business
strategy since June 2004 when he joined the Board
as a non-executive director. He brings a wealth of
successful semiconductor experience both developing
new product lines and running very large worldwide
businesses. | believe  am indeed very fortunate to
have him take over the significant responsibility of
further developing CSR.

It has been an exhilarating experience and privilege
to manage such a vibrant company as CSR and | would
like to thank our employees and customers, suppliers
and investors for their support over the last six years.
| wish the Board and all CSR stakeholders the best of
fortune in the exciting years ahead. Thank you.

ﬁ&%\k N

John Hodgson
Chief Executive Officer




CSR's markets and opportunities

CSR’s business is expanding rapidly from its roots

in Bluetooth. Ourvision is based on our core strengths
of developing software-rich system-on-chip wireless
modem solutions combining analogue and logic
circuits on the same chip. Our technology targets
personalorlocalareaelementsoftheevolving
wireless network, particularly those applications that
needto operate in power-sensitive environments.

CSR s now sampling the fifth generation of our
BlueCore single-chip solutionfor Bluetooth applications.
Five generations of improved performance, tripling
the data rate supported and: providing lower power
- and lower cost variants. We have entered anew
market with a single-chip solution for Wi-Fi
(802.11 a/b/g) applications, called UniFi. Last year,
“we announced our support for integrating UWB
{ultra wideband) technology with the Bluetooth
specification, and acquired Clarity Technologies
and UbiNetics. Here, we lock at where our evolving
capability is taking us.

——
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CER’s markets and opportunities continued

Bluetooth —from cable replacement
to personal area network

14 Changing the way the world connects

As the global leader in the Bluetcoth segment

of the wireless communications market, we
continuously invest in product development.
CSR's silicon solutions integrate circuits often left

off the chip. These solutions include providing
complex battery management and power supply
management circuits which prolong battery life and
lower customer manufacturing costs. Our solutions
also integrate the memory on the same chip which
lowers costs for our customers and allows them

to build the smallest possible Bluetooth devices.
This enables them to create innovative, appealing,
product designs.

.We have created Bluetocth solutions with
advanced functionality, even offering variants with
an advanced Kalimba Digital Signal Processor.
Kalimba technology'means DSP software can be

added to the chip for superior voice and music quality.

CSRis the only company to provide such advanced
features, which are critical to our headset customers.

But we go much further than just supplying
the silicon chip. We create system solutions for
Bluetooth applications. This takes two forms. Firstis
vital software support and integrated components
that reduce the cost and effort required to build
products. This makes CSR chips fast and easy for

- our customers to use. Secondly we develop unigue

solutions for specific application areas like mobile
phones, headsets and automotive handsfree kits.
Our Clear Voice Capture technology running on the
Kalimba DSP in the Bluetooth chip is an example,
providing superior audio quality in demanding
environments. In a mobile phone application, it can
run on the phone’s processcr, providing flexibility
for our customers to tailor their solution.

As the adoption of Bluetooth proliferates,
more and more complex user modes are emerging.
Today’s predominant single connection applications
such as the Bluetooth headset and in-car handsfree
systems are being augmented by multiple connection
PANs (personal area networks). Theseinclude
simultaneous printing, mouse and keyboard control
and mobile phone synchronisation from the PC and
multi-user consumer games consoles featuring both
wireless controllers and wireless audio feeds. This
increases the demand for the most robust and secure
radio solution and CSRis well placed to deliver this
next wave of Blustooth solutions.
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In the future, CSR will introduce other
improvements to drive Bluetooth forward, We will
add ‘sniffing modes’ to our Bluetooth solutions to
further improve battery consumption. And we will
add an ‘extended enquiry’ feature to allow Bluetooth
devices to link up faster, so headsets will hook up
to phones faster. We will be introducing enhanced
quality of service features, which will further improve
voice and music quality and the user's experience.

Driving Blugtooth performance and features is
CSR's core mission. Better, smaller, faster Blustooth
products will increase the rate that Blustooth is built
into mokbile phones and other devices - the so called
attachrate. It will drive innovative accessory development
for personal audio, music and video applications.

Importantly CSR will integrate an ultra wideband
{(UWB) capability into its Bluetooth chips. Today’s EDR
(extended data rate) CSR Bluetooth chips are
already available and are up to three times faster
than most of the devices being shipped by
our competitors. UWB will increase thisby up to a
hunared times. This will drive compelling applications
like fast downloads of music to phones, or the super-
fast transfer of tomorrow’s high resolution digital
camera or canﬁera-phone images to printers.

And by re-using the well established and rich
software already developed for Bluetooth, it will be
easier to Use and therefore be adopted faster than
other schemes. UWB opens up enormous potential.
Mobile phones are incorporating more and more
consumer services such as cameras and music
players. UWB-based Bluetooth wil enable the
uploading and downlcading of large multi-media
data files with ease. It also opens up many new
applications in areas such as home entertainment,
for example, streaming video from a set top box to
an on the wall flat screen — without unsightly wires
or expensive installations. It may enable wireless
docking stations, so notebook and laptop PCs can
connect with office networks with ease and security.

While we're busy painting the world blue we're
also expanding into other wireless communications
areas where our core competence in integrated
CMOS chip and systems design can bring real value.
First among them is Wi-Fi.




CSR’s markets and opportunities continued

Bluetooth




Automotive is a growth opportunity for wireless
technology. Bluetooth is already used for headset to
mobile phone voice links to allow handsfree driving.
ltis alsoincreasingly being installed in the car itselfas
partofa standard handsfree capability with the addition
of smartfeatures like linking to your mobite phone’s
address book and displaying it on the car’s dashboard
andproviding voice recognition satellite navigation .
equipment for added safety and convenience. Its only
ashortstep fromtheretoprovidea wirelegs pathwayto
the vehiclediagnostics unitfor service calls or roadside
assistance, eliminating bulky and expe nsive cables.

— CSE ,DbAnnuarRéri'oiaidﬁnancial Statements 20
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CSR’s markets and opportunities continued

Wi-Fi = increasingly important within
the mobile phone and other battery
powered devices

We have a distinctive position in Wi-Fi. Criginally
developed for the PC market, Wi-Fi chips have not
peen well suited for use where power consumption
or operating near other wireless communication
devices is a prime consideration. Our UniFi device
family offers extremely low power consumption and
is designed to co-exist with other wireless systems
such as mobile phones and Bluetooth. This makes
UniFi particularly suitable for emerging high-volume
applications for Wi-Fi in the embedded environment,
such as mobile phones and other portable battery-
powered products.

Wi-Fiis already seen as a valuable feature for
high level converged phones, which are targeting
business users with features such as high speed web
browsing. However, what will drive UniFi attach rates
is the ability to design a phone which will work as a
normal mobile phone much of the time, but when near
a “hot spot” or wireless access point will be able to
connect to it using VolP (Voice over Internet Protocol).
Such access points could well be in our homes too.
These “converged phones” will be able to take
advantage of the different costs that normal and
hot spot connections may offer.

Such handsets, switching between mobile
phone and Wi-Fi communications channels, will need
a high performance, lower power Wi-Fi solution which
is happy co-existing with mobile phone and Bluetooth
wirgless systems — such as UniFi. They will also
need considerably more software to manage the
communication. This was one of the driving reasons
for our acquisition of UbiNetics.

This is an exciting opportunity. The mobile
handset market is already 700 to 800 million units a
year and a large part of the broadband infrastructure
for ‘converged' handsets is already in place, with
approaching 100 million homes in Western Europe
and North America now having broadband internet
connections. Many of these homes have also installed
Wi-Fi access points to provide the added flexibility of
wireless connectivity.




Our evolving vision

With B!uetootﬁ and Wi-Fi solutions —and UWB in
development - CSR is emerging as a broad supplier
of wireless communications solutions for shorter-

range applications on power-sensitive client devices.

We operate in standards-driven marketplaces and
have pioneered the technology that has proved to be
the catalyst for these fields: the use of the low-cost
CMOS process for radio-frequency applications.
We possess an encrmous amount of know-how in
this area, and our future value will be driven by our
exploitation of this and related design principles:

¢ We will continue to offer complete system solutions
for wireless applications including software, as well
as silicon building blocks that demand a lot of
integration effort.

» We have a gifted design team with a proven track
record of making the right architectural decisions,
greatly benefiting all our customers and particularly
those who rely on our radic know-how.

¢ Our portfolio'and rcadmap now encompasses
arange of wireless technologies for personal and
local area networking. With each addition we make,
we become a more valuable partner to cur OEM
and ODM customers.

Moreover, the highly integrated nature of our offering
means that we eliminate much of the challenging
design and manufacturing work that would otherwise
be required to create and build a radio-based product.
Itis this that has allowed - and continues to allow —us
o support many new manufacturers wishing to enter
exciting product markets. .

We believe the foundaticns that we have built
and the rich set of future market opportunities give
us the potential to grow from being the largest fabless
semiconductor company in Europe to beingin the top
tier of worldwide fabless semiconductor suppliers in
afew yearstime.




CSR’s markets and opportunities continued

Wi-Fi

VolIP (Voice over internet Protocol) is coming soon.
enabling low-cost global voice and data
communications. CSR’s UniFi chips are the first
specifically designed for the battery-powered mobile
environment and provide low power, small size and
high performance. CSR’s investmentin software
means that our Bluetooth and UniFi applications will
work smoothlyand seamlessly.
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Business Review

CSRsuccesstully shipped over 150
million Bluetooth single chip devices
in 200s. Aggressive cost management
nas maintained margins as we crive
selling prices down.

22 Changing the way the world connects

Business Review

CSR plc Is the holding company of an international
group of companies with its headquarters in
Cambridge, UK. CSR plclisted onthe London
Stock Exchange in March 2004 and is a constituent
of the FTSE 250 Index.

Operations

CSR designs and supplies single chip wireless
devices. Through its BlueCore range of products,
we are the market leader in the supply of single chip
solutions for Bluetooth wireless voice and data
communications, providing low cost, high
performance integrated circuits (IC’s or silicon chips)
to manufacturers of a wide range of electronic devices
including mobile phones, headsets, laptop PC's,
personal digital assistants (PDA's), PC peripherals,
sterec headphones and automotive based systems.
We supply over 450.end customers including Nckia,
Dell, Panasonic, Samsung, Sharp, Motorola, IBM,
Apple, LG, NEC, Toshiba, RiM and Sony.

CSRis organised around its research and
development team of 454 staff (2004: 183). The
majority of these are based in Cambridge, UK, with
teams in Aalborg, Denmark, Lund, Sweden and
Detroit in the US. During the year, these were
augmented by the opening of a hardware design
centre in Sophia Antipolis, France, and UbiNetics has
added further research and development teams in
Bangalore, India and Shenzhen, China. Our sales

and marketing function is centred in Cambridge,
with sales liaison offices in Dallas, Texas; Taipe,
Taiwan; Seoul, South Korea and Tokyo, Japan.
CSR is a “fabless” semiconductor company.
All wafer fabrication, assembly and test, and shipping
is subcontracted, predominantly to Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Company (TSMC)
and Advanced Semiconductor Engineering (ASE) in
Taiwan. Manufacturing is currently located in Taiwan
1o minimise production cycle time and inventory,
simplify logistics and to take advantage of a common
language and culture. During 20086, CSRis to expand
the number of TSMC wafer fabrication sites it uses
1o five, iIncluding a site outside Taiwan. Similarly,
assembly and test sites will be increased to five
locations. By increasing sourcing options, we will be
able to deal with any unplanned interruptions at any
single location, as well as having access to additional
capacity to respond to any increases in demand.
We have developed excellent relationships at all levels -
with TSMC and ASE. This has served us well and
provided us with leading-edge manufacturing
technology and strong support in satisfying capacity
requirements and controlling costs. Using this
production process has enabled CSR to successfully
ship (directly and under manufacturing licence) over
150 million Bluetooth single chip devices in 2005,
whilst aggressive cost management has maintained
margins as we drive selling prices down. This
encourages adoption of our technology in the
products of current and potential customers.




CSR markets to Criginal Equipment Manufacturers
(OEM’s) and Original Design Manufacturers (ODM's),
principalty through our own direct sales force and, in
North America; through sales representatives. We also
market our ICs through a network of distributors.

Our marketing efforts are supported by a team of
applications erﬁgineers who provide technical support
and assistance to existing and potential customers
in designing, testing and qualifying systems that
incorporate our products.

This support is generally provided without
charge to customers who have the potential to
purchase large volumes of products. An important
part of our marketing effort involves providing technical
support to product developers to encourage themto
design products using CSR's ICs. For this purpose,
we provide a range of development kits and tools.

Strategy

CSR’s objective is to be the supplier of choice

of single chip solutions for wireless voice and data
communications. Key elements of our strategy include:

» Focusing on existing and growing Blustocth
markets. Wé believe we are well positioned to
develop hardware and software solutions to address
the existing and future applications for Bluetooth.

» |Increasing software content in new products.
We believe that increased software content enables
new products to provide complete solutions for
customers. The software alsc improves the
robustness and flexibility of our solutions and
helps to distinguish them from competing offerings.
We intend to increase our emphasis on software in
the future.

» Extending its expertise in Bluetooth technologies.
We plan to extend our expertise in Bluetooth
technology to provide differentiated products
for different segmenits of the market.

¢ Focus on lowering the cost of Bluetooth solutions
using our Integrated Circuits. We believe that,
by continuing to increase the functionality of our
ICs and developing its on-chip application software,
we will be able to further reduce the total cost of
our complete Bluetooth system to our OEM and
ODM customers.

* Enhancing sales, marketing and technical support
organisations. We are committed to maintaining our
high leve! of technical support to cur customers as
well as pursuing new markets.
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* | everaging expertise in other wireless markets
exemplified by the UniFi product in the Wi-Fi
market. We believe cur single chip, radio frequency
and software design expertise, combined with our
knowledge of integrating wireless solutions with
customers’ products, positions us well to pursue
opportunities for solutions for new and developing
wireless communications standards, starting with
Wi-Fiand our product UniFi, the industry’s first single
chip IEEE802.11a/b/g embedded solution.

Competitive environment

The markets in which CSR operates are intensely
competitive and areicharacterised by rapid
technological change, evolving industry standards
and declining average selling prices. CSR's primary
competition includesBroadcom and Texas Instruments.

We provide our customers with a number of benefits:

* Leading Edge Technical Solution. We introduced
the world's first production ready single chip that
complied with the Bluetcoth standard with the launch
of BlueCore1. All CSR’s BlueCore ICs comply fully
with the Bluetooth 'standard, and provide on a single
chip; aradio, a baseband digital signal processor,
amicrocontroller and software. With UniFi we are
developing a range of true single-chip Wi-Fi devices
which combine small size, low power consumption
and low cost but with high performance.

Low overall solution cost. Animportant factor in
an OEM's or ODM's decision to adopt a Bluetooth
solution is cost. As we continug to increase
production volumes and enhance our operational
and technical expertise, the overall solution cost
will be further reduced.

Small size. The space available to include Blustooth
capability in portable electronic devices is very
limited. OEMs and ODMSs can design very smalll
systems with our single chip BlueCore solution
compared te alternative sclutions, which can require
two or more chips:

|
Extensive development and product support.
Our worldwide operations deploy applications
engineers with substantial experience in supporting
customer development projects.

Performance in 2005

Market Conditions

The Bluetocth market more than doubled in 2005
with market estimates of shipments of Bluetooth ICs
of 317 million units compared to 142 million units in
2004 (source: IMS)..

This considerable growth was driven largely by
increased Bluetooth attach rates in mobile phones.
As expected, attach rates of Bluetooth into mobile
phones grew to around 25% in 2005 from 14% in
2004. We expect that attach rates for 2006 will reach

around 35% for the year as a whole. Bluetooth is well
established in all top tier mobile phone manufacturers’
roadmaps with many high and mid-range phones
now specifying its inclusion. The very low Blustooth
attach rates in the US began to increase as the mono
headset application gained some popularity.

Additionally, the mobile phone market is starting
10 see a trend towards handset manufacturers
seeking space and cost efficiencies by specifying
the integration of more than one non-cellular wireless
technology onto one IC. This trend should favour
suppliers such as CSR, with proven competence
of wireless systems integraticon.

The headset market has also grown significantly
in 2005, driven by the proliferation of Bluetooth mobile
phones. We estimate that the headset attach rate
to Bluetooth enabled mobile phones was between
25% and 30% in 2005. The headsst market continues
to segment from very high end headsets with full
feature sets to low cost headsets with less
functionality. 2005 saw the introduction of the first
stereo headphones which can be used for both voice
calls and listening to music. We expect this market
to show strong growth over the coming years.

The PC market for Bluetooth continues to grow
with penetration of Bluetooth in laptops rising to the
high teens percentin 2005, compared to 15% in
2004. We expect penetration rates to grow further
as the stereo headphone market grows, VoIP calls
using cordless headsets paired to PCs increase and
the bandwidth of Blustooth increases in 2007 and
beyond, allowing very fast file transfer.

The automotive market provides a significant
growth opportunity as the number of car
manufacturers offering Blustooth connectivity
increases. In 2005, a number of mid-range car
makers including Nissan, Renault, Ford and Toyota
introduced Bluetooth connectivity as an optional extra
for their customers. In addition to builtt-in Bluetooth,
used predominantly for handsfree calls via the car HiFi
system, there is a significant aftermarket serviced by
clip-cn handsfree Bluetooth devices. At below 5%,
attach rates are relatively low.

Music and gaming applications have started
to appear in the consumer segment. Blustooth
connectivity for MP3 players is gaining traction,
initially via plug-in adaptors enabling stereo
headphones to be connected wirelessly.

Operational status and design wins in 2005
Revenue increased for the fifth consecutive

year to $486.5 million and represented a 92%
increase on 2004 revenue ($253.1 million). The key
areas of revenue in 2005 for the Company's BlueCore
products were the mokbile phone and headset market
which accounted for over 70% of all CSR's unit
shipments. Otherimportant end markets for BlueCore
included PCs, and PC peripherals (which includes
printers, mice and keyboards), automotive and
consumer {which includes MP3 players, cameras
and camcorders).
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CSR has maintained its leading position in the
Bluetooth market across all applications, with the
meajority of design wins listed on the Bluetooth website
in 2005. CSR defines a design win as an end product
or module listed on the Bluetooth.com website
identifying one of CSR's BlueCore parts as the
Bluetooth solution being used. As arule these design
wins will be an indicator of future revenue although
some design wins are for products, such as mobile
phones, which sell in more volume than others whilst

some listed qualified products never go to production.

In total, CSR won over 460 new designs in 2005
(2004 348) ofiwhich 43% (2004: 31%) were in the
cellular sector.(mobile phones and meno headsets).
Over 70% of CSR's unit shipments were shipped into
the cellular sector. CSR's strong position with the top tier
mohbile phoneimanufacturers continued with notable
wins with BenQ, Kyocera, LG, Nokia, Motorola,
Philips, RIM and Samsung.

CSR's leading position in the mono headset
segment contjnued with 89% of qualified design
wins (2004 85%). Notable design wins included
GN Netcom (Jabra brand)}, | Tech Dynamic, Logitech,
Motorola, Nokia, Philips, Plantronics and Siemens.
In the automotive sector CSR secured 77% of all
designs with customers including Bury GmbH, Delphi
Corporation, Nokia and Tom Tom. in the PC sector
CSR achieved a 71% share of all laptop designs
including NEC, and Sony as well as more PC
peripherals (ncluding printers, cards and dongles)
than any cther competitor. Notable design wins
included end products for Canon, Eastman Kodak,
Fujitsu and Seiko Epson.

In the steréo headset market, CSR secured 69%
of the available designs for customers such as Nokiz,
Samsung, GN Nstcom (Jabra), Philips for Siemens
as well as |-Tech dynamic. CSR has also won a
number of designs for plug-in adaptors for MP3
players, including Griffin.

CSR’s BlueCore4 solution with EDR was
adopted in 69% of relevant Bluetooth end products,
mainly in the mobile phone and PC segments.
Shipments of BlueCore4 exceeded 20 million
units tc the end of 2005.

Acquisitions

CSR made twic acquisitions in the year.

In March 2005, CSR acquired Clarity Technologies,
Inc. for $17.1 million. Its voice extraction and echo
cancellation software is based on its proprietary Clear
Voice Capture technology (CVC). The acquisition
brings CSR:

* Ownership of CVC, a patented and high profite
audio solution that has allowed CSR to enhance the
features in its next generation of Bluetooth products.

* Established customer relationships inthe
automotive sector, especially in the US, giving CSR
additional opportunities 1o increase its share of the
market for Bluetooth solutions.

* Additional technical ccmpetencies in the operation of
wireless headsets, which will further enhance CSR’s
position in this increasingly competitive market.

In August 2005, CSR acquired the software business
of UbiNetics for $48 million. UbiNetics specialises

in communication protecal software for mobile phone
manufacturers. The acquisition provides CSR with

a strong additicnal research and development team
to accelerate its existing software developments in
Bluetooth, Wi-Fi and UWB (ultra wideband).

Launch of BlueCore5 productrange

in late September 2005, CSR announced the next
generation of its Bluetooth offering which is expected
to start volume producticn in 20086. This fifth
generation of BlueCore includes ROM (Read Only
Memory) and multi-media variants.

BlueCore5-ROM has continued CSR'’s drive
to offer the lowest cost and smallest Bluetooth
implementation in the market; essential factors
for success in the mobile phone market. CSR's
BlueCore5-MM (multi-media) offers significant
audio enhancements. An enhanced version
of CSR’s “Kalimba” DSP is integrated in the
Bluetooth chip and brings marked improvements
to stereo audio performance. CSR also announced
BlueCore5-FM the first of a series of broadcast
reception capable chips which will integrate different
radio technologies into the Bluetooth device, part of
CSR’s “BlugMedia” vision.

Kalimba is the focal peint of the major
enhancements in multi-media variants of BlueCore5
andis a key competitive differentiator. CVC technology
is incorporated into the DSP inside BiueCore5-MM
bringing an important differentiator to designers of
automotive and voice applications. The CSR DSP
also offers support for a wider range of CODECs
(formats of compressed data, usually music) which
brings power consumption improvements; an
important factor for portable stereo music applications,
such as wireless stereo headphones for MP3 players.

Researchand Development

CSR devotes substantial effort to research and
development, which underpins and sustains our
success. We are conscious of the need to ensure
adequate financial and human resources are available
for research and development, and these issues

and future planning are considered at cperational
level and at each Board meeting. In 2005, research
and development costs were $60.3 million (2004:
$27.6 million) representing 12.4% (2004:10.9%) of
turnover. Our commitment to R&D to drive revenue
growth s reflected in the acquisition of the software
business of UbiNetics. We have the experience, skills
and track record to design the software for UMS
(Universal Mobile Access) and fixed-mobile converged
phones and hence extend our range of products
going forward. In the longer term CSR’s research
and development expenditure is expected to average
17% of revenue.
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Future Prospects -
CSR expects the overall market for Bluetooth enabled
products to continue to grow strongly. Global annual
Blustooth IC shipments are expected to increase
by around 60% in 20086, as attach rates for Bluetooth
increase in mobile phone handsets. We expect the
mabile phone and headset market to continue to be
a significant proportion of CSR's income in 2006.
In addition, new applications for Blustooth are expected
1o develop in greater volumes, such as stereo
headphones for use with digital music players, mobile
phones and PCs. In 2006, more of our product range
willinclude our ClearVoice Capture technology.
Amaterial factorin the success in any business
in consumer electronics is the ability to reduce unit
prices both in existing and new release products.
In line with the semiconductor industry as a whole,
we expect average selling prices to reduce by between
15% to 20% per year. We place significant focus on
controlling product costs to maintain gross margins.
Inthe longer term we expect gross margin to reduce
to within the range of 42% t0 45%.
We expect to start shipping UniFi products in
the second half of 2608. Building on our success
in single-chip Bluetooth devices, UniFiis CSR's first
non-Bluetooth prodict. UniFiis a range of true single-
chip Wi-Fi devices which offers small size, low power,
low cost, and high performance. CSR's UniFi devices
offer designers the first Wi-Fi solution specifically
targeted at mass-market mobile phones and other
pocket sized consumer products such as digital
cameras and MP3 players. UniFi combines up to
three Wi-Fi standards into a true single-chip and
will support applications such as Voice over Internet
Protocol, the fast exchange of picture and music files,
downloading data from Wi-Fi hotspots and video
streaming. Customers are in the process of laying
out designs using UniFi. Modest revenue is expected
in 2008, becoming more significant in 2007.

Employees

CSR's employees are key contributors to its success.
We encourage good employee relations across all our
cperations and require that this is facilitated by regular
meetings and scheduled briefings attended and
supported by senior management.

Regular company-wide briefings are held with
all staff. In addition, scheduled meetings are held at
team and department levels to consider commercial,
strategic, financial and human resource issues.

Key findings from these meetings are discussed at
aweekly meeting of senior management for CSR’s
operations worldwide. These have been animportant
element in supporting our rapid growth.

We also recognise our responsibilities to ensure
fair treatment of all employees in accordance with
national legistation in the territories in which we
operate. Equal opportunities for appropriate training,
career development and promotion are available
10 allemployees, regardless of any physical disability,
gender, religion, race or nationality. In particular, having
regard to their aptitudes and abilities, we give full and
fair consideration toiapplications for employment
received from disabled persons.

Provisions for pension are available for all employees
either through participation in the state pension
schemes operated by the country in which the
employee is resident or provision of a defined
contribution pension scheme. Such defined
contribution schemes are maintained in accordance
with legislative requirements, custom and practice
and Company policy as appropriate.

Social Responsibility
CSR recognises the importance of social,
environmental and ethical (SEE) matters and during
2005, continued to work towards compliance with
the ABI disclosure guidelines on social responsibility.
This includes the Company’s impact through its
operations on the envircnment, on the safety and well
being of our employees, and end users of our products
as well as those who contribute to the process of the
development and manufacture of CSR's products
through its suppliers, distributors and customers.
The directors consider that the Company’s
business practices already take due account
of certain of our responsibilities for SEE matters.
The Company has identified the resources which
are key to our business and established practices
intended to safeguard and maintain them. It has also
established policies and practices which encourage
the recruitment, retention and motivation of staff.
Key business risks which might impact our
operations have been identified. Theserisks are
reviewed on a regular basis and account is taken
of the potential SEE impact on the business and
its stakeholders resulting from any such risks.
In February 2005, the principle UK company was
registered under the internationally recognised health
and safety standard OHSAS 18001. That company
is also registered under the quality standard 1ISO 9000.
To the extent they apply to the Company’s
cperations, we consider issues connected with
the safe manufacture, disposal and treatment of
products at the end of their working life. During 2005,
we assessed the impact of both the Waste from
Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Directive,
which came into effect in August 2005 and the
Restriction on use of Hazardous Substances in
Electrical and Electronic Equipment (RoHS) Directive
which comes into effect in July 2006. Based on this
assessment, we believe there is limited application
of the WEEE Directive to our operations as it is not
applicable to the integrated circuits that we
manufacture. This is a matter which we will continue
to monitor in respect of our developing operations.
We believe the RoHS Directive will apply to the
Company. Work was undertaken during 2005 in
preparation for the implementation of the
requirements in 2008 as regards the selection and
use of materials, focused primarily on reducing the
lead content in our products. This work applies to
both products in manufacture and those which
presently are under development. We are also able
to provide confirmation to our customers of the
constituent materials in our devices, supported by
detailed laboratory analysis. We expect to further
develop our work in this area during 2006.




We recognise the importance of ensuring that
our suppliers have appropriate policies and practices
on SEE matters. As a result, we undertake periodic
audits of our principal direct suppliersin relation
primarily to environmental, but also considering
social and ethical issues. The most recent audit was
completed in April 2005.

We are also aware of the importance of ensuring
that our products can be used in a safe manner.
The Company considers that its products actively
facilitate the safe and convenient use of arange
of consumer products. We support our customers
in the drive forever smaller and cheaper mobile
communication devices, employing low power
radio waves. Through application of our technology,
customers can supply mobile phones which
facilitate compliance with the growing amount
of legislation worldwide concerning the safe use
of phones whilst driving.

Operating profitup 91%
$Millions :
2
2003 2004 2005

Financial Review

International Accounting Standards

During the year, the Company adopted International
Financial Reporting Standards for the first time.
As aresult prior period figures have been restated

to comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards. Fult details of the adjustments cn transition
and of the related changes to accounting pelicies are
included in notes 2 and 28 to the accounts.

Review of operations

Revenue increased for the fifth consecutive
year to $486.5 million and represented 2 92%
increase on 2004 revenue ($253.1 million). This level
of growth was significantly above expectations at the
beginning of 2005. This success was underpinned
by a particularly strong performance in shipping
BlueCore ICs into the mobile phone and headset
segment where Blustooth attach rates are increasing.

CSR places significant focus on controlling
product costs and during 2005, has aggressively
reduced costs in line with average selling prices. .
As aresult, gross margins have been maintained
at over 46%. :

Operating costs have increased by 94% in
2005 over 2004 as CSR continues to investin R&D
for current wireless solutions as well as new projects.
Investment in applications engineers and sales
people continued during 2005 and general and
administration costs have increased to support
the growing levels of business.

Operating profit was $111.9 million at 23%
operating margin compared to $58.5 million in 2004,
{23% in 2004).

Investment income

Investment income increased to $3.2 million in
2005 compared to $1.2 million in 2004 as a result
of increased levels of cash and cash equivalents,
as well as higher UK and US interest rates.

Taxation

CSR made its first payment of UK corporation tax
inJuly 2005. The effective tax rate for the year was
27.3% (note 8). This is below the statutory rate of
30% principally due to the availability of R&D tax credits.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share (diluted) was $0.62 for 2005,
an increase of 29% compared to $0.48 for 2004.
Basic earnings per share was $0.67 compared to
$0.53 for 2004. It should be noted that 2005 was
the first year in which CSR was chargeable to
Corporation Tax (at 27.3%).

Net Assets up 78%

$ Millions

Change
$000 2008 2004 04/05
Revenue 486,531 253,146 +92%
Gross Profit 228,113 118,383 +93%
Gross Margin 46.9% 46.8%
R&D 60,340 27,583 +119%
% of revenue 12.4% 10.9%
SG&A 55,837 32,343 +73%
% ofrevenue . 11.5% 12.8%
Operating profit 111,936 58,457 +91%
% ofrevenue 23.0% 23.1%
Earnings per share
($) (Diluted) 0.62 0.48 +29%
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28 Changing the way the worid connects

Financial Position '
30December2005 31 December 2004

$'000 $000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 52,697 -
Otherintangible assets 25,508 6,350
Property, plantand equipment 22,541 6,475
Deferred tax asset 18,137 8,112
118,883 20,937
Current assets
Inventary 69,672 30,088
Trade and other receivables 75,287 35,852
Treasury deposits 25,000 35,000
Cashand cash equivalents 99,386 75,074
; 269,345 176,114
Total assets 388,228 197,051
Current liabilities (109,212) (38,800)
Non-current liabilities (1,979) (2,766)
Totalliabilities (111,191) (41,566)
Net assets 277,037 155,485

Goodwill arose on the acquisitions of Clarity and
UbiNetics during the year, which are discussed
cnpage 25 and alsd detailed in note 23. Intangible
assets include the net book value of the Group’s
software licences of $10.8 miillion (2004: $6.0 million)
which support R&D, along with the $14.5 million of in-
process R&D and customer contracts purchased as
part of the acquisitions in the year (2004: $nil).

Trade receivables increased to $62.5 million
(2004: $31.8 million) as a result of increased levels
of business, Days’ sales outstanding increased
10 42 days (2004: 40 days) as a result of a higher
proportion of business with direct customers who
can command longer credit terms.

Inventory stands at $69.7 million (2004: $30.1
million), again reflecting increased levels of business.
CSR aims to keep sufficient inventory to meet the
often short customer order lead times in this industry
which results in inventory turns of between five and
seven times in inventory.

Cash Flow

2005 2004

$'000 $'000
Operating profit 111,936 58,457
Non-cashitems 12,407 8,393
Working capital (21,059) (31,003)
Taxation . (8,102) (1,939)
Interest paid i (213) (308)
Net cash from
operating activities 94,969 33,600
Treasury management 12,878 (33,787)
Acquisitions (64,464) -
Capital expenditure (18,673) (7,244)
Financing i 172 57,208
Net cash inflow 24,882 49,777

During 2005 there has been a cash inflow
of $24.9 million (2004: $49.8 million). Operating cash
flow contributed $95.0 million (2004: $33.6 million),
with $64.5 million {2004: $nil) spent on acquisitions
and capital expenditure of $18.7 million (2004: $7.2
million). Net tax paid was $8.1 million (2004: $1.9
million) and cash inflow from financing was $0.2
million (2004: $57.2 million).

The significant growth in CSR has resulted in the
requirement for a $21.1 million (2004: $31.0 million)
investment in working capital in 2005 impacting
operating cash flow.

Capital expenditure of $18.7 million (2004: $7.2
million) reflects the continued investment in test and
computer equipment and CAD software required to
support current and future R&D projects as well as
the purchase of production testers to enable more
cost effective testing. This expenditure represents
3.8% of revenue (2004: 2.8%). CSR’s longer term
target for expenditure on tangible and intangible
assetsis estimated at 4% to 5% of revenue.

Net Cash from Operating activities up 183%

$Millions

2003

Capital structure and Liquidity

The issued share capital at 30 Decemiber 2005
was 127,879,155 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each
(2004: 122,101,811). As aresult of the funds raised
through the initial public offering in March 2004 and
the subsequent positive operating cashflows, CSR
has a total of $124.4 million of treasury deposits,
cash and cash equivalents at 30 December 2005
{2004 $110.1 million). CSR therefore currently
expects to fund its current and future operations
from its existing cash resources.

Dividend Policy

The Company currently intends to retain future
earnings to fund the development and growth of
the business. Any payment of future dividends wili
be at the discretion of the Board after taking into
account various factors, including the Company’s
financial condition, operating results, current and
anticipated cash needs and plans for expansion.




Foreign exchange and Treasury policy

CSR has well defined and consistently applied
policies for the management of foreign exchange
and interest rate exposures. There has been no
change since the year end in the major financial risks
faced by the Company. The audit committee of the
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing
foreign exchange and interest rate exposure risks.
The Company’s financial instruments comprise
cash and casH deposits and items such as trade
receivables and creditors which arise in the normal
course of business. It is the Company'’s policy not

to enter into speculative transactions.

Substantially all of the Company’s sales and costs
of sales are denominated in US dollars, the
Company’s fuhctional currency. A majority of the
Company's overhead costs and other fixed costs
are denominated in GBP. This exposure to different
currencies would result in gains or losses with respect
to movements in foreign exchange rates and the
impact of such fluctuations could be material,
Accordingly, the Company enters into hedging
transactions pursuant to which it purchases GBP
under forward purchase contracts in order to cover
its GBP exposure. These transactions necessarily
involve Judgen‘we'nts and assumptions about future
expense levels, and, as a result, do not entirely
eliminate the Company’s exposure to currency
fluctuations. Further, whilst the hedging transactions
provide fixed currency rates for periods covered by
the contracts, the transactions will not protect the
Company from long term underlying movements in
currency rates. The average USD/GBP rate achieved
in 2005 was 1.7792 and 2006 contracts are in place
atan average of 1.8026.

Business Risks

The Annual Report contains certain forward-looking
statements. These statements are made by the
directors in good faith, based on the information
available to them up to the time of the approval of this
report. By their nature, forward-looking statements
involve risks and uncertainties because they relate
o events and depend on circumstances that will or
may occur in the future. Actual results may differ from
those expressed in such statements, depending on
a variety of factors. These factors include consumer
and market acceptance of the Company’s products
and the products that use the Company’s products;
decreases in the demand for the Company's
products; excess inventory levels at the Company’s
customers; déclines in average selling prices of the
Company’s products; cancellation of existing orders
or the failure to secure new orders; the Company's
failure to introduce new products and to implement
new technologies on a timely basis; the Company’s
failure to anticipate changing customer product
reguirements; fluctuations in manufacturing and
assembly and test yields; the Company’s fallure to
deliver products to its customers on a timely basis;
disruptionin the supply of wafers or assembly or

testing services; the timing of significant orders;
increased expenses associated with new product
introductions, masks, or process changes; the
commencement of, or developments with respect to,
any future litigation; the cyclicality of the semiconductor
industry; and overall economic conditions.

There are a number of potential risks and
uncertainties which could have a material mpact
onthe Group's long term performance:

Fabless Business Model. The Company uses
independent suppliers to manufacture, assemble
and test all of its products. As a result, the Company’s
business model is less capital intensive. TSMC, the
world’s largest semiconductor manufacturer is the
Company'’s principal wafer foundry. ASE performs
substantially all of the assembly and testing of CSR’s
ICs. CSRis therefore reliant on these independent
suppliers to provide the required capacity to
manufacture, assemble and test all of its products
and to provide high guality products on time.

The Company maintains an internal manufacturing
support group which directs product supply, helps
ensure a high leve! of quality and reliability and works
with the wafer foundry and production assembler
to resolve issues.

Product Design Cycle. The design cycle for the
Company’s ICs in Bluetooth enabled products

can take up to 24 months to complete and volume
production of products using the Company's ICs
can take an additional 6 months or mere. This lengthy
design cycle makes forecasting product demand
and the timing of crders difficult for the Company.

In addition, the delays inherent in lengthy design
cyclesincrease therisk that the Company's
customers may seek to cancel or modify orders.

Delays in new products due to complexity.

The Company’s products are complex and may
contain undetected hardware and scftware errors
or failures when first introduced cr as new versicns
are tested. The resolution of these errors could
cause the Company to invest significant capital
and other rescurces and divert its technical staff
from other development efforts. If CSR delivers
products with errors, defects or bugs, its credibility
and the market acceptance and sales of its products
could be harmed.

Transitioning to smaller geometry process
technologies. To remain competitive, the Company
expects to continue to transition its semiconductor
products to increasingly smaller line width gecmetries.
This transition requires modification to the manufacturing
processes and the re-design of some products as well
as standard cells and other integrated circuit designs
that may be used in multiple products. This may result
in reduced manufacturing yields, delays in product
deliveries and increased expenses.

— _
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Product Life Cycle; Declining Prices. The life

cycle of the Company’s ICs can be relatively short.
The average selling prices of the Company's ICs

will generally fall over the product’s life cycle.

The Company’s ability to increase turnover, therefore,
depends on its ability to increase unit volume and to

introduce new products that are accepted by customers.

Terms of Sale. Sales are made through purchase
orders with specific terms and conditions.

Industry practice does, however, allow customers
1o re-schedule and cancel orders on relatively short
notice. As aresult, backlog may not be an accurate

indicator of future turnover. Customer order

cancellations and changes in product specifications
could resultin aloss of turnover and excess inventory.

Seasonality. Principally all of the Company’s
customer design wins have been in products with
consumer electronic applications. As a result, CSR
expects its business to be subject to seasonality,
with increased turnover in the period April 0
November with a slowdown in activity in December
and into the first quarter of the following year.

Cyclicality. The semiconductor industry is cyclical
and has experienced significant downturns, often

in connection with maturing products and declines
in general economic conditions. Such periods have
reflected production overcapacity, excess inventory
levels and accelerated erosion in average selling prices.

New revenue sources. The Company's future
success is dependent upon our ability to develop
new semiconductor solutions for existing and new
markets, introduce these products in a cost-effective
and timely manner, and convince leading equipment
manufacturers to select these products for design
into their own new products.

Reliance on success of customers’ products.
The Company relies on equipment manufacturers
to select our products t¢ be designed into their
products. Furthermere, even if an equipment
manufacturer selects CSR'’s product, we cannot
be assured that their product will be commercially
successful. As aresult, sales of the Company's
products are largely dependent on the commercial
success of customers’ products.

Inability to protect the Company'’s intellectual
property. The success of CSR depends on our ability
to protect our intellectual property and trade secrets.
Despite prudent steps taken by the Company to
protectits proprietary rights, third parties may attempt
to copy aspects of CSR's products and seek to use
information that CSR regards as proprietary. There
is arisk that the Company's means of protecting its
intellectual property rights may not be adequate and
weaknesses or failures in this area could adversely
affect CSR's business.

Infringement of third party intellectual property
rights. Companies in the semiconductor industry
often aggressively protect and pursue their intellectual
property rights. Claims against the Company could
adversely affect our ability to market our products,
require us to re-design products or seek licences from
third parties, and seriously harm the Company’s
operating results. In addition, the defence of such
claims could result in significant costs and divert the
attention of the Company’s management or other
key employees.

Management of the Company are constantly
considering and reviewing risk. In addition the
Company has put in place formal processes for the
identification and, where possible, the management
of significant risks which are reviewed regularly by
senior management. This is formally reported ona
regular basis to the Audit Committee, as a result of
which the directors are aware of the potential cost
and resources involved in managing these risks.
Details on the identification and management of
risks are also addressed on pages 34 and 35inthe
Corporate Governance Report.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of these financial statements

under IFRS requires management to make estimates
and judgements that affect the reported amount

. of assets, liabilities, turnover and expenses, and

related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
On an ongoing basis, CSR evaluates estimatss,
including those related to uncollectable accounts
receivable, inventories, investments, intangible
assets, income taxes, financing operations, warranty
obligations and contingencies and litigation.
The Company's estimates are based on historical
experience and on various other assumptions
that CSR beligves to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
for making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Because this canvary in each
situation, actual results may differ from the estimates
under different assumptions and conditions.

CSR believes the following critical accounting
policies are important in understanding the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements:

Inventory valuation. Inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Provisions

for excess or obsolete inventory are recorded based
upon assumptions about future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are less
favourable than thcse projected by management,
additional inventory provisions may be required.

Impairment of non current assets including
goodwill. An annual impairment test is performed
inrespect of goodwill. In addition CSR assesses
its non current assets, for possible impairment if
there are events or changes in circumstances that
indicate that carrying values of the assets may not
be recoverable. Indicators of potential impairment
include changes in the Group’s business plans,




failure to meetperformance projections included
in our forecasts of future operating results, and a
slowdown in the worldwide economy or the
semiconductor industry.

The assessment for impairment entails comparing
the carrying value of the non-current asset with the
recoverable amount of the asset, that is, the higher
of net realisable value and value in use. Value in use
is usually determined on the basis of discounted
estimated future net cash flows. Significant
management judgement is required in the forecasts
of future operating results that are used in the
discounted estimated future net cash flows. The
estimates we have used are consistent with the plans
and estimates that we use to manage our business.
It is possible, however, that the plans and estimates
used may be incorrect. if our actual results, or the
plans and estimates used in future impairment
analyses, are lower than the original estimates used
10 assess the recoverability of these assets, we could
incur additional impairment charges.

Foreign Currencies. The functional currency of the
Group is the US dollar. The majority of sales are billed
in US dollars and the cost of product purchased is
in US dollars. A significant proportion of the Group’s
operating expenses, however, are paid for in pounds
sterling, exposing the Group to the financial risks

of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts
to hedge these exposures. However exposure to
fluctuations iniforeign currency exchange rate
movements still exists and could impact results.
The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

Research and Development. Expenditure on
research activities undertaken with the prospect
of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred.

Where a product can be identified, its cost can
be measured, itis technically feasible and itis
probable it will generate future economic benefits,
development costs are capitalised and amortised
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of the respective product. The Company believes
its current process for developing products is
essentially completed when products have achieved
the ‘Transfer to Production’ status as it is only then
that technical feasibility of the products to be
manufactured and sold to the commercial
marketplace Is confirmed. Accordingly, development
costs incurred after the establishment of technical
feasibility have not been significant and, therefore,
no costs have been capitalised to date. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised
as an expensé in the period in which it is incurred.

Share options: The share option schemes allow
Group employees to acquire shares of the Company.

Share options granted before 7 November 2002
No expense is recognised in respect of these options.
The shares are recognised when the options are
exercised and the proceeds received allocated
between share capital and share premium.

Share options granted after 7 November 2002

and vested after 1 January 2005

IFRS 2 “Share-based payments” is effective in
respect of options and share awards granted after
7 November 2002 and which had not vested as at

1 January 2005. The Group issues equity-settled
share-based payments to certain employees.
Equity settled share-based payments are measured
at the fair value at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest. The fair
value of the majority of options granted is measured
by use of a Black-Scholes model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. For certain share options which
include total shareholder return related conditions,
the fair value is estimated through the use of a
Monte-Carlo simulation.

The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that
vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of shares that are
expected to become exercisable. The estimates of
the number of shares that are expected to become
exercisable are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

- The impact of the revision of original estimates,

if any, is recognised in the income statement and
a corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal valug)
and share premium (the balance) when the options
are exercised.

The deferred tax on the employee share
options and share awards which were granted after
7 November 2002 is computed on a different basis
to that used for calculating the share option and share
award expense in the income statementand as a
result the effective tax rate may be affected by the
calculation at each period end. Similarly the amount
of current tax payable is affected by the tax relief
available when share options and share awards are
exercised by employees. The timing of this relief is not
possible to predict as it is dependent on the decisions
of individual share option and share awards holders.

£.R

Paul Goodridge
Finance Director




Corporate Governance

Statement of compliance
The Company supports the principles of corporate
governance contained in the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance which is appended to the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority.
The Board is accountable to the Company’s
shareholders for good governance. The Company
has throughout the year complied with the majority
of the provisions of the Combined Code — Principles
of Good Governance and Code of Best Practice.
The statements below describe how the Company
has applied the principles identified in the Combined
Code and areas where the Company is presently
working towards compliance.

The Board ‘

As at 30 December 2005, the Board comprised nine
members being the Chairman, Mr John Whybrow,
who served throughout the year, five executive
directors and three non-executive directors, The four
executive directors who served throughout the year
were Mr John Hodgson, Chief Executive Officer;

Mr Paul Goodridge, Finance Director; Mr James
Collier, Chief Technical Officer and Mr Glenn Collinson,
Sales Director. Effective 1 December 2005, Mr John
Scarisbrick, formerly a non-executive director of the
Company, was appointed Chief Executive Officer
Designate. Mr Hodgson retired on 28 February 2008
and, effective 1 March 2006, Mr Scarisprick was
appointed Chief Executive Officer.

The non-executive directors, who served
throughout the year were Mr David Tucker and
Mr Ron Mackintosh. Mr Anthony Carlisle was
appointed a non-executive director on 1 July 2005.
Mr John Scarisbrick stood down as a non-executive
director on 1 November 2005. Mr Mike Shone stood
down as a non-executive director on 31 March 2005.

Until 1 November 2005, when Mr Scarisbrick
stood down as a non-executive director, the number
of non-executive directors represented half the Board.
As a conseguence of the change, the proportion
of non-executive directors does not represent half
the Board and does not comply with the Code.
itis the intention of the Board to appoint an additional
non-executive director during 2006.

Mr David Tucker'is the Senior Independent
Director. Mr Goodridge has throughout the year
been the director responsible for health and safety
within the Company. The directors possess diverse
business experience in spheres complementary
to CSR’s activities, as well as other sectors.
Biographies of the directors are shown on pages
36 and 37. Mr Brett Gladden served as Company
Secretary throughout the year.

The Chairman, Mr John Whybrow is also chairman
of Wolseley plc and a non-executive director of DSG
international plc, positions which he held at the time
of his appointment as Chairman to the Company.

The Board considers that the time which
Mr Whybrow provides to the Company and his
availabllity to directors and senior management is
maore than adeguate. Mr Whybrow provides strong
leadership and contributes valuable experience and
knowledge to the business of the Company and the
conduct of the Board and its committees.

In accordance with the provisions of the Combined
Code, consideration has been given to the independence
of afl the non-executive directors. The Board considers
all the non-executive directors to be independent
of management and free from any business or other
relationship that could materially interfere with the
exercise of independent judgement.

The Board meets regularly during the year
as well as on an ad-hoc basis as required by time
critical business needs. The Board is responsible
to shareholders for the effective and proper
management and control of the Company and has a
formal schedule of matters reserved for its decisicns.
Its primary roles are to determine and review Company
strategy and policy, consider acquisitions and disposals,
assess requests for major capital expenditure and
give consideration to all other significant financial
matters. This process is undertaken following
discussicns in conjunction with senior executive
management who in turn are responsible for day
to day conduct of the Group's operations and for
reporting to the Board on the progress being made
in mesting the objectives. The Board met eight times
during the year and the attendance of each of the
directers is shown on page 35. Mr Scarisbrick
attended all meetings but did not participate in
discussicns concerning the Board's consideration
of the acquisition of the software business of
UbiNgtics Holdings Limited, of which he was a
shareholder and non-executive director, or on
matters associated with the appcintment ofa
new Chief Executive Officer where the potential
for conflict of interest had been identified.

During the year, the Board undertook a formal
process of performance evaluation. Each director
completed an internally produced questionnaire
covering a wide range of matters associated with
the activities and conduct of the Board and its
committees. The process was conducted without
reference to external agencies. The responses to
the questionnaire were discussed as an agenda
item at the Board’s full meeting in November 2005.
The overall conclusion was that the Board and
its Committees were performing appropriately.

The Chairman holds regular meetings with
all the directors individually. In addition, prior to
the year end, the Chairman held a meeting of the
non-executive directors to discuss the performance
of the executive directors.

In accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association, all directors are required tc retire
and submit themselves for re-election at least once




every three years. It is the policy of the Board that
non-executive directors are appointed for an initial
term of three years, following which it will be reviewed
and as appropriate, extended for a further three year
period. Non-executive directors should not generally
serve for more than nine years.

On appointment, all directors are advised that
they have access 1o the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and, in addition, that they are
entitled tc seek independent professicnal advice
in the furtherance of their duties, if necessary, at the
Company's expense.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, directors are granted an indemnity from
the Company to the extent permitted by law in respect
of liabilities incurred as a result of the performance
of their duties in their capacity as directors to the
Company. The indemnity would not provide any
coverage to the extent that a director is proved to
have acted fraudulently or dishonestly. The Company
has also arranged insurance coverage in respect of
legal action against the directors and officers.

Communications with shareholders

Principally via the executive directors, the Company
seeks to build on a mutual understanding of objectives
with its major shareholders through regular meetings
and presentations following anncuncements of each
guarter's results. The Senior Independent Director,
Mr David Tucker, is available ¢ meet institutional
shareholders should there be unresolved matters
they wish to bring to his attention. Although the
non-executive directors are not asked at present

to meet with the.Company’s shareholders, their
attendance at the Annual General Mesting is required.
Corporate information is alsc available on the
Company's website, www.csr.com.

Committees of the Board

The Board has three committees, Remuneration,
Nomination and Audit, whose members comprise the
Chairman and non-exacutive directors. In accordance
with the Combined Code, the duties of the committees
are set out in formal terms of reference. These are
available fromithe Company Secretary and can be
found on the Company’s website, www.csr.com.
Membership of the committees is shown on pages
36 and 37. The Company Secretary acts as secretary
to each of the committees.

Remuneration Committee
Mr Ron Mackintosh is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The other members
of the Committee at 30 December 2005 were
Messrs Carlisle, Tucker and Whybrow. The principal
function of the Committee is to establish and review
the terms andiconditions for the executive directors,
and the overall policy framework for the remuneration
of other senior executives and the Group as a whole.
The Committee met three times during the year
and the attendance of its members is shown in the
table on page 35.

During 2005, in order to comply with the Code,
Mr Whybrow stood down as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, although he remains a
member of the Committee. The Board considers this
to be appropriate given his experience in this role in

other listed companies and the contribution which
he makes to matters which the Committee considers.
The report to shareholders on how directors are
remunerated, together with details of individual
directors’ remuneration are shown on pages 4010 47.

Nomination Committee

Mr John Whybrow is the Chairman of the Nomination
Cemmittee. The other members of the Committee at
30 December 2005 were Messrs Carlisle, Mackintosh
and Tucker. Mr Scarisbrick served as a member of the
Committee during 2005 until, following discussions
with the Chairman, he declared an interest in the
appointment as Chief Executive Officer to the
Company. Thereafter he took no part in the business

of the Committee where it concerned the
appointment of the new Chief Executive Officer.

The Committee meets as appropriate to consider
appointments to the Board. The Committee reviews
the composition of the Board, particularly in relation
to the diversity of skills, experience, age and term
of office and seeks to ensure that both executive
and non-executive directors have the necessary
skills and attributes for the future success of the Group.
The Committee retains external search consultants as
appropriate and during 2005 engaged Egon Zehnder
International to assist in the appointment of an
additional non-executive director which was
completed with the appointment in July 2005 of
Mr Carlisle. Capital Christian Timbers were also
engaged during 2005 to assist in the appointment
of a Chief Executive Officer.

The appointment of the new Chief Executive
Officer was completed in November 2005 following a
thorough process. Capital Christian Timbers assisted
in the development of a candidate profile following
meetings with the members of the Committee and
the executive directors. They also undertook initial
search and analysis of all candidates, reporting the
results to the Committee and thereafter to the Board,
and assisted in the conduct of meetings between
candidates and members of the Board.

During 2005, the Committee met a total of eight
times, seven of which were as part of the formal
business of the Board, to discuss the appointments
of a non-executive director and of a new Chief
Executive Officer. This ensured that the views of the
executive directors were taken into consideration.

Audit Committee

Mr David Tucker is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The other members of the Committee at
30 December 2005 were Messrs Carlisle, Mackintosh
and Whybrow. The Board is satisfied that Mr Tucker,

a chartered accountant with extensive experience
through his past and present involvement as chairman
of the audit committees of various listed companies,
brings recent and relevant experience to the
Committee. Mr Whybrow, Chairman of the Company
also serves on the Committee. The Board considers
this to be appropriate, given his experience in cther
listed companies as well as the contribution to and
the benefit derived from participating in matters which
the Committee considers. The experience and expertise
of the members of the Committee are summarised

on pages 36 and 37. The attendance of its members
is shown in the table on page 35.
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Corporate Governance

The Committee met four times during the

continued year and reported its conclusions to the full Board. has monitored progress in meeting the new reporting

The Committee invites the Chief Executive Officer, requirements. The Committee also monitors and
. the Finance Director, the Internal Auditor and senior reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal

representatives of the external auditors to attend control systems, accounting policies and practices,
meetings as appropriate to the business being risk management procedures and compliance
considered. In addition, the Committes has the right controls as well as the statement on internal controls
toinvite any other erhployees to attend meetings before they are agreed by the Board for each year's
where this is considered appropriate. annual report.

The Committee is responsible for the The Chairman of the Committee attends the
development, implementation and monitoring of the Company’s Annual General Mesting to respond
Company’s policy on external audit and for overseeing  to any shareholder questions that might be raised
the objectivity and effectiveness of the auditers. concerning the Committee’s activities.

The Committee recommends the appointment
and re-appointmentiof the Company's external Internal control
auditors and considers the scope of their audit work, Philosophy and policy
the terms of their appointment, their fees andthe cost ~ The objective of the directors and senior
effectiveness of their work. During 2005, as part ofits ~ management is to safeguard and increase the value
formal business, the Committee met on three of the business and assets of the Company. Part of
occasions with the external auditors. Ontwo occasions  this objective requires the development of relevant
the Committee also held separate meetings with the policies and appropriate internal controls to ensure
external auditors at which no executive director or proper management of the Company’s resources
employee of the Company was present. and the identification of risks which might serve to

The Committee is aware of the audit and undermine them.
non-audit services which have been provided by the The Board is ultimately responsible for the
Company’s external auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP Company’s system of internal control and for
during 2005. Those non-audit services concerned reviewing its effectiveness. The systems and
advice on tax matters which was considered to be processes established by the Board are designed
appropriate, given their in-depth knowledge of the to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
affairs and financial practices in the Group. The achieve business objectives and provide reascnable,
Committee is satisfied that, notwithstanding this not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss.
waork, Deloitte & Touche LLP have retained objectivity The Board has delegated responsibility for
and independence during the year. the review of practices and procedures to the

Deloitte & Touche LLP have been the Company's Audit Committee. The Company’s senior
auditors since July 2002 and the cost, scope and management, in conjunction with external advisers
effectivenass of the audit are reviewed regularly. are responsible for undertaking periodic reviews
In 2005 the Board requested that a formal review of the suitability of current systems on which they
of the audit be undertaken with due regard for good report to the Committee.
governance and to ensure shareholders are recelving The Committee reviews the findings to ensure
the best available service. the effectiveness and efficiency of the processes

This review commenced in December 2005 implemented by senior management. This includes
and will be completed to allow a recommendation discussions with senior management of the
1o be put to sharehclders for their consideration at the Company and consideration of reports that have been
Annual General Meeting to be held on 2 May 2008. submitted. These findings are in turn discussed by
More particulars on the matter are contained in the the full Board. The Board is satisfied that this process
Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the accords with the internal control guidance for
Chairman’s letter accompanying the Annual Report. directors set out in the Turnbull Report “Internal

In relation to the appointment of external auditors ~ Control: Guidance for Directors on the Combined
and in order to safeguard auditor independence and Code” and that through its interface with
objectivity, the Committee has a policy of permitted management, the Board is aware of the major risks
services which details the services that can be facing the Company and the steps taken by the
provided by the Company’s auditors and those Company where possible to mitigate such risks.
services which require specific approval by the The risk evaluation process described in this report
Committee. The policy alsc details services that the has been in place for 2005 and up to the date of
Company's auditors are not permitted to provide. approval of the annual repert and financial statements.
The policy has been complied with throughort the year.

The Committee reviews, where practicable, Managingrisks
all proposed announcements to be made by the A summary of the structures and processes
Company 1o the extent they contain financial in place o identify and manage risks across
information, During the year, the Committee has the Group are set out on page 35.
received regular updates on the introduction of
international Financial Reporting Standards and

= = ==
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the impact of their adoption on the Company and




Risk profiling .

There is an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
risks faced by the Company, through the conduct

of regular meetings by the Company’s senior
management. Findings are reported to the Committee
together with recommended actions and a timetable
forimplementation. A list of prioritised risks is
refreshed on alregular basis to reflect changes to the
business and any observations or proposals arising
from events since the last review. The schedule,
along with other management information, is used
to develop an overall assurance plan for the Company.

Controllingrisk

The Cempany:has policies which address a number
of key business risks, including financial, treasury
and health and safety. The policies are made available
to relevant employees through paolicy manuals,
anintranet site and also via employee briefings on
specific topics as appropriate. The Company also
has a formal whistle blowing policy which has been
communicated to all employees and which provides
information onrthe process to follow in the event any
employee feels it appropriate to make a disclosure.
The Audit Committee satisfies itself periodically that
the policy provides an adequate basis for employees
to make representations in confidence to the
Company and for appropriate and proportionate
investigation. The Group carries out a programme
of management self-assessments over the status
of key business risks through formal raviews which
consider the risks faced by the business, how these
might be mitigated and who within the Company

is responsible for implementing agreed actions.
Where appropriate, external advisers are appointed
in order to support this process.

Monitoring and managing the status
of residual risk
The actions arising from these assessments
are consolidated and during 2005 the results
were reported to the Audit Committee.

The Commitiee assesses the findings and
proposed actions for addressing residual risks
and also advises on areas for further attention.

Internal financial controls

The Company has a comprehensive system

for regular monitoring and reporting of financial

performance and assessing the adequacy

of the Group's systems of internal controls.

Risk assessment and evaluation is an integral part of

the annual planning cycle. This includes assessment

of the Company’s strategic direction, objectives

and financial returns and the risks in achieving them.
As part of the planning cycle, a detailed budget is

prepared by management and thereafter is reviewed

and formally adopted by the Board. The budget and

other targets are regularly updated via a rolling

forecasting process and regular business review

mestings are also held involving senior management

worldwide, at which the Company’s overall

performance is assessed. The results of these reviews

arein turn reported to and discussed by the Audit

Committee and the Board at each mesting.

|

A summary of the key financial risks inherent in the
Company’s business is given on pages 29 and 30.
These processes are supported by discreet
reviews conducted by external advisers,
as determined by the Committee, in addition
to the routine audits.
In October 2005, the Company appointed
an Internal Auditor. The Committee will review
the effectiveness of the internal audit function
including the development of the function in
the coming year against objectives which will
be agreed with the Commitiee.
The Board confirms that it has reviewed
the effectiveness of the system of internal controls
for the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005.

Attendance at meetings

The table below shows the attendance of each of the
directors at meetings of the Board and its committees
held during the year. A comprehensive fle of briefing
papers and a meeting agenda is provided for each
director in advance of each meeting, Decisions are
taken by the Board, in conjunction, where
appropriate, with the recommendations of its
committees and advice from external consultants
and executive management. In addition, during those
months when a Board meeting is not scheduled,

a pack of management reports, including financial
analysis is sent to each of the directors.

Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination
4 3 8

No. of meetings 8
J S Hodgson 8
JDYCollier 8
G Collinson 8
P G G Goodridge 8
ACarlisle? 3
8
8
8
8
1

1
I

I

R Mackintosh
J Scarisbrick
D Tucker

JW Whybrow
ML Shone'

I
Wi
—~ {000 I TN |

! Stepped down'from the Board 31 March 2005
2 Appointed to the Board 1 July 2005

Annual General Meeting resolutions

The resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 2 May 2008, together with
explanatory notes, appear in the separate Notice

of the Annual General Meeting, which has been sent
1o all registered shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Brett Gladden
Secretary

28 Felruary 2006




Board of Directors

@ Remuneration Committee
® AuditCommittee
4 Nomination Committee

JohnWhybrowema
Chaimman, .
Chairman Nomination :
Committee

JohnWhybrow served as
non-executive director ofthe
Company since December 2003
and was appointed Chairman in
March 2004. Having spent the
majority of his career with Philips
Electronics, he was appointed
president & CEC of Philips;
Lighting Holdings BV, basedin
Holland, in 1895, becoming
executive vice president of Royal
Phitips Electronics BV andi
member of the Beard of
Managementin 1988. He ,
returned to the UK in 2002,
becoming chairman of Wolseley
plc having been a non-executive
director of the company since
1997, He s also anon-executive
director of DSG international plc.
MrWhybrow is a graduate of

the Imperial Cellege, London
where he completed a degree

in Mechanical Engineering.
Healso has an MBA from
Manchester Business School.
Age88.
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JohnHodgson

Chief Executive Officer
{retired 28 February 2006)
JohnHodgsonserved asthe
Company's Chief Executive
Officer from February 2000 to
February 2006. From April 1997
toJuly 1999, MrHodgson
served as senior vice president of
worldwide sales and technology
centres at VLS| Technology.
FromJanuary 189010 April 1997,
Mr Hodgson served as vice
president for worldwide sales
and marketing and corporate
officer at Lucent Microelectronics.
Priorto 1980, Mr Hodgsonwas
a co-founder, director and
executive vice president at VIC
Inc., a start up semiconductor
company, and prior to that held
anumber of executive, sales
and technical positions at
various semiconductor
companies, including Fairchild
Semiconductor and Texas
Instruments. Mr Hodgson holds
aB.Sc. from Leeds University.
MrHodgson retired from the
Company and stood down from
the Board on 28 February 2006.
Age B2,

John Scarisbrick

Chief Executive Officer
(effective 1 March 2006)
John Scarisbrick was appointed
Chief Executive Officer on

1 March 2006, having been
Chief Executive Officer Designate
since 1 December 2005.

Mr Scarisbrick joined the board
of CSRinJune 2004 as a
non-executive director.

He has extensive experience
inthe telecommunications and
semiconductor sectors, having
worked for Texas Instruments
for 25 yearsin avariety of senior
roles including President TI
Europe and a Senior Vice
President of Texas Instrurments
Inc responsible for Tt's 35 billion
Application Specific Products
chip business and led the team
which created Ti's Digital Signal
Processor business. Priorto Tl,
Mr Scarisbrick worked in
electronics systems design
roles at Rank Radio International
and Marceni Space and Defence
Systemsinthe UK. Heisa
non-executive director of ARM
Holdings plc and Intrinsity Inc
andis chairman of Cambridge
Positioning Systems Limited.
Age 53.

James Collier

Chief Technical Officer,
Co-founder

James Collier has served as

the Company's Chief Technical
Officer since CSR's
gstablishment in April 1999,

Mr Collier is a co-founder of CSR.
Between 1984 and April 1999,
Mr Collier held anumber of
executive and technical positions
at Cambridge Consuttants Ltd,
where he formed the
microelectronics groupin 1987,
Priorto 1984, Mr Collier helda
number of executive and technical
posttions at Schlumberger.
MrColiier has a degreein physics
from Oxford University.
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Glenn Collinson Paul Goodridge | RonMackintoshema David Tuckero®a Anthony Carlisleo@a
Sales Director, Finance Director Non-executive Director, Non-executive Director, Non-executive Director
Co-founder Paul Goodridge has served as Chairman Remuneration Senior Independent Director, Mr Carfisle was appointed
Glenn Collinson has served Finance Director for CSR since Committee Chairman Audit Committee anon-executive director of
as CSR's Sales Director since January 2002, having joined Ron Mackintosh was appointed David Tuckerjoined CSR as CSRin July 2005. Mr Carlisieis
August 2002. Mr Collinsonis the Company in 2000. Prior to anon-executive director of CSR anon-executive directorin an executive director of Citigate
aco-founderof CSR. Between joining CSR, Mr Goodridge inMay 2004. Mr Mackintosh has January 2004. After nineteen Dewe Rogerson, where he
October 1996 and 1999, was head of UK finance for PA held anumber of seniorexecutive  yearsasan investment manager is responsible for strategic
Mr Collinson served asa Consulting. From 1990t0 1997 positionsin European technology with M&G unit trusts, Mr Tucker consultancy andclient services.
senior engineer and then Mr Goodridge had a variety of companigs, Between 1992 and retired as deputy managing He has over thirty years
as a marketingmanager at seniorfinancial positions at Black 2000 he was chief executive of directorin 1988. Heis currently experiencein marketing and
Cambridge Consuftants Ltd. & Decker Inc. and Charringtons Computer Sciences Corporation's  anon-executive director of communications, advising
Priorto that, he servedas a Fuels Limited. Mr Goodridge (CSC) European business which Edinburgh UK Tracker Trust plc major companies in the UK and
design engineer and marketing isamember of the Institute had revenues of $2.5 billion. where, until April 2005, he was internationally. He holds a BA
manager at Texas Instruments of Chartered Accountantsin Heis also a former director chairman and is anon-executive in Economics and is a Fellow
Limited. Mr Collinsonisa England and Wales. and interim CEO of Gemplus SA, director of Rexam PLC where of the Institute of Public Relations.
non-executive director of Age 40. the world's largest smartcard he chairs the audit committee. Age59.
Sonaptic Limited. Mr Colinson ' manufacturer. MrMackintosh Heisalsoatrustes of the
helds a B.Sc. in physics, is a non-executive director of Mineworkers’ Pension Scheme.
an M.Sc. inelectronics from software company Royalblue MrTucker is amember of the
Durham University, and an MBA } PLC, chairman of software Institute of Chartered Accountants
from Cranfield University and : company Smartstream in England and Wales.
is amember of the Institute ' Technologies Ltdand chairman Age 66,
of Electrical Engineers. of Differentis, a privately owned
Aged?2. ; IT consultancy which he

! co-founded in July 2000.

Ageb57.




Directors’ report

Introduction

The directors present their report on the affairs of the
Group, together with the financial statements of the
Company for the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005.

Activities and businessreview

CSR is a lsading developer and provider of single chip
wireless solutions designed to support data and voice
commiunications between a wide range of products
over short range radio links. More detailed information
onthe principal activities of CSR plc and its subsidiaries,
together with a review of the businesses, are set out
on pages 6to 11. Detalls of the subsidiaries and
branches of the Company are set out on page 85.

On 15 March 2005, through an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of Clarity Technologies, Inc.
(‘Clarity') for a consideration of $17.1 million, payable
in cash. More information on Clarity is given on page 8.

On 17 August 2005, the Company completed the
acquisition of the software business of UbiNetics
Holdings Limited for a consideration of $48 million
payable in cash. More information on the integration
of UbiNetics (VPT) Limited and its operations with
those of the Company are given on page 8.

Financialresults
The Group’s consolidated income statement, set
out on page 52 shows anincrease to $111.9 million
in operating profit compared to an operating profit
in 2004 of $58.5 milljion' Turnover increased by 92%
10 $486.5 million from $253.1 million and diluted
sarnings per share were $0.62 from $0.48in 2004.
A detailed analysis of the Group's performance is set
out on pages 22 to 31. The use of financial instruments
is covered within the business review section.

In accordance with stated policy, no dividend
will be paid in respect of the 52 weeks ended
30 December 2005;

Future developmént
[t remains the Beard's intention to develop the Group
through organic growth and selective acquisition.

Directors ‘

Details of the directors of the Board who

served during the year are contained on page 32.

Biographies of the directors in office at

30 December 2005 are on pages 36 and 37.
Theinterests of the executive directors in the

options of the Company are detailed in the Report

of the Remuneration Committee on page 47.

Directors’ interests in shares

The register kept by the Company pursuant to section .
325 of the Companies Act shows that the Directorsin
office at 30 December 2005 and their families had the
under-mentioned interests in the ordinary shares of
the Company.

30 December 2005 1 January 2005
James Collier 1,509,898 2,119,898
Glenn Collinsen 1,715,840 2,696,840
Paul Goodridge - 2,948
John Hodgson 942,082 942,082
Ron Mackintosh 20,000 20,000
David Tucker 80,000 60,000
John Whybrow 120,000 100,000

In accordance with the Articles of Association,
the director retiring at the Annual General Meeting
will be Mr Anthony Carlisle, as he has been appointed
since the last meeting. Being eligible, Mr Carlisle offers
himself for election. Mr John Whybrow, Mr David
Tucker and Mr Paul Goodridge are retiring by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Payment of creditors

Inthe UK, the Company agrees payment terms with
its suppliers when it enters into binding purchase
contracts. At 30 December 2005 the number of
creditor days outstanding for the Company was 30
(2004 - 58) and for the Group was 62 (2004 - 58).

Donations

The Company and employees support a number
of charities for a variety of causes. During the past
year the most significant contributions have been
made in respense to the Tsunamiin December 2004
that affected large areas of south east Asiaand the
earthguake in October 2005 in Pakistan. In both
cases the Company agreed to match total giving
made by employses and as a result a total amount
of $30,000 was donated to the Disasters Emergency
Committee in response to the Tsunami and a total
amount of $17,000 was donated to the Red Cross
following the earthquake in Pakistan. The Company
did not make any political donations during the year.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the financial statements. The directors are
required to prepare financial statements for the Group
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) and have alsc elected to prepare
financial statements for the Company in accordance
with IFRS. Company law requires the directors to
prepare such financial statements in accordance




with International Financlal Reporting Standards,
the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires
that financial statements present fairly for each
financial year the Company's financial position,
financial performance and cash flows. This requires
the faithful representation of the effects of transactions,
other events and conditions in accordance with the
definitions andrecognition criteria for assets, liabilities,
income and expenses set out in the International
Accounting Standards Boards' ‘Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements’. A fair presentation will be achieved by
compliance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards. Directors are also required to:

I

s properly selectand apply accounting policies;

* present information, including accounting policies,
ina manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information; and

* provide additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific reguirements in IFRS is insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions; other events and conditions on the
-entity’s financial position and financial performance.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities and for the preparation
of adirectors’ report and directors’ remuneration
report which domp\y with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1985.

The directors, having prepared the financial
statements, have permitted the auditors to take
whatever steps they consider appropriate for the
purpose of enabling them to give their audit opinicn.

Substantial shareholdings

The following interests of 3% or more in the issued
share capital of the Company appears in the register
maintained under the provisions of Section 211 of
the Companies Act 1985.

Disciosed hoiding

ordinary share capital % ofissued
Fidelity, FMR Corp, Fidelity International Ltd 17,928,645 13.96%
Wellington Management Company LLP 5,466,600 4.26%
Deutsche Bank AG 5,095,839 3.97%
Lloyds TSB.Group Plc 4,892,758 3.81%
Legal & General Group Plc 4,377,040 3.41%
Morgan Stanley Securities Ltd 4,165,759 3.24%

*at 20 March 2006

Going concern

After making due enguiries, the directors have a
reascnable expectation at the time of approving

the financial statements that the Group has adequate
financial resources to continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and, consequently, continue

to use the going concern basis for preparing the
financial statements which follow.

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have been the Company’s
auditors since July 2002 and the cost, scope and
effectiveness of the audit are reviewed regularly.

In 2005 the Board requested that a formal review

of the audit be undertaken with due regard for good
governance and to ensure shareholders are receiving
the best available service.

This review commenced in December 2005
and will be completed to allow a recommendation
to be put to shareholders for their consideration at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 2 May 20086.
More particulars on the matter are contained in
the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the
chairman’s letter accompanying the Annual Report.

By Order of the Board
Brett Gladden
Secretary

28 February 2006
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Introduction
The Board presents the remuneration report for
the 52 weeks endedi30 December 2005.

The Board sets the Company’s remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee (‘the Committee’)
makes recommendations to the Board within its
agreed terms of reference (available on the Company’s
website www.csr.com or from the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office) on the Company’s
framework of executive remuneration and its cost.

It also determines on behalf of the Board, specific
remuneration packages for each of the executive
directors and for the Chairman. The Committee
administers the Company's share incentive plans
for employees and monitors and makes
recommendations on the level and structure of
remuneration for senior management who report
to the Chief Executive. The Board itself determines
the remuneration of the non-executive directors.
No director plays a part in any discussion about their
own remuneration.

During the year, Mr Whybrow stood down as
chairman of the Committee and Mr Mackintosh was
appointed as chairman. The other current members
of the Committee, all of whom are independent
non-executive directors within the definition of the
Code are set out on page 33 and the Company
Secretary acts as its secretary. Mr Scarisbrick was
amember of the Committee until 1 November 2005.
None of the members of the Committee has any
perscnal financial interest (other than as shareholders),
conflicts of interests arising from cross-directorships
or day-to-day involvemnent in running the business
of the Company. An evaluation of the performance
of the Committee was conducted during the year
in regards to which more information is contained
in the Corporate Governance report on page 32.

The Committee has access to detailed external
research from independent consultants.

For the period to May. 2005 professional advice was
provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and
PinsentMasons LLP each of whom were appointed
by the Commiittee. For the period since October 2005,
professional advice has been provided by New Bridge
Street Consultants LLP and Slaughter and May, the
latter advising the Committee in respect of the service
agreement for Mr Scarisbrick, Both advisers were
appointed by the Committee. Slaughter and May

act aslegal advisers :to the Company generally.

New Bridge Street Consultants LLP provides no

other services tc the Company.

In determining the remuneration policies
and levels for the year, the Committee consulted
Mr Hodgson (Chief Executive Officer) and following
his appointment on 1 December 2005 as CEQ
Designate, Mr John Scarisbrick, about its proposals
and invited them to attend Committee meetings,
except where their own remuneration was discussed.
Further information on meetings held and directors’
attendance is disclosed in the Corporate Governance
report on pages 32 to 35.

The Directors’ report on remuneration for the year
ended 31 December 2004 was approved by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held in
May 2005. As required by the Companies Act,
shareholders will be invited to approve this report at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 2 May
2008.

This report has been prepared in accordance with
Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1885. The report
also meets the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority and
describes how the Board has applied the Principles of
Good Governance relating to directors' remuneration.

The Act requires the auditors to report to the
Company’s members on certain parts of the Report of
the Remuneration Commitiee and to state whether in
their opinion those parts of the report have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985. The report has therefore been divided into
separate sections for audited and unaudited
information.

Unaudited information

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration policy for the executive directors
Executive remuneration packages are designed

in order to attract, motivate and retain employees
of the highest calibre required by the Group in order
to achieve its objectives, to meet the needs of our
customers and enhance value to our shareholders.
There are five main elements of the remuneration
package for executive directors and senior
management, which include medium and long
term incentives comprising basic annual salary,
benefits-in-kind, a money purchase pension,
acash bonus plan and participation in the Company's
share incentive plans.

The Company’s policy is that a substantial
proportion of the remuneration of the executive
directors should be performance-related. The
payment of both cash bonuses and the vesting
of share incentives are subject to meeting
performance conditions established by the
Committee at the beginning of each financial year
reflecting what, at that time, the Committee considers
to be demanding targets. These targets are set taking

, appropriate account of the challenging and rapidly

evolving market in which the Group operates,
and the expectations of the investment community
on the Company’s potential future performance.

A detalled review of the remuneration policy
of the Board was undertaken prior to the Company's
flotation and in November 2005 at the time of the CEO
Designate’s appointment. The Committee considers
that the present Board policy is appropriate and with
the exception of the introduction of a share ownership
guideline, EPS hurdles in respect of the vesting of
awards under the Share Option Plan and an increase
inthe annual bonus potential, do not intend making
changes to the structure or basic terms of the
incentive arrangements for executive directors.




In Novemiser 2006, John Hodgson announced
his intended retirement from the Company. The
Committee considered the performance of the
Company under both the CSR ple Share Option Plan
and the CSR plc Share Award Plan and determined
that the performance conditions sheould apply to
awards in the event of his retirement but in respect
of awards under the Share Award Plan time pro rating
should not apply. The performance conditions have
been satisfied under both plans over the shortened
period to 30 December 2005. This decision was taken
in recognition of his cutstanding contribution to the
earnings growth of the Company and tc the support
provided in facilitating a smooth handover to John
Scarisbrick in the period from 1 November 2005 to
John Hodgson'’s retirement. In accerdance with the
respective rules of the plans, these awards will be
exercisable for.a period of six months from his
cessation of employment. With regard to the
unexercised stiare options under the Global Share
Option Plan, the Committee restricted the exercise
periodtothe period of two years and three months
from the date of retirement. No enhancements have
been made to any element of his package and the
bonus payablé is in line with terms for the other
executive directors.

In December 2005 the Company appointed
John Scarisbrick as CEQ Designate. With his
extensive experience in the telecommunications
and semiconductor sectors and his knowledge of
CSR, his successful appointment was crucial to the
future performance of the Company. To facilitate his
recruitment, it was agreed that options and share
awards would be made under the Company’s Share
Option Plan and Share Award Plan effective from
his appointment. In addition given these exceptional
circumstances on recruitment, the Company has
conditionally awarded 100,000 deferred shares.
These incentive awards are explained in more detalil
inthis report. The Committee felt these awards
were necessary and appropriate for a successful
recruitment and consistent with the Committee’s
policy that a substantial proportion of remuneration
should be in the form of long term incentives.

Basic salary .

An executive director’s basic salary is reviewed by
the Committee prior to the beginning of each year and
when an individual changes position or responsibility.
When making a determination as to the appropriate
remuneration, the Committee considers remuneration
practices within the Group as a whole and where
considered relevant, consults objective research on
companies withinthe Group’s UK listed peers with an
international focus. The target salary is at the median,
with the opportunity to go above this level, subject to
sustained individual performance. With the exception
of MrHodgson, who was paid in US Dollars, and

Mr Scarisbrick, who is paid part of his remuneration

in US Dollars and part in Pounds Sterling, the
executive directors are paid in Pounds Sterling.
Details of the basic salary of the executive directors
for the period ending 30 December 2005 are set
forth in the table on page 45.

Current salaries at February 2006 are :

John Scarisbrick $700,000
James Collier $434,361
Paul Goodridge $390,038
Glenn Collinson $390,038

Increases that took effect from 1 January 2005 and

1 January 2008 have been felt appropriate to mest
the policy of mid market base pay set against UK
listed companies of similar size and international
focus and reflecting that the Company is competing
in a global market. The appointment of the CEG
Designate highlighted the need to maintaina
competitive package within a highly challenging and
evolving industry in which the Company has a market
leading position yet competes with significantly larger
overseas based companies. The Committee still feels
that UK listed companies are the correct benchmark
yet will keep this under review as the Company
develops and expands further. Over the two years
since flotation the profile of the Company’s senior
executives has increased significantly with diluted
EPS rising from $0.03 per share in 2003 to $0.62

per share in 2005. This has been reflected by an
increase in share price of 368% since flotation.

Benefits-in-kind

The executive directors receive certain benefits-in-kind,
comprising private medical insurance, life assurance
of four times basic salary, and personal accident
insurance and subsistence expenses. Mr Scarisbrick
has been provided with a relocation allowance and
homebuyer protection to facilitate re-location to
Cambridge, where the Company’s head office is
located, subject to his moving in the next three years.

Cashbonus plan

The Committee is responsible for determining on
what basis to incentivise employees, including
executive directors, through a cash bonus plan.
The Committee establishes against defined targets
the minimum and subsequent thresholds at which
a bonus will be payable and the maximum potential
award. In setting appropriate bonus thresholds and
targets, the Committee may refer to the objective
research on a comparator group as noted above.
The Committee seeks to apply performance
conditions which are suitably demanding and
aligned with the interests of shareholders.

For the cash bonus plan applicable to executive
directorsin 2005, the targets were set after considering
the Company’s budgeted operating profit and market
expectations. The budget was agreed based upon
cbjectives which were considered to be appropriate
and stretching against the background of an operating
profit for the year ended December 2004 of $58.5m.

Targets were set that required operating profit
to reach $81.6 million for the minimum award of
3.3% of basic salary rising on a straightline basis
10 $91.5 million for an award of 20% and thereafter
increasing on a straightline basis to the maximum
award of 50% of basic salary for an operating profit
of $103.5m or above. Mr Scarisbrick did not
participate in the cash bonus plan for the year to
30 December 2005. For each of the other execLtive

_directors an award of 50% of basic salary was

made in February 20086.
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In accordance with the terms of his service agreement,
the maximum bonus potential for 2008 is 100% of
salary for Mr Scarisbrick. Following the November
2005 remuneration review, the Committee decided
to increase the maximum bonus potential from 50%
to 80% of salary for the other executive directors.
This brings packages more into line with those of its
UK listed benchmark group thereby maintaining a
mid market competitive remuneration position
foliowing a strong period of growth since flotation
and takes appropriate account of the fact that the
Company is competing in a global market. Targets for
the bonus plan for 2008 are also based on operating
profits for the 52 weeks ending 28 December 2006
and taking account of market expectations.

Share option plans

The Company has four share option plans, intended
to facilitate the motivation and retention of employees.
Two of the plans were established prior to the
Company’s flotation, being the Founders Share
Option Plan and the Global Share Option Plan.
Whilst not all the awards under these two plans
have fully vested, the schemes are closed for the
purpose of any new awards, and neither scheme
was used during 2005 for grants to executive
directors or to other employees.

Following shareholder approval at the 2004
Annual General Meeting, the Company established
the CSR plc Share Option Scheme (the ‘CSOP").
The reason for the introduction of this scheme was
to incentivise the executive directors and employees
whilst aligning their interests more closely with those
of the Company's shareholders following the
Company'’s flotation. The Committee has
responsibility for supervising the CSOP and the
grant of options in accordance with its rules.

Options granted may be exercised between three
and ten years after the date of grant, subject to the
Company satisfying predetermined performance
conditions. The performance criterion is based on
growth in the Company’s Earnings Per Share (EPS).
For those awards made in 2005 to vest, the EPS
growth must be greater than the growth in the Retall
Prices Index plus a compound 4% per annum over a
fixed period of three financial years beginning in 2005.
No re-testing is permitted. The criteria, which was
determined at the start of 2005, was considered by
the Committee to be challenging given the financial
performance of the Company to that point, the
requirement for sustained growth over the three years
and the fact that the Company would for the first time
be paying corporation tax in the performance period.

The performance criterion, which applies to all
participants, including executive directors, was chosen
to ensure that the vesting of benefits was aligned
to improved financial performance of the Company,
from which shareholders would also benefit.

The rules of the CSOP do not allow for options
to be granted at a discount to the Company’s share
price at the date of grani.

The Company’spolicy is to grant options to
executive directors at the discretion of the Committee
up to amaximum of 200% of salary, taking into account
individual performance. Pursuant to the rules of the
CSOP, the Commiittee also reserves to its discretion
the right to grant awards at a higher proportion of
basic salary and which, in exceptional circumstances
only, could be up to 400% of basic salary.

[

Under the service agreement entered into with
John Scarisbrick, awards equivalent to 400% of his
basic salary will be made in equal instalments of a
quarter every three months commencing December
2005 and concluding in September 2006. These
opticns cannot be exercised until the third anniversary
of each grant and will be dependent upon achieving
the performance condition pursuant to the rules of
the CSOP for awards granted in 2005.

itisintended that awards made in 2006 to other
executive directors will vest according to stretching
EPS targets which for 2006 awards will provide for the
proportion of the award that vests to increase against
pre-determined thresholds set by the Committee
subject to the Company mesting or exceeding those
thresholds. No options will vest if the growth in the
Company's EPS is below a compound 12% plus RPL.
If the Company’s EPS growth meets or exceeds a
compound 12% plus RPI, 30% of the share opticns
will vest, If the Company's EPS growth meets or exceeds
14% plus RPI an additional 50% of the share options
will vest. If the Company’s EPS growth meets or exceeds
acompound 17% plus RP! all options will vest.

The Company also operates an Inland Revenue
approved SAYE Share Option Scheme for eligible
employees under which options may be granted at
a discount of up to 20% of market value. Executive
directors are eligible to participate in the SAYE Share
Option Scheme.

Performance share awards

At the Annual General Meeting held on 4 May 2005,
shareholders approved the introduction of a new
Share Award Plan called the CSR Share Award Plan.
The first awards under the Share Award Plan were
made in May 2005. Awards are made to employees
at the discretion of the Committee. Awards for all
participating employees are subject to a three year
retention period and the requirement that, subject
to certain mitigating factors, the participant is an
employee at the end of the retention period.

In addition, for executive directors and other
senior employees, vesting of the Share Awards
is subject to stretching targets based on Total
Shareholder Return, (“TSR") over the fixed three year
retention period with an additional requirement that
the Company should have achieved a sustained
improvement in underlying financial performance over
the same three year period. In measuring the TSR,
itis averaged over the three month periods prior
to the beginning and the end of the retention period.

The Committee will assess the performance
of the Company’s TSR performance against a
comparator group of UK and overseas companies.
The constituent members of the comparator
group are shown opposite. The comparator group
comprises international companies that are either
customers, suppliers or competitors of CSRin
the telecommunications and semiconductor
industries with whom the Committee considers the
performance of the Company can most appropriately
be compared. There is nc intention to change the
comparator group from that established for the
awards madein 2005.

For the awards made in May 2005 the Committee
has determined certain thresholds which have to be
satisfied In order for part or all of the award to vest.

If the TSR performance is below the median of the
comparator group, no shares will vest. If the




performanceis at median, 30% of the shares will
vest, whilst for performance between median and
the upper quartile the proportion of shares which will
vest is determined on a straightline basis pro-rata
between 30% and 100%. For performance in the
upper quartile or higher, 100% of the shares will vest.
The award lapses if the performance condition has
not been satisfied at the end of the retention pericd.

In the event that the TSR performance meets
the conditions:of vesting, the Committee will, prior
to vesting, also consider the underlying financial
performance of the Company and whether in light
of this performance, vesting should be permitted.
The Committee will in a year in which an award
vests, report to shareholders on the underlying
financial performance which was considered when
approving vesting.

The adoption of TSR as the primary performance
criteria, which applies to executive directors and other
senior employees, was chosen to ensure that the
vesting of benefits was directly aligned to the interests
of shareholders. The inclusion within the performance
criteria of the consideration of the underlying financial
performance of the Company was adopted to ensure
that at the vesting of the award appropriate account
is taken of the extent to which the Company’s own
performance has contributed to the growth in

shareholder value. These criterion were adopted
following consultation with the Company’s advisers
and institutional shareholders. ’

The Committee considers that these performance
conditions are appropriate for the form of award and
are suitably stretching. -

The share awards are intended tc reward
strong relative performance, whilst share options
will continue to reward absolute performance.

In keeping with the share option plan, the Committee
will reserve the right to grant awards at a proportion
of basic salary normally up to a maximum of 100%

of salary (200% in exceptional circumstances).

Under the service agreement entered into
with Mr Scarisbrick on 1 November 2005, awards
equivalent to 200% of his basic salary will be made
in equal instalments of a quarter every three months
commencing in December 2005 and concluding
in September 2006. These awards will not vest until
the third anniversary of each award and subject
to the satisfaction of the performance conditions.

The table below summarises awards made in
2005 under the CSR Share Award Plan, being the
first year in which such awards were made, and the
total awards currently held by each executive director
at 30 December 2005.

Name Date of award Award made Award Price Award Interests at 30 Performance
during the year vesting date December 2005 Cycle

JDY Collier 5May 2005 18,850 £3.18 5May 2008 18,850 1 January 2005 to
i 31 December 2007

G Collinson ! 5May 2005 17,000 £3.18 5May 2008 17,000 1 January 2005to
31 December 2007

JSHodgson' 5May 2005 44,850 £3.18 28 February 44,850 1 January 2005to
| 2006 . 30 December 2005

PGG Goodridge  5May 2005 17,000 £3.18 5May 2008 17,000 1 January 2005to
' 31 December 2007

J Scarisbrick 15December 22,557 £8.93 15 December 22,557 1 January 200510
2005 2008 31 December 2007

' As explained above,;me performance periad has been curtailed on MrHodgson's retirement to 30 December 2005,

Total Shareholder Return comparator group of companies
The following table shows the comparator companies for determining the relative TSR performance of

the Company..

ARM Holdings plc Hewlett-Packard Company STMicroelectronics N.V.

ASE Test Inc. Infineon Technologies AG SigmaTel, Inc.

ASML Holding NV INTELCORPORATION SILICON LABORATORIES INC.

Analog Devices Inc Logitech International SA Skyworks Solutions, Inc.

Apple Computer, Inc. Marvell Technology Group Ltd Spirent plc

Atheros Communications, Inc Motorola, Inc. Synopsys Inc.

austriamicrosystems AG National Semiconductor Corporation TTP Communications plc

Bookham, Inc. | Nokia Oy] Taiwan Semiconductor
Manufacturing Company Limited

Broadcom Corporation Nordic Semiconductor ASA TERADYNE, Inc.

Cirrus Logic Inc.

PMC-Sierralnc.

Texas Instruments Incorporated

Conexant Systems, Inc

Plantronics Inc

Wavecom SA

Dellinc. . QUALCOMM Incorporated Wolfson Microelectronics plc
Dialog Semiconductor Plc Researchin Motion Ltd
GN Store Nord A/S SIRF Technology, Holdings Inc

CSRplc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2005 43




Reportofthe
Remuneraticn
Committee
continued

44 Changing the way the world connects

No significant amendments are proposed to be made
to the terms and conditions of any entitlement of an
executive director under these share incentive plans.
The level of award is considered each year in the light
of performance. )

The Company monitors the awards of shares
made under the various share plans which it operates
in relation to their effect on dilution limits. Following
shareholder approval at the 2004 AGM, the Company
is able to make selective share awards while

maintaining the traditional overall 10% limit on awards

as aproportion of the issued share capital inany
rolling 10 year period.

Pension arrangements

Three of the executive directors are members of

the Cambridge Silicon Radio Retirement Benefits
Scheme (‘the UK Pension Plan’) which is an Inland
Revenue approved money purchase (defined
contribution) scheme operated for eligible employees
in the United Kingdom. Mr Scarisbrick participates
inthe US based 401K plan and is a member of the
UK Pension Plan. Mr Hodgson is not a member of
the 401K plan or the UK Pensicn Plan.

Contributions are determined as a percentage
of the employee’s gross basic salary. Details of the
actual contributions made by the Group to the
Pension Plan on behalf of the executive directors
are set outin the table on page 46.

With the exception of Mr Scarisborick, whois
entitled to retire at age 58, normal retirement age
is 65 for employees and executive directors.
QOther than basic salary, no element of the directors’
remuneration is pensicnable.

Under Inland Revenue rules, to the extent
that a director’s benefits from a company scheme
are restricted by limits set by the Inland Revenue,
payments may be made to funded unapproved
retirement benefit schemes or the equivalent cash
sum paid to the executive. Mr Scarisbrick has
terms allowing him to receive this benefit. No such
arrangements are in place for the other executive
directors of the Comppany.

Issue of Shares

Necessary for the successful recruitment of and
pursuant to the service agreement with Mr Scarisbrick,
he was on 15 December 2005 conditionally awarded
100,000 shares in the Company. The shares vest

in three instalments dependent on continued
employment and payment by Mr Scarisbrick of

the nominal value of the shares. Commencing 30
November 2008 fifty per cent vests. Thereafter on
30 November 2009 twenty five per cent vests and
on 30 November 2010 the remaining twenty five

per cent vests.

Share Ownership

During 20086 the Board will be adopting as part of its
remuneration policies, a requirement for executive
directors to hold ordinary shares in the Company in
order to be eligible td participate fully in the share
incentive plans. The policy reflects the Company's
belief that its executive directors should also be
shareholders. Executive directors have 5 years from
introduction of the requirement or appointment to the
Board in which to establish a shareholding which can
be satisfied through the retention of shares derived
from the exercise of \(ested awards under the

Company’s share incentive plans. The executive
directors are required to hold shares equivalent
to 100% of their basic annual salary.

Performance graph

The graph below shows the Company'’s performance,
measured by total shareholder return, compared
with the performance of the FTSE 250 index.

The FTSE 250 index has been selected for this
comparison because it is a broad equity index of
which CSR plc is a constituent ccmpany. The graph
covers the period since the Company was listed on
the Londen Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ contracts

It is the Company’s policy that executive

directors should have contracts of an indefinite term.
All executive directors have a service contract which

is subject to one year’s notice from the Company.
Each of Mr Collier, Mr Collinson and Mr Goodridge
have service agreements and Mr Hodgson had a
service agreement requiring them to give six months’
notice to the Company. Mr Scarisbrick has a service
agreement requiring that he give three months’ notice
to the Company. Mr Goodridge who is proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract which provides

for a notice period by the Company of one year.

The details of the directors’ service contracts and
notice period from the Company under their respective
contracts are summarised in the table below:

Period of notice

Name of director Date of service contract

JDY Coliier 25 February 2004 1vyear
G Collinson 25 February 2004 1year
P GG Goodridge 25 February 2004 1year
JSHodgson 25 February 2004 1year
JC Scarisbrick 1 November 2005 1year

In the event of termination, a director would be entitled
to a payment not exceeding one year's basic salary.
In an appropriate case, the Company would have
regard to the departing director's duty to mitigate loss.

Non-executive directors

All non-executive directors have specific terms of
engagement provided in formal letters of appointment
and their remuneration is determined by the Board
within the limits set by the Articles of Association

and based on independent surveys of fees paid to
non-executive directors of similar companies which
are considered annually. The non-executive directors
are appointed for a fixed three year term, subject to
re-appointment by the shareholders. The terms and
conditions of appointment are available for inspection
at the Company’s registered office during normal




business hours on request to the Company Secretary
and up to 15 minutes prior to and at the Company’s
Annual General Mesting.

The fees payable to non-executive directers
were reviewed in December 2005. The basic fee
paid to each non-executive director for the 52 weeks
to 30 December-2005 was £32,000. An additional
fee of £5,000 was paid for the chairmanship of
the audit comrittee, whilst for acting as chair
of the remuneration and nomination committees,
the fee pald was £3,000. Mr Tucker who is the senior
independent director was paid £3,000 for acting
inthat capacity.

Non-executive directors do not receive any bonus,
do not participate in awards under the Company’s
share schemes and are not eligible to join the
Company’s pension schemes. Mr John Whybrow and
Mr David Tucker who are proposed for re-election and
Mr Anthony Carlisle who is proposed for election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, being non-
executive directors, do not have a service contract.

Audited information
Directors’ emoluments orfees

Date of letter Duration of
Name of director of appointment appointment
JWWhybrow 17 December 2003 3years!
D Tucker 23 January 2004 3years
R Mackintosh 16 March 2004 3years
ACarlisle 1 July 2005 3years

* Mr Whybrow's term of appointment commenced on 2 March 2004, being the
date of the Company's admission to the Landon Stock Exchange.

Outside appointments

Executive directors are entitled to accept
appointments outside the Company provided that the
Chairman’s permission is sought prior to accepting
the appointment. During the year Mr Collinson acted
as a non-executive director of Sonaptic Limited and
fees of £6,581 were paid to CSR plc.

The emoluments or fees of directors serving during the year, for the financial years 2004 and 2005 were as follows:

' Fees/Basic salary Berefitsinkind  Annual bonuses 2005 total 2004 total
Nameofdirector | $ $ 3 $ $
Executive
JDY Collier 356,794 531 133,439 490,784 369,259
G Callinson 321,114 531 120,095 441,740 326,634
P G G Goodridge 321,114 531 111,199 432,844 339,318
JSHodgson 540,000 20,187 187,500 747,667 564,126
JC Scarisbrick 58,333 - - 58,333 -
PLO’Donovan; - - - - 13,3783
Non-executive
JWWhybrow | 224,780 - - 224,780 139,671
D Tucker ; 71,359 - - 71,359 47,333
R Mackintosh 58,770 - - 59,770 33,248
ML Shone* 14,234 - - 14,234 63,013
J C Scarisbrick' 52,305 - - 52,305 22,697
AECGC Carlisle 28,620 - - 28,620 -
AArs’(Gilde IT Fund BWt - - - - 2,586
L Garrett "8t . - - - - 2,424
DrH Hauser’ (Amadeus | LP)* - - - - 2,586
S Paterson (Scottish Equity Partners 1) - - - - 2,586
Total 2,048,423 21,760 552,233 2,622,416 1,928,854

|
Feesto third parties - 10,182

The salary for Mr Hodgson was paid in US Dallars, The salary for Mr Scarisbrick was paid partly in US Dollars and partly in Pounds Sterling. The satary and fees
for other directors were paid in Pounds Steriing, but denorminated in US Dollars for reporting purposes, consistent with the accounting policies of the Company.
"Stood down 31 March 2005, “Total fees of $10,182 were paid in 2004 to third parties in respect of the services of A Arts, L Garrett, H Hauser and S Paterson as
indicated in the table above. tResigned 30 January 2004. “Resigned 21 January 2004.

Aggregate directors’ remuneration
The aggregate directors' remuneration was as follows:

2005 2004

$ $

Emoluments 2,622,416 1,928,854
Gains on exercise of share options 20,485,050 1,686,400
Noticnal gains from the issue of shares at less than fair value - 339,005
Money purchase pension contributions 139,863 87,106
Total ‘ 23,247,329 4,041,365
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Directors’ pension entitlements

- Contributions paid by the Group in respect of the directors during the year were as follows;

2005 2004

$ $
JDY Collier 49,951 31,634
G Collinson 44,956 27,799
P GG Goodridge 44,956 25,808
P LO’Donovan - 1,865
Total 136,863 87,108

Directors’ share oﬁtions

Aggregate emoluments disclosed on page 45 do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire
ordinary shares in the Company granted to or held by the directers.

Details of the options éxercised during the year were as follows:

Gains an
; Number Cost  Marketvalue exercise
Name of director Notes ) Grantdescription Date ofexercise exercised per share pershare Gain 2004
£ Note 0% s
JDY Caollier Founder Grant 21 September2005 147,000 0.003 6.90 1,834,286 -
' FounderGrant  21September2005 352,998 0.054 8.90 4,372,611 -
G Collinson - FounderGrant  23May 2005 147,000 0.003 3.58 961,476 -
" Founder Grant 23 May 2005 147,000 0.054 3.58 947,945 -
. Founder Grant 23 May 2005 75,000 0.503 3.58 421,973 -
J 8 Hodgson . StarterGrant 18 March 2005 150,000 0.156 3.50 962,424 1,653,371
i Starter Grant 8June 2005 300,000 0.156 3.75 1,881,524 —
' Starter Grant 21 September2005 300,000 0.158 6.90 3,860,395 -
. Starter Grant 6December2005 300,000 0.156 9.10 4,928,050 =
P GG Goodridge . Starter Grant 8June 2005 41,838 0.503 3.75 249,678 33,029
. Starter Grant 8June 2005 2,626 0.503 3.75 15,671 -
. Starter Grant 21 September 2005 2,850 0.503 8.90 32,984 -
Dec 2000
,  Bonus Grant 21September2005 14,204 2.385 8.80 116,032 —
ML Shone” Note () 13 July 2005 400,000 0.054 441 3,058,645 -
Note () 29 July 2005 200,000 0.054 4900 1,705,218 -
Note (i) 24 October 2005 200,000 0.054 8.60 2,318,569 -
Note (i) 24 November2005 97,100 0.054 8.68 1,442,790 -
Note (i) 21December2005 50,000 0.054 9.00 778,598 -

*Stood down 31 March 2005

Note (): These share options Were granted under a specific agreement with Mr Shone with vesting being subject to achieving the following performance criteria:
a) Thereisatakeover or listing which places a value on the whole of the Company of at least $ 100 million before 8 April 2006, or
b Before 8 April 2004, the turnover of the Group reaches at least $75 million in any 12 month period and:

i) theprofitafter taxis atleast 10% of turnoverinthat 12 month period; or
iy theproftbeforetaxis atleast 20% of turnover inthat 12 month period.

Turnover and profitare deternined by reference to the management accounts for the relevant 12 month period.
These criteria were met in March 2004, following the listing of the Company on the London Stack Exchange.
Note {ii: The US $ gain represénts the number of options exercised multiplied by the market value per share shown in pounds sterling and translated at the

US $/pounds sterling exchange rate prevaling on the date of exercise.




Details of opticns for directors who served duri ng the year are as follows:

1.Jan 2005
{ordate of 30 Dec 2005 Exercise
Name appointment) {ordate Price Date from
of Director Scheme Note {v) Granted Exercised of resignation) Note (V) which exercisable Expiry date
JDYCollier Founders 147,000 - 147,000 - 0.0033 01 Apr0O0Note (i) 01 AprQ9
Founders 735,000 - 352,998 382,002 0.0537 Q1 Apr 00 Note () 01Sep 10
Global 120,000 - - 120,000 0.5033 10May 01 Note () 10May 10
CSOP 75,000 - - 75,000 2.00 26 Feb 07 Note (v)) 26 Feb14
SAYE 5,018 - - 5,013 1.88 01 May 07 Note (vi)) 01 NovQ7
CSOP - 62,350 - 62,350 3.21 05 May 08 Note (viil) 05May 15
Performance award - 18,850 - 18,850 0.001 05 May 08 Note (ix) 05May 15
G Collinson Founders 147,000 - 147,000 - 0.0033 01 Apr 00 Note () 01 Apr09
Founders 147,000 - 147,000 - 0.0537 01 Apr Q0 Note (i) 01S8ep 10
Gilobal 75,000 - 75,000 - 0.5033 10May 01 Note (i) 10May 10
CSOP 11,148 - - 11,148 2.35 26 Feb 07 Note (vi) 26 Feb 14
CSopP 55,852 - - 55,852 2.00 26 Feb 07 Note (vi) 26Feb14
SAYE 5,013 - - 5,013 1.88 01 May 07 Note (vi) 01 Nov (07
CSOP - 56,100 - 56,100 3.21 05 May 08 Note (viii) 05May 15
Performance award - 17,000 - 17,000 0.001 05 May 08 Note (ix) 05May 15
J S Hodgson Global 2,085,792 - 1,050,000 1,015,792 0.1563 19 Feb 01 Note (i) 27 May 08
CsopP 120,000 - 120,000 2.00 28 Feb 08 Note (v)) 28 Aug 06
CSOP = 89,000 - 89,000 3.21 28 Feb 06 Note (viil) 28 Aug 06
Performance award - 44,850 - 44,850 0.001 28 Feb 08 Note (ix) 27 Aug 08
P G G Goodridge Global 47,314 - 47,314 — 0.5033 01 Sep 01 Note (i) 01 Sep 10
Global 50,000 - 14,204 35,796 2.385 31 Dec 01 Note () 31Dec10
Global 2,400 - - 2,400 2.385 31 Dec 02 Note () 31Dec 11
Global 37,500 - - 37,500 1.01 31 Dec 02 Note () 25Nov 12
Global 60,000 - - 60,000 1.01 30 Sep 03 Note (i) 308ep 12
Gilobal 40,000 - - 40,000 1.025 18 Nov 04 Note (i) 18 Nov 13
CSOP 12,765 - - - 12,765 2.35 26 Feb 07 Note (vi) 26Feb 14
CSOP 54,235 - - 54,235 2.00 26 Feb 07 Note (vi) 26Febi14
SAYE 5,013 — - 5,013 1.88 01 May 07 Note {vii) 01 Nov Q7
CSOP - 56,100 - 56,100 3.21 05 May 08 Note (viii) 05May 15
Performance award - 17,000 - 17,000 0.001 05 May 08 Note (ix) 05May 15
JC Scarisbrick  Performance award - 22,557 - 22,557 0.001 15 Dec 08 Note (ix) 15Dec 15
CSOP = 45,114 - 45114 8.93 15 Dec 08 Note (viii) 15Dec15
Recruitment award - 100,000 - 100,000 0.001 30 Nov 08 Note (x) 30Nov10
ML Shone* Note (iv) and {xi) 947,100 - 947,100 - 0.0537 Note (iv) 01 Sep 08
Total 4,965,145 528,921 2,927,616 2,566,450

*Stood down 31 March 2005.

Note (i: Vesting of option 20% on anniversary of grant, then 5% each subsequent calendar quarter end (31 March, 30 June, 30 September, 31 December) for 16 quarters.
Note (ii): Vesting of option 25% on anniversary of grant, then 6.26% each subsequent calendar quarter end (31 March, 30 June, 30 September, 31 December) for 12 quarters.
Note (jif): Vesting of option 5% each calendar quarter end (31 March, 30 June, 30 Septerrber, 31 December) for 20 guarters.
Note (v): These share options were granted under aspecific agresment with Mr Shone with vesting being subject to achieving the following performance criteria:
a) Thereisatake over orlisting which places a value an the whale ofthe Company of atleast $100 million before 8 April 2008; or
b) Before 8 April 2004, the turnover of the Group reaches at least $75 milionin any 12 month period and:

i) theprofit after taxis at least 10% of turnoverin that 12 month period; or

i) theprofitbefore tax s atleast 20% of turnover in that 12 month period.
Turnover and profit are determined by reference to the management accounts for the relevant 12 month period.
These criteria were met in March 2004, following the listing of the Company on the London Stock Exchange.
Note (v): Optionnumbers are adjusted to reflect changes to the share capital structure onfisting in March 2004,
Note {vi): Options granted to Directors under the CSOP scheme in 2004 vest after 3 years and have certain performance criteria attached. The options vest in proportions from 10% — 100% dependent upon
the EPS achieved by the Group for the year ended 31 Decembér 2008, the target EPS isin the range $0.17 to $0.26. Thereafter the option may be exercised for the rest of its ten year life without further test.
Note (vii): Options granted under the SAYE scheme vest after 3 years and must be exercised within 6 months of vesting date.
Note {viii): Options granted under the CSOP scheme in 2005 vast after 3 years and have certain performance criteria attached. For options to vest, the EPS growth must be greater than the growth in the RPI
plus acompound 4% per annum over a fixed period of three financial years beginning in January 2005. The performance period in respect of the options granted to Mr Hodgson ended on 30 December 2005,
Note (x): Shares granted under the Share Award scheme in 2005 vest after 3 years and have cartain performance conditions attached. The shares vest in proportions from 30% to 100% dependent on the
Company's TSR against a basket of comparator companies established at the start of the three year period and thereafter onfy if the Company’s underfying financial performance has improved to the
satisfaction of the Remuneration Committee, detalls of which shall be disclosed to shareholders inreports of the Remuneration Committee subsequent tothe determination of the Committes.
The performance period in respect of shares granted to Mr Hodgson ended on 30 December 2005,
Note (x): To facllitate the recruitment of Mr Scansbrick, and as pan oftheterms of his appomtmem the Company agreed toaward Mr Scarisbrick 100,000 ordinary shares in the Company. This award is
subject ta vesting after the satisfaction of conditions relating to'service. Fifty per cent will vest on 30 November 2008, twenty five per cent willvest on 30 November 2008 and the balance will vest on
30 November 2010, Mr Scarisbrick will subscribe for such sharesin cash at a price per share equal to their nominal value,
Note (xi): Mr Shone exercised his optionsinthe period after he $tood down from the Board and prior to 30 December 2005.
The market price of the ordinary shares at 30 Decemnber 2005 was £9.36 and the range during the year was £3.0110 £9.36.

Approval
This report was approved by the Board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

QWIL uy\M

' R Mackintosh
Chairman, Remuneration Commiittee
28 February 2006
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Statement of Directors’ reéponsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements. The directors are reguired to prepare financial statements
for the Group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and have also elected to prepare financial statements forthe
Companyin accordance with IFRS. Company law requires the directors to orepare such financial statements i accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that ﬁnajnc lal statements present fairly for each financial year the Company’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows. This requiresthe faithfulirepresentation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the
definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Boards’ ‘Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements'. A fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards. Directors are also required to: :

* properly select and apply accounting policies;
|
o present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information; and

o provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS s insufficient to enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events and conditions onthe entity’s financial position and financial performance.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities and for
the preparation of a directors’ report and directors' remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 19885.

Legislationin the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements differs from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independentauditors’ Q'ep@rt

Independent auditors’ report to the members of CSR plc

We have audited the Group and individual Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of CSR plc for the period ended 30 December
2005 which comprise the consolidated incomé statement, the consclidated and individual Company balance sheets, the consolidated and individual
Company cash flow statements, the consolidated and individual Company statements of changes in shareholders' equity, the statement of accounting
policies andthe related notes 1 to 36. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also
audited the informationin the directors’ remuneration report that is described as having been audited.

This reportis made sclely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in anauditors’ report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for thisireport, or for the opinicns we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report, the directors’ remuneration report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards {FRSs) as adopted for use in the European Union are set outinthe
statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Qurresponsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited in accordance
with relevant United Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the relevant framework and whether the
financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulations. We also report to you if the Company has not kept proper accounting records,

if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors' remuneration
and transactions with the Company and other members of the Group is not disclosed.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not complied with any of the four directors’ remuneration disclosure requirements specified
for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority. These comprise the amount of each element in the remuneration package and
information on share options, details of long term incentive schemes, and money purchase and defined benefit schemes. We give a statement, to the
extent possible, of details of any non-compliance.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not reguired to consider whether the
board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance
procedures orits risk and control procedures.-

We read the directors’ report and the other information contained in the annual report for the above period as described in the contents sectionincluding
the unaudited part of the directors’ remuneration report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion o

We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the directors'
remuneration report described as having been audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company

and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adeguacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited. ‘

Opinion ‘
In our opinion: '

« the group financial statemnents give atrue and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted for use inthe European Union, of the state
of the group’s affairs as at 30 December 2005 and ofits profit for the period then ended;

« the individual company financial statements give atrue and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted for use in the European Union
as applied in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1985, of the individual Company’s affairs as at 30 December 2005;

¢ the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited have been properly prepared
inaccordance with the Companies Act 1885 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Separate opinioninrelationto IFRS

As explained in Note 2, the Group in addition to complying with its legal obligation to comply with IFRSs as adopted for use inthe European Union;
has also complied with the IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Accordingly, in our opinion the financial statements
give atrue and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 December 2005 and of its profit for the period then ended.

Deloitte & Touche LLP ‘
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditers, Cambridge, United Kingdom
28 February 2008 '

,
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Consolidated income statement

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

Notes 2005 2004
) $'000 $'000
Revenue ) 4 486,531 253,146
Costofsales (258,418) (134,763)
Gross profit 228,113 118,383
Research and development (60,340) (27,583)
Sales and marketing (38,696) (20,864)
Administrative expenses (17,141) (11,479)
QOperating profit . 111,936 58,457
Investment income 4 3,213 1,213
Finance costs (783) (690)
Profitbefore tax o 114,366 58,880
Tax 8 (31,210) 2,579
Profit for the period . §] 83,158 61,559
Earnings per share $ $
Basic ‘ 9 0.67 0.53
Diluted 9 0.62 0.48
The resuits were all derived from continuing operations.
The profitfor the period is wholly attributable to equity holders of the parent company, CSR ple.
. . f .
Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005
Notes 2008 2004
$'000 $'000
Atbeginning of period 155,485 35,393
Profit for the period 83,156 61,559
Issue of share capital ' 21 3,402 74,553
Share issue costs ‘ - (5,531)
Redemption of redeemable preference shares - (11,189)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (47) -
Share based payments . 26 2,408 700
Deferred tax benefit on share option gains 17 21,282 -
Current tax benefit on share option gains 22 13,532 -
Loss on cash flow hedges 22 (3,828) -
Net tax on cash flow hedges in equity 22 936 -
Transferred to income statement in respect of cash flow hedges 22 711 -
Atend of period ' 277,037 155,485
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Consolidated balance sheet
30 December 2005

30 December 31 December
Notes 2005 2004
$'000 $'000
Non-current assets
Gooawil : . 10 52,697 -
Otherintangible assets ‘ 11 25,508 6,350
Property, plant and equipment ' 12 22,541 6,475
Deferred tax asset 3 17 18,137 8,112
‘ 118,883 20,937
Current assets !
Inventory ; 14 69,672 30,088
Trade and other receivables 15 75,287 35,952
Treasury deposits . 15 25,000 35,000
Cashand cash equivalents ‘ 15 99,386 75,074
i 269,345 176,114
Total assets L 388,228 197,051
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 95,590 35,803
Current tax liabilities ‘ : 1,982 71
Obligations under finance leases ! 18 3,806 580
Cash flow hedges | 16 3,828 -
Provisions ‘ 20 4,056 2,346
‘ 109,212 38,800
Net currentassets . 160,133 137,314
Non-current liabilities :
Obligations under finance leases ‘ 18 1,979 1,160
Long-term provisions f 20 - 1,606
1,979 2,766
Total liabilities ' 111,191 41,566
Net assets ‘ 277,037 155,485
Equity l
- Share capital L 21 228 218
Share premium account ‘ 22 81,161 77,769
Capital redempticnreserve . ‘ 22 950 950
Merger reserve 22 61,574 61,574
Hedging reserve ‘ 22 {(2,181) -
Exchange retranslation reserve 22 47) -
Share based payment reserve ' 22 3,167 769
Retained earnings ‘ 22 132,185 14,215
Total equity ' 277,037 155,485

These financial statements were approved by ihé board of directors and authorised for issue.
They were signed on its behalf by:

P\ &,u @%An(m,

Paul Goodridge Glenn Collinson
28 February 2006 28 February 2006
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

Notes 2005 2004
$:000 $'000

Net cash from operating activities 24 94,969 33,600
Investing activities
Interest received 2,878 1,213
Sale (purchase) of treasury deposits 10,000 (35,000)
Purchases of propérty, plant and equipment (17,250) (4,827)
Purchases of intangible assets (1,423) (2,417)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 23 (64,464) —
Net cash used in investing activities (70,259) (41,031)
Financing activities
Dividends paid - (325)
Redemption of redeemable preference shares - (10,864)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (3,262) (582)
Proceeds onissue of shares 3,434 74,510
Share capital issue costs - (5,631)
Net cash from financing activities 172 57,208
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 24,882 49,777
Cash and cash equivalents atbeginning of period 75,074 25,949
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes . (570) 652)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 99,386
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements
For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

1 General information
CSRplcisaCompany incorporated in England under the Companies Act 1985. The address of the registered office is given on page 91.
The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set outin note 5 and in the business review on pages 22to 31.

These financial statements are presented in US dollars because that is the currency 6fthe primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set outin note 2.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied in theee financial
statements were inissug but not yet effective:

IFRS7 Financial instruments: Disclosures; and the related amendment to 1AS 1 on capital disclosures
IFRIC4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no materialimpact on the financial
statements of the Group except for additional disclosures on capital and financial instruments when the relevant standards come into effect for periods
commencingon or after 1 January 2007. i

2 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs), as adopted for use in

the European Union for the first time. The disclosures required by IFRS 1 concerning the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS are given innote 28.
The financial statements have also been prepared inaccordance with IFRSs adopted for use in the European Union, and therefore, comply with
Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation. :

The financial information has been prepared on the basis of all applicable {FRS, including all International Accounting Standards (/AS), Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC) rnterpretationé and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) before 30 December 2005. These include IFRS endorsed by the EU and those awaiting
formal endorsement.

The rules for first adoption of IFRS are set out in IFRS1, “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”. IFRS1 requires use
of the same accounting policies inthe IFRS transition balance sheet and for all periods presented thereafter. The accounting policies must comply
with all IFRSeffective at the reporting date for the first financial reporting under IFRS, the period 1 January 2005 to 30 December 2005.

IFRS1 permi(ts companies adopting IFRS for the first time to take exemptions from the full requirements of IFRS in the transition period.
This financial information has been prepared onthe basis of taking the following exemptions:

@ Business‘ combinations priorto 1 January 2004 have not been restated to comply with [IFRS3 “Business Combinations”.

(o) Cumulatirre translation differences on foreign operations are deemedto be zero at 1 January 2004. Any gains and losses recognised
inthe consolidated income statemerit on siibsequent disposals of foreign operations will therefore exclude translation differences arising
priorto tWe transition date.

(c)IAS32 ang IAS38 have been adopted from 1' January 2005. There is no effect on reported profits and no restatement of comparative information
is requrred

(d) Fixed ascets have not been revalued as at the date of transition. The depreciated cost has been assumed as the effective carrying value

forIFRS p\)urposes
The financialinfermation presented for the year ended 31 December 2004 has besn restated to comply with IFRS.

l

The frnancraﬂ statements have been prepared onthe historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial instruments. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

|
The financial statements cover the 52 week period from 1 January 2005 to 30 December 2005, the comparatives are presented for the year from

1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004. The financial statements are reported on a 52 week basis to be consistent with the Group’s internal reporting.

l

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of CSR plc (the Company) and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries) drawn up to the dates indicated in the primary financial statements. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
governthe financial and operating policies of an investee entity $0 as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

2 Accounting poliFies {continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued}) ‘
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries 1o bring the accounting policies used into line with those used

by the Group.

Allintra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair value,
atthe date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributabie to the business combination.

Onacquisition, the‘;‘assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition. Any excess
of the cost of acquisition over thefair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost ofthe acquisition

below the fair vale dfthe identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. discount on acauisition) is credited to profit or loss in the period of acquisition.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on'consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of astsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.

Goodwillis recogni§ed as an asset and reviewed for ir‘npairment atleast annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss
andis not subsequently reversed. ! :

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly contrdHed entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit
orloss on disposal '

Revenue recogni"tion ‘

Revenueis recogni:‘sed whenitis probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts,

VAT and other sales‘, related taxes.

1

Sales of goods areyecognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Rovyalty income is recognised upon shipment of the royalty earning product by the licences.

Forthe sale of services, revenue is recognised in accdunting pericds in which the service is rendered on a percentage of completion basis.
Revenue from postl contract support is recognised over the period of performance. The excess of service fees and post-contract support invoiced

[ '
over revenue recognised is recorded as deferred income.

Revenue is shown net of estimated provision for credit notes and returns.
Interestincome is accrued on atime basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Leasing i
Leasesare class‘\ﬁe‘ed as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under flnance leases arerecognised as assetsofthe Group at theirfair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments,
each determined aJ the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease so as to achieve a constant rate of interest onthe remaining

balance ofthe liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement.
Rentals payable uwder operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currenciecs

Thefunctional curre:ancy of the Group is the US dollar. Transactions in currencies other than US dollars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates ofthe transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
atthe rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Nori-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevalling at the date when the/fair value was determined. Gains and losses arising on retransiation are included in the net profit
orloss for the period. .

1

‘In order to hedge it.‘e exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward contracts (see page 59 for details of the Group’s
accounting policies in respect of such derivative financial instruments).

66 Changing the way the world connects




Notes {o the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign cur/rencies {continued) :
On consolida‘tion, the assets and liabilities of the Group's overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly. Exchange

differences a"ising, ifany, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's exchange retranslation reserve. Such translation differences are
recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Governmerit grants ‘
Governmentigrants towards Japanese recruitment are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs
and are deductedin reporting the related expense.

Operating Profit
Operating profit is stated before investment income and finance costs.

Retirementbenefit costs
Payments toldefined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. Differences between contributions payable
in the period and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments inthe balance sheet.

Taxation
The tax currently payable is based on taxable proﬂt forthe year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it
excludes lterps ofincome and expensethat are taxable or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’'s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax|is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax{liabilities are generally recognisedifor all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused carried forward tax losses and unused carried

forward tax éred its can be utilised. However, such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from:

* goodwill;

sthe iniﬁa\ recognition (other thanin a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in atransaction that affects neither the tax profit
northe accounting profit;

« investrnents in subsidiaries and associates, and interests injoint ventures, where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
dlﬁerewce and itis probable that the temporary difference will not reverse inthe foreseeable future.

The carryinglamount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits wil be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax(is calculated atthetaxratesthat are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled orthe asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited inthe income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case deferred taxis also
dealt with in equity. o

Deferred taxjassets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxed levied by the same itaxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Property, p‘lant and equipment ‘

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

DeprematnoT is charged so as to write off the cost ofthe assets, less estimated residual value, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, onihe following basis:

Computer equipment 2to3years

Test equipment éto Syears

Office equipment 3years

Furniture and fittings Syears
Leaseholdimprovements rﬁinimum lease period

Residual vah‘,les are the estimated amount that thé Group would obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting estimated costs of disposal,
if the asset were aready of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life, based on prices prevailing at the balance sheet date.

‘!

In general resjdual values are zero or negligiblé, dueto the technical and specialised nature of assets held.
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Notesto ﬂpe consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

2Accounting poli1cies {continued) .
Property, plant and equipment {continued) :
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, over the term

ofthe relevant lease.

|

Thegainorloss arlsjmg onthe disposal or retirement df an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
ofthe asset andis recognised inthe income statement.

Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost. Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Otherintangible %1ssets L
COtherintangible fixed assets are stated at cost or fair value for items acquired in business combinations, net of amortisation and any provision for
impairment. No an]ortisation is provided on assets in the course of construction. On other intangible fixed assets amortisation is provided at rates
calculated to write off the cost or falr value, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight line basis over its expected useful life as follows:

Software licences 3to5years
Customer contracts and relationships 3years
Purchased R&D ‘ 4 years

Residual values are the estimated amount that the Grbup would obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting estimated costs of disposal,
ifthe asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life, based on prices prevailing atthe balance sheet date.

Ingeneral residual \‘/alues are zero or negligible, due to the technical and specialised nature of assets held.
Assets held under f‘inance leases are depreciated over their expected usefullives onthe same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, overtheterm
ofthe relevantiease.

The gainorloss aris‘;lng onthedisposal or retirement ¢f an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the assetand is recognised in the income statement.

Assetsinthe cours‘e of construction are carried at cost. Depreciatiori of these assets commences when the assets are ready for theirintended use.
Research and de“velopment expenditure
Expenditure on ressarch activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. .

Aninternally gener“ated intangible asset arising from the Group's product development is recognised only if all of the following conditions are met:

» an assetis created that can be identified {suchasa new device or software);

» the project from which the asset arises meets the Group’'s criterla for assessing technical feasibility;
s it is probable thatthe assst created will generate future economic benefits; and

* the development|cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generatéd intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised|as an expense in the period in which itis incurred.

Patents and trademarks ' .

Expenditure on patents and trademarks is recognised as an expense inthe period in which it is incurred.

Impairment of tal‘ngible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

Ateach balance shieet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets qave suffered animpairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
theextent ofthe im‘pairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates
therecoverable arr‘xount ofthe cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Anintangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested forimpairment

annually and whenever there is anindication that the assetmay beimpaired.

Recovarable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash lows are discounted
totheir present vah‘hes using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

iftherecoverable a‘mount of anasset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairmant loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
ofitsrecoverable a:mount, but sothat the increased éarrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had noimpairment loss been recognised for the assét (cash-generating unit)in prior years. Areversal of animpairment loss is recognised as
income immediatély. :
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

2 Accounting policies (continued)
Inventories| ’

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories totheir present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the FIFO method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Financial ingruments j
Financial asssts and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions

ofthe instrunl‘went.
Trade receiv;‘qbles
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable

amounts,

Investments|
Investments|are recognised and derecogmsed on atrade date where a purchase cr sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of th= investment within the timeframelestablished by the market concerned, and are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs.

Investmentsiconsist of money market depasits in both USD, GBP, Euros and indian Rupees. Interest income is recorded as it accrues over the period
of the investiment at rates fixed at the time of inception.

Financial liatiiities and equity
Financialliakilities and equity instruments are Glassified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument
isany contra‘ct that evidences aresidual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Trade payables
Trade payab!es are notinterest bearing and are stated attheir nominal value.

Equity mstrupw ents :
Equityi lnstrupents issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group'slactivities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Group uses foreign exchange
forward coniracts to hedge these exposures. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the board of directors, which provides written principles on the use
of financial derivatives. The Group hedges forecast GBP, JPY, SEK and DKR expenditure for the following 11 to 15 months.

Derlvative financial instruments are initially recorded at cost and are remeasured to fairvalue at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value

of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as cash flow hedges are recognised directly in equity and the ineffective portion s
recognised immediatsly in the income statement. If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecasted transactionresults in the recognition of an
asset or liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised
in equity areincluded in the initial measurement of the asset or liability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a liability, amounts
deferredin ejquity are recognised inthe income statement in the same period in which the hedged firm commitment or forecasted transaction affects
net profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as they arise.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is scld, terminated, or exercised, or nolonger qualifies for hedge accounting.
Atthat time,|any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs.
If ahedged transactionis no longer expected to oocur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to net profit or loss for the period.

Provisions|-
Provisions for warranty and returns costs are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the Group's liability.

Provision ismade for onerous contracts at the fair value of the minimum unavoidable lease payments.

Share-bas(‘nd payment
The Group has applied the requirements of \FRS 2 Share-Based Payment. In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied
to all grantsof equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 January 2005.

]

The Groupii |>sues equity-settled share-basedipayments to certain employess, including share options with non-market based vesting conditions.
Equity settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value at the date of grant. The falr value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based paymentsis expensedona straxght line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest.
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Notes tothe consslidated financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

2 Accounting poli‘r:ies (continued)
Share-based paypent (continued)
Fair value is measurad by use of a Black-Scholes model for the majority of share options in issue. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,

based on management’s best estimate, forthe eﬁecté of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations.

For certain share options which include TSR related conditions, the fairvalue is estimated through the use of a Monte-Carlo simulation.

3 Critical accoum‘ing judgements and key sour§e$ of estimation uncertainty
Thekey assumptiops concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

l

{impairment of Go‘odwill

The Group determipes whether gocdwillis impaired at feast on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwili is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of

goodwill at 30 Decembper 2005 was $52,697,000 (2004: $nil). More details are givenin Note 10.

Inventory VaIuatiPn

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Provisions for excess or absolete inventory are recorded based upon assumptions
about future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favourable than those projected by management, additional inventory
provisions may be required. The carrying amount of inventory at 30 December 2005 was $69,672,000 (2004:$30,088,000).

Provisions :
Determining the level of provision required far returnsiand warranty claims requires management to review the historic levels of usage whilst considering
the growth inthe business and other changes which have occurred in the manufacturing cycle. The carrying amount of the provision at 30 December
2005 was $3,800,000 (2004: $1,610,000).

4 Revenue
2005 2004
) $'000 $'000
Sale of goods L . 479,281 250,850
Royalties ] | . 7,250 2,296
] . . 486,531 253,146
Investmentincome ' 3,213 1,213
: : 489,744 254,359

5Business and g‘Fographical segments
Business segments ‘
The Group has one class of business, being the design and marketing of single chip radio devices. Allinformation disclosable under IAS 14

is shown within the consolidated financial statements and the associated notes, these disclosures are not repeated below.

Geographical segments - )

The Group's operations are located in Europe, the USA and Asia. The head office is located in Europe and the manufacturing operations are
centred inAsia.
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods and services:

Salesrevenue by
geographical market

2005 2004
$'000 $'000

Europe : 54,095 40,204
USA 1 22,738 23,897
Asia : 397,584 183,880
Other 12,104 5,085
486,531 253,146
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Notes Fo the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Forthe 5;2 weeks ended 30 December 2005

5 Business ?nd geographical segments (contmued)

Geographlc‘al segments {continued)

Thefollowmg is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,

analysed by ihe geographical area inwhichthe assets are located:

Additions to property, plant

Carrying amount of and equipment and
segment assets Intanglble assets
2005 2004 2005 2004
$'000 $'000 $'000 $:000
Europe 275,168 154,571 25,120 8,563
USA 16,810 125 277 95
Asia (15,185) 789 387 61
Other 244 - - -
277,037 156,485 25,784 8,719
6 Profit for the period
Profitfor theperiod has been arrived at after charging (crediting)
) 2005 2004
$000 $'000
Net foreign exchange losses 646 383
Research and development costs 80,340 27,583
Government grants (11) 21)
Deprecxatlorp of property, plantand equxpment 4,991 2,271
Amort\satlon ofintangible assets 4,817 2,040
Staff costs (<ee note7) 54,096 23,457
341 168

Auditors’ remuneratlon for audit services (see below)

Amounts payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP and their associates by the Company and its UK subsidiary undertakings in respect of non-audit services

were $373,600 (2004: $721,000). |

A more detailed analysis of auditors’ remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below:

2005 2004
$'000 $'000

Audit services
- statutory audit 306 143
—audit-related regulatory reporting 35 25
341 168
Further assurance services 55 423

Tax services

—taxcompliance 77 24
—~taxadvisony 241 80
318 124

Other serwo=s
~other servres that giverise to a self-review threat - 10
~consultancy - 164
- 174

Fees for further assurance services principally comprise amounts payable to the auditors for due diligence on the acquisition of Clarity Technologies Inc.
in March 2005 and in their role as reporting accountants for the Group's IPQ in March 2004.
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Notes to the consolidated financiai statements (continued)

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

6 Profit for the period (continued)

Fees for consultancy services principally comprise amounts payable to the auditors for advice regarding the Group’s remuneration policies;

following the Groud 's IPQ, the auditors no longer prowde these services.

Fees for other servu“es that give rise to a self-review threat comprise amounts payable to De\ome & Touche in Taiwan for their role as the local branch
accountants. Following the [POin March, the Group took steps to replace Deloitte & Touche as local accountants in Taiwan and this relationship ended

inJuly 2004,

Adescription ofthe work of the audit committee is set ot inthe Corporate Governance report on page 33 and includes an explanation of how auditor
objectivity and independenceis safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditors.

Significant non-audit services require pre-approval by the Audit Committee.

7 Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was:
2005 2004
Number Number
Research and development 303 141
Sales and marketing 131 80
General and administrative 55 27
489 248
$'000 $'000
Their aggregate refnuneration comprised:
Salaries 46,532 19,954
Saocial security costs 4,807 1,948
Other pension costs 2757 1,555
54,096 23,457
8 Taxation
2005 2004
$'000 $000
Current tax payabls for the year 9,964 5,362
Current tax benefitirecognised in equity (note 22) 14,468 -
Current tax 24,432 5,392
Deferredtax (note 1 7) 6,778 (7,971)
31,210 (2,579
Corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2004: 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
The charge for the year can bereconciled to the profft per theincome statement as follows:
2005 2005 2004 2004
1 $'000 % $'000 %
Profit before tax: ‘ 114,366 100.0 58,980 100.0
Tax at the UK corporation taxrate of 30% (2004: 30%) 34,310 30.0 17,694 30.0
Tax benefit of additional specific tax reliefs (2,845) (2.6) (3,357) (5.7)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised (268) 0.2 (22,233) (37.7)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions (155) 0.1) 59 0.1
Adjustmentsto ta>f: charge inrespect of prior years ) (408) (0.4) 5,258 8.9
Tax losses not utilised 676 0.6 -~ -
Tax expense and effective tax rate for the period 31,210 27.3 (2,579) (4.4)

62 Changingthe way the\

orid connects




Notes jto the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

9 Earnings per share
The calculations of earnings per share are based on the following data:

Earnings | ‘ 2005 2004

$'000 $'000
Earnings forthe financial period : 83,156 61,558
Number of shares

Numberofshares  Number ofshares

Weighted average number of shares:

For basic earnings per share ‘ 124,180,594 117,081,552
Effect of diluﬁve potential ordinary shares— share options 9,414,582 10,592,566
For diluted e'am}ngs per share ' 133,605,176 127,674,118
10 Goodwill

| $000

Costand cjarrying amount

At 1 January 2005 ‘ -
Recognition|on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) 52,697
At 30 December 2005 52,697

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the single cash generating unit.

The Group tcjasts goodwill annually forimpairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recover‘ab\e amount of the cash generating unit is determined from a value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the valus in use calculations
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management estimates
discount rat}‘es using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to CSR. Changes in selling

prices and direct costs are based on past pra¢tices and expectations of future changes in the market.
The calculation has been based on the most recent cash flow forecasts for the next 3 years which have been approved by management.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 12%.
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For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

11 Other intangible assets

Purchasedin process Customer contracts Assetsinthe
researchand and Software course of
development relationships licences construction Total
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Cost :
At 1 January 2004 - - 8,024 - 8,024
Additions ‘ — - 2,269 384 2,653
At 1 January 2005 | - - 10,293 384 10,677
Additions - - 8,241 2468 8,487
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 13,400 2,000 2,677 - 18,077
Disposals - - (33) - (33)
Transfers - - 473 (473) -
At 30 December 26105 13,400 2,000 21,651 157 37,208
Amortisation
At 1 January 2004 - - 2,287 - 2,287
Charge for the year| - - 2,040 - 2,040
At 1 January 2005 - - 4,327 - 4,327
Charge for the year 546 360 3,802 - 4817
Acguiredon acquisf;ition of subsidiaries - - 2,588 - 2,589
Disposals - - {33) - (33)
At 30 December 2005 546 369 10,785 ~ 11,700
Carrying amount
At 30 December 2005 12,854 1,831 10,866 157 25,508
At31 December 2004 - — 5,966 384 6,350
Leased assets included above:
Carrying amount
At 30 December 2005 - - -

At 31 December 2004

6,866

6,866

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets is included within ‘Research and development’ and 'Administrative expenses' in the income statement.
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12 Property, plant and equipment
' Assetsinthe
Test Leasehold Furniture Computer Office course of
equipment improvements andfittings equipment equipment construction Total
. $'000 3000 $'000 $'000 3000 $000 $'000
Cost
At 1 January 2004 ' 4,485 492 891 2,271 626 - 8,765
Additions 1,672 886 67 3,177 139 125 6,068
Disposals : - (356) (198) (80) (72) - (6886)
At 1 January 2005 16,157 1,022 760 5,388 893 125 14,145
Additions 9,764 1,645 935 4,670 383 - 17,297
Disposals ‘ - (180) (226) (1,108) (82) - {1,583)
Transfers - - - 125 - (125) -
Acquired oniacquisition of subsidiaries 9,313 374 121 6,349 547 - 16,704
At 30 December 2005 25,234 2,761 1,580 15,427 1,641 - 46,553
Depreciation
At 1 January[2004 12,353 130 508 2,445 483 - 5,899
Charge fortheysar 1,030 202 129 771 139 - 2,271
Disposals ’ - (269) (133) (26) (72) - {500)
At 1 January[2005 3,383 63 504 3,180 530 - 7,670
Charge for the year 2,439 258 316 1,908 72 - 4,991
Disposals - (180) (217) (1,031) (78) - (1,508)
Acquired onacquisition of subsidiaries 7,531 281 71 4,505 469 - 12,857
At 30 December 2005 13,353 422 674 8,570 393 - 24,012
Carrying amount ‘
At 30 Decerjber 2005 11,881 2,339 316 6,857 548 - 22,541
At 31 Decerriber 2004 2,774 959 256 2,198 163 125 6,475
Leased assets included above:
Carrying amount
At 30 December 2005 - - - 863 47 - 910
At 31 December 2004 - - - — — - -
At 30 December 2005, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting
to $nil (2004 $3,230,000).
13 Subsidiaries :
A list of the significant investments in subS|d|anes including the name, country of incorporation, propomon of ownership interest is givenin note 31
tothe Company 's separate financial statements.
14inventories
2005 2004
$000 $000
Raw materials 28,272 13,328
Work in progress 24,092 5,484
Finished goods 17,308 11,266
69,672 30,088
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15 Otherﬁnanciai

assets

Trade and other receivables :
2005 2004
$:000 $:000
Trade receivables | 62,540 31,783
Corporation tax 18 23
VAT 1,716 908
Other debtors ) 6,623 1,370
Prepayments and accrued income 4,380 1,868
75,287 35,952

The average credit

pericdtaken ontrade receivables is 42 days (2004: 40 days). An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts

within trade receivables of $162,000 (2004: $158,000). This allowance has been determined by reference to past default experience.

Thedirectors consi

Cash and cash eq

Cashand cashequ

The carrying amour

Treasury deposits

Treasury depasitsr

Creditrisk

4

Jer that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

uivalents
valents comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank deposits with an original maturity of threemonths or less.
t of these assets approximates their fair value.

spresent bank deposits with an original maturity of over three months.

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, treasury deposits and trade and other receivables.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances

for doubtful recelvables.

The credit riskonlig

by international cre

“u]d funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
dit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over anumber of counterparties and customers.

16 Derivative final

cial instruments

Currency derivatives

The Group utilises currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows. The instruments purchased are denominated in GBP,

DKR, SEKand JP

At the balance she:

Y,

¢t date, the total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that the Group has committed are as below:

2005
$'000

2004
$'000

Forward foreign ex

thange contracts 87,791 57,699

These arrangemen

ts are designed to address significant exchange exposures for the next 14 months (2004: 12 months) and are renewed on a revolving

basis to cover between 11 and 15 months forward.

At the balance sheet date, thefair value of the Group's currency derivatives is shown below:

Forward foreign ex

2005 2004
‘ $000 $000
change contracts f (3,828) 3,574

These amounts are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date. The fair value of currency derivatives that are
designated and efféctive as cash flow hedges amounting to ($3,828,000) (2004: $nil) has been deferredin equity.

Amounts of $590,0
inthe period.
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Notes 1;0 the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 30 Degember 2005

16 Derivati\(‘e financial instruments (continued)

Currency derivatives (continued)

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption in IFRS 1, to not restate comparative information in accordance with IAS 32 and 1AS 39.
Comparatlve‘s are stated under UK GAAP.

|

The adjustments that would arise if comparatives had been presented in accordance with 1AS 39 would be:
* Recognition of an asset or liability representing the fair value of financial instruments in issue at the balance sheet date

¢ Charge or credit to the income statement in respect of movements in the fair value of financial instruments

Movements in the fair value of financial instruments would be recorded inthe income statement as the Group did not meet all the requirements of IAS 39
inrespect of ‘hedge designation and documentation, as financial instruments were contracted for pre the date of transition to IFRS.

The Group would have besn required to disclose the amount charged or credited to the iIncome statement in respect of the movements in the fair value
of financial instruments. .

17 Deferred tax asset
] : Accelerated Share-based  Fairvalue adjustments Othertemporary
tax depreciation payment onacquisition Taxlosses differences Total
! . $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At1 Je_m uary;2004 ‘ (538) - - 71 608 141
(Crecit) charge toincome (855) 83 - 7,252 1,491 7,971
At 1 January 2005 i {1,393) 83 - 7,323 2,099 8,112
(Credit) charge toincome ! (2,597) 362 274 (7,033) 2,233 (6,761)
Charge to equity ‘ - 21,282 - ~ - 21,282
Acquisition cf subsidiaries ) - - 4,479) - - 4,479)
Exchange diiferences : - - . - - (17) (17)
At 30 December 2005 : (3,990) 21,727 (4,205) 290 i 4,315 18,137

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the net deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

2005 2004

$'000 $'000

Deferred tax|iabilities (8,195) (1,393)
Deferred tax/assets 26,332 9,505
‘ ‘ 18,137 8,112

.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of $19,130,000 (2004: $7,323,000) availabie for offset against future profits. A deferred
tax asset ha; beenrecognised inrespect of $280,000 (2004: $7,323,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset Has been recognised in respect of the
remaining $11 8,840,000 (2004: $nil) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams within certain subsidiary entities. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of $8,084,000 (2004: $nil) that will expire in 20 years, Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely,

At 30 December 2005 there was no recognised or unrecognised deferred tax liability (2004 $nif) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries,‘ as the Group has no liability to additional taxation should such amounts be remitted due to the availability

of double ta}J:ation relief.

In 2004, there was an uprovided deferred tax asset of $13,855,000 relating to unexercised share options this was not recognised because there was
insufficient sbpport inrelation to future taxable profits.
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18 Obligations uns

derfinance leases

Present value of
Minimum minimum

lease payments lease payments
2005 2004 2005 2004
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Amounts payable upder finance leases:

Within one year 3,811 580 3,806 580
Inthe second to fifth years inclusive 1,985 1,160 1,979 1,160
] 5,796 1,740 5,785 1,740
Less: future finanoécharges 11 - - —
Present value of lease obligations 5,785 1,740 5,785 1,740
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current liabilities) (3,806) (580)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1,979 1,160

ltisthe Group's policy to lease certain of its equipment under finance leases and purchase certain software licences under agreements containing

deferred payment terms. The average lease termis 2.2 years. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date, all of the agreements containing deferred
nterest free. For the period ended 30 December 2005, the average effective borrowing rate was 0.07% (2004: 0%). All leases are
nt basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

payment terms are
on afixed repaymel

Thefair value of the

Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' right over the leased assets.

19 Other ﬁnancia‘J liabilities
Trade and other payables
2005 2004
$'000 $000
Trade creditors 67,839 21,822
Other taxation and:social security 2,064 819
Other creditors 1,827 252
Accruals and deferfed income 23,860 13,010
‘ 95,590 35,803
Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for
trade purchasesis: 52 days (2004: 58 days).
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.
20 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Returns
Onerous and warranty
lease provision provisian Total
$000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2005 2,342 1,610 3,952
Charged to profit apnd loss account 21 4,918 4,939
Released inyear {1,506) - {1,508)
Utilised inyear {(701) (2,628) (3,329)
At 30 December 2005 156 3,800 4,056

Onerous lease ptowsron
The Group has provided for the discounted annomated costs of satisfying the terms of any onerous leases, less any anticipated income from subletting
the buildings. Dunrpg the year one bullding previously accounted for as an onerous contract was reoccupied and the remaining provision was released.

Itis anticipated that the provision will be used over the remaining lease terms. In 2004, $1,606,000 was shown as greater than 1 year.

Returns and wan‘ranty provision :
The Group provides for the anticipated costs associated with returns under standard warranty terms. It is anticipated that the provision will be used

overtwoyears.
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* 21 Called-up share capital

Company |
Authorised share capital
’ ; 2005 2004
‘ £'000 £'000
185,000,000 Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each — equity 185 185
7,500 ] . Deferred Shares of £0.00067 sach - non-equity — -
3 ‘ 185 185
Aliotted, called-up and fully paid:
2005 2004
$'000 $'000
127,879,155 (2004: 122,101,811) 1 Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each - equity 228 218
7,500 . Deferred Shares of £0.00067 each —non-equity ~ -
\ 228 218
Changes to share capital:
Equity sha:"es: !
5,777,344 Ordinary Shares were issued from employee option exercises between 1 January 2005 and 30 December 2005.
Consideration was $3,402,2186, at a premium of $3,391,827.
TheCompa ‘wy has one class of ordinary shares which carry ne right to fixed income.
The deferred shares have norights.
The following options and share awards over Ordinary Shares of £0.001 have been granted and were outstanding at the end ofthe year:
‘ ‘ Number of
shares subject to Exercise price
Grantdate option or share award persharef Vesting period
1 April 1899 319,026 0.00333 Syears
17 August 1989 - 25 November 1999 940,740 0.05367 Syears
24 January ngOO t0 19 February 2000 1,096,992 0.15633 5years
21 Februaryi2000 - 23 October 2000 885,834 0.50333 Syears
30 October fZOOO -9 September 2002 887,696 2.38500 Syears
30 Septemt‘}erZOOQ— 10 November 2003 731,788 1.01000 Syears
18 Novembér2003—2 February 2004 423,118 1.02500 Syears
26 February}2004 715,300 2.35000 3years
26 February 2004 172,015 2.35000 3years?
26 February‘}2004 221,800 2.00000 3years
26 February' 2004 727,985 2.00000 3years?
1 April 2004 72,000 2.37000 3years?
1 May 2004 492,152 1.88000 3years®
30June 2004 25,000 4.02000 3years?
30 September 2004 128,704 2.89400 3years®
30 Septemf er 2004 35,000 3.62500 3years?
19 March 2005 92,932 3.08000 3years®
4 April 2005 28,358 3.35000 3years?
5 May 2005 624,000 3.21000 3years?
5May 2005 217,300 0.00100 3years
5 May 2005 377,350 0.00100 3years'
1 Novembey 2005 277,290 452870 3years®
15 December 2005 22,557 0.00100 Qyears'
15 December 2005 100,000 0.00100 Syears
15 December 2005 45,114 8.93000 3years®
9,660,051
CSR pic Annual Report and Financial Statements 2005 69




hd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

21 Called-up share capital (continued)

1 These options have vestl

2 These options have vest

ng conditions based on the Company's performance against comparator companies based on TSR rankings over the vesting period.

ng conditions based on EPS growth overthe‘vestmg period.

3 These options have been issued as part of the Company's SAYE scheme.

Exercise period: Vested options and share awards are exercisable within ten years from the grant date, SAYE options are exercisable within 8§ months

ofthe vesting date.
22 Reserves
‘ Share Capital Exchange Share-based
premium  redemption Merger Hedging retranslation payment Retained
account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve garnings Total
: $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $°000
At 1 January 2005 77,769 950 61,574 - - 759 14,215 155,267
Share issues | 3,392 - - - - - - 3,392
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - — - - (47) — - 47)
Share-based payment ‘ - - - - - 2,408 - 2,408
Deferred tax beneﬁ:t on share option gains - - - - - - 21282 21,282
Current tax benefit:taken directly to equity - - - 936 - - 13,532 14,468
Loss on cash flow hedges : - — - (3,828) - - - (3,828)
Transferred toincome statement in respect of cash flow hedges - - - 711 - - - 711
Retained profitfor the year - - - - - - 83,156 83,156
At 30 December 2005 81,161 950 61,574 (2,181) (47) 3,167 132,185 276,809
Theshare premiurq account and the capital redemption reserve are not distributable. The merger reserve arose on the combination of CSR plc
and Cambridge Sificon Radio Limited. The exchange retransiation reserve arises from the revaluation of overseas subsidiaries.
23 Acquisition of subsidiaries
UbiNetics (VPT) Limited
On 18 August 2005, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of UbiNetics (VPT) Limited for a cash consideration of $48 million.
UbiNetics (VPT) Lirited is the parent company of a group of companies involved in software development. This transaction has been accounted for
by the purchase methed of accounting. 1
Fairvalue
Bookvalue adjustments Fairvalue
‘ $000 $000 $000
Net current liabilties acquired {926) - (926)
Property, plant and equipment 3,539 - 3,539
Intangible assets | - 14,000 14,000
Deferred tax onintangible assets - {4,200) (4,200)
2,613 9,800 12,413
Goodwill 36,907
Total consideration 49,320
Satisfied by:
Cash 48,000
Directly attributabl2 costs 1,320
49,320
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 48,000
Directly attri butab!je costs ' 1,320
Cashandcash eqbiva!ems acquired ‘ (1,779)
47,541
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23 Acquisition of subsidiaries {continued)

The goodwill
ofthe combi

arising on the acquisition of UbiNetics (VPT) Limited represents the value of the workforce acquired and future synergistic benefits
nation of CSR and UbiNetics technology.

PT) Limited contributed $942,000‘of revenue and aloss of $6,397,000 to the Group’s profit before tax for the period between the date

UbiNetics (Vi

of acquisitior and the balance sheet.

Ifthe acquisition of UbiNetics (VPT) Limited had been completed onthe first day of the financial year, Group revenues for the period would have been
$486,551,000 and Group profit attributable to equity holders of the parent would have been $82,875,000.

Clarity Technologies, Inc. ‘
On 15 March; 2005, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Clarity Technologies, Inc. for a cash consideration of $17.1 million. Clarity
Technologies, Inc. is a company involved in software development. This transaction has been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting.
Fairvalue
Bookvalue adustments Fairvalue
. $000 $'000 $'000
Net current zssets acquired 112 (8) 104
Property, plant and equipment ; 425 (117) 308
Intangible assets ‘ 432 1,056 1,488
Deferred tax onintangible assets I - (279) (279)
| 1 969 652 1,621
Goodwill | 15,790
Total consideration 17,411
Satisfied by: ‘
Cash 17,100
Directly attributable costs ' ) 311
: 17,411
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration i 17,100
Directly attributable costs ) 311
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ] (488)
16,923
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Clarity Technologies, Inc. represents the value of the workforce acquired and future synergistic benefits
ofthe combination of CSR and Clarity technolégy.
Clarity Technologies, Inc. contributed $1,182,000 of revenue and aloss of $1,542,000 to the Group's profit before tax for the period between the date
of acquisition and the balance sheet. :

lfthe acquisi‘

tion of Clarity Technologies, Inc. had been completed onthe first day of the financial year, Group revenues for the period would have been

$486,815,000and Group profit attributable to equity halders of the parent would have been $82,209,000.
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24 Notes to the cash flow statement

2005 2004
$000 $'000
Operating profit from continuing operations 111,936 58,457
Adjustments for: '
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,991 2,271
Amortisation of intapgible assets : 4,817 2,040
Loss ondisposal of property, plantand equipment | - 87 186
Sharerelated charges ' 2,408 700
Increase in provisions | 104 3,196
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 124,343 66,850
Increase ininventories ; (39,584) (23,208)
Increase in receivatles ; {35,553) (24,777)
Increase in payables 54,078 16,982
Cash generated by operations : 103,284 35,847
Foreign taxes paid ; ‘ (131) (20)
Repayment of research and development tax credit . - (2,495)
Receipt of researchjand development tax credit : - 576
Corporationtax ; (7,971) -
Interest paid ‘ ‘ (213) (308)
Net cash from operating activities ; 34,969 33,600

Additions to software licences during the year amounfing to $7,573,000 were purchased under staged payment plans.

Cashand cash equi‘valents (which are presented as a single class of asset on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank and other short term
highly liquid investrrients with a maturity of three months or less.

25 Operating lease arrangements

2005 2004
‘ $1000 $000
Minimum lease payinents under operating leases recognised in the income statement for the year 1,721 1,188

At the balance shee{t date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:

2005 2004
; $'000 $'000

Withinoneyear | ! 2,768 1,310
inthe second to fifth years inclusive : 8,772 8,886
After five years i 5,413 6,314
; 16,953 16,510

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and office equipment. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of 2.74 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 2.74 years.
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26 Share-based payments ‘
Global share option scheme 1
The Compan{'/ has a share option scheme for allemployees of the Group, under which share options were issued prior to fiotation, at a price based on
the most rece;nt private funding round. The vesting periodis 5 years, with 20% of options vesting 1 year after grant, then the remainder vesting in equal
quarterly instalments over the remaining 4 years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire.

Options are féﬁeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.

Flotation grant ;

Onthe Compény’s flotation in March 2004, the Company issued share options to all employees, at a price based on the share price onthe day of
flotation. The‘{/esting period is 3years, certain of these options have EPS based performance conditions attached. If the options remain unexercised
after a periodof 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.

SAYE Schemes :

The Compam‘/ operates a SAYE scheme, whereby employees are allowed to subscribe 1o amonthly savings amount for a period of 3years; atthe end of
thethree year‘ period, the employee is allowed 16 elther receive their saved amount plus interest or purchase shares in the Company at a price based on
the average snare price onthe three days prior to commencement of the SAYE scheme, discounted by 20%. These schemes are opento all employees
subjectto Inlend Revenue approved limits on total investment, and invitations are issued every six months. Employees have a period of six months

foliowing the J;onclusion ofthe scheme to exercise their option to purchase shares.

Company Sl‘\are Option Plan (CSOP) ; ‘

The Company/ has a share option scheme where option grants can be made to new starters to assist in recruitment or as part of certain staff members
annual remur%eration‘ Options are exercisable at a price equal to the average share price on the three days preceding the grant date. The vesting period
is3years, anq these options have EPS based performance conditions attached. If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the
date of grant, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.

Retention Awards 1
The Compan“/ issues certain employees with rights to purchase shares at nominal value (£0.001) as a method of staff retention. The vesting period of
these share af‘«vards is 3 years. If the share awards remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of grant, the awards expire. Awards are

forfeited if thelemployee leaves the Group before the options vest.

Performance Awards

The Company issues certain employees with rights to purchase shares at nominal value (£0.001) as a method of staff incentivisation. The vesting period
ofthese share awards is 3 years, and these awards have TSR related performance conditions attached. Ifthe share awards remain unexercised after a
period of 10yzars from the date of grant, the awards expire. Awards are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.

Detalls of the'share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

2006 2004
Number Weighted average Weighted average
, ofshare exercise price Number of exercise price
! aptions ink) share options [(af¥]
Outstanding at beginning of period : 13,767,865 0.85 13,331,364 0.41
CGranted during the period ; 1,790,335 2.27 2,682,787 2.18
Forfeited during the period (120,805) 0.99 (59,624) 1.74
Exercised duging the period j (5,777,344) 0.33 (2,186,662) 0.42
Outstanding at the end of the period 9,660,051 1.42 13,767,865 0.85
Exercisable ai the end ofthe period 4,625,634 0.67 9,749,840 0.43

The weighted average share price at the date ofexercise for share options exercised during the period was £5.91. The options outstanding at

30 December 2005 had a weighted average exercise price of £1.42, and a welghted average remaining contractuallife of 6 years. In 2005, options
were grantedion 29 March, 4 April, & May, 1 November and 15 December. The aggregate estimated fair value of the options granted on those dates
is $7,575,00Q. The weighted average fair value of these options was $4.23. In 2004, options were granted on 12 January, 26 January, 2 February,
26 February, ] April, 1 May, 30 June and 30 September. The aggregate estimated fair value of the options granted on those dates is $2,704,000.
The weighted average fair value of these options was $1.01.
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26 Share-based payments (continued)

The fair values of the share option and share award grénts were based on the following inputs:

Global share option scheme

Theinputstothe BIéck—Scho\es model are as follows:j

2005 2004

Weighted average chare price (£) - 1.025
Weighted average exercise price (%) - 1.025
Expected volatility w - 33%
Expected life i - 1.11years
Risk free rate ! - 4.62%
‘\ - 0%

Expected dividends

Expected volatility

as based onvolatility in the techMARK index over the three years prior to the date of grant as an estimate of the Company’s volatility

whenit was an unlisted Company. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best estimate, forthe effects of

non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations,

Flotation grant

The inputs to the Black-Scholes model are as follows::

‘ 2005 2004
Weighted average sfhare price (£) - 2
Weighted average exercise price (£) - 2-2.35
Expected volatility - 29%
Expected life - 3-4years
Risk free rate ~ 4.62%
Expected dividends i - 0%

Expected volatility was based on volatility in the tech MARK index over the three years prior to the date of grant as an estimate of the Company’s volatility

whenitwasan uan‘

non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

ed Company. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on management's best estimate, for the effects of

SAYE Schemes i
Theinputs to the Black-Scholes model are as follows:!

‘ 2005 2004
Weighted average share price (£) 3.83-5.66 2.00-3.62
Welghted average exercise price (£) 3.06-4.53 1.88-2.89
Expected volatility 43% 35%-47%
Expected life 3years 3years
Risk free rate 4.35%-4.73% 4.74%-4.97%
Expected dividends 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group’s share price over the period since flotation. The expected
life used in the mode! has been adjusted based cnma
behavioural considerations.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Forthe .‘5L 2 weeks ended 30 December 2005

26 Share-based payments {continued)
Company Share Option Plan (CSOP)
The inputs tothe Black-Scholes model are as follows:

2005 2004
Weighted average share price (£) ‘ 3.21-8.70 2,37~4.02
Weighted avérage exercise price (£) ) 3.21-8.93 2.37-4.02
Expected volatility ; 43% -44% 47%—-49%
Expected life] 3-4years 3.25-3.75years
Risk free rate : 4.30%-4.73% 4.74%-4.97%
Expected dividends 0% 0%

Expected voigtility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the period since fiotation, The expected
life used inthe model has been adjusted based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural considerations. The adjustments for the performance conditions are reflected inthe proportion of options anticipated to vest.

Retention award ;
The fair valug was based upon the share price onthe date of grant.

Performance Awards
The fair valuelwas based upon Monte-Carlo simulation of the performance of the 40 comparator companies included in the TSR conditions of the award.

Expected volatility for each Company was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the individual Company’s share price over the longer

of the periodifrom flotation and 3 years from the date of grant.

|

Modifications to share option grants !

On15 Deceri‘nber 2005, the performance share awards, flotation share options and CSOP awards for John Hodgson (CEQ) were modified so 100%
vested early on 28 February 2008. The incremental fair value of $637,000 will be expensed over the remaining vesting period. The incremental fair value

was measuréd based upon the share price at the date of the modification, following the acceleration of the performance period.

The Group reoogmsed total expenses of $2, 408 000 and $700,000 related to equity-settied share-based payment transactions in 2005 and
2004 respechvely

27 Related party transactions
Transactions|between the Company and its subS|d|ar\es which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed
inthis note.

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneranon of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories
specifiedin IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the audited part of the

Directors’ Rehuneratlon Reportonpages 451047.

2005 2004

. $000 $'000

Short-term employee benefits 2,622 1,929
Post-employment benefits ? 140 87
Share-based payment ' 777 130
y ; 3,539 2,146

On 19 August 2005, the Company paid John Scarisbrick (CEOQ) $90,039for 215,164 A shares in UbiNetics (VPT) Limited as part of the acquisition
of UbiNetics (VPT) Limited (see note 23) (2004: nil).
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Notesto the consolidated fina ncial statements (continued)

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

28 Explanation of'

Thisisthefirst year 1\\
The last financial sta

1January 2004.

transition to IFRS

Reconciliation of equity at 1 January 2004 (date oftransition to IFRS)

hat the Company has presented its financial statements under IFRS. The following disclosures are required in the year of transition.
tements under UK GAAP were for the year ended 31 December 2004 and the date of transition to IFRS was therefore

Effectof
UKGAAP  transttionto IFRS IFRS
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-current assets
3 Otherintangible assets - 5,737 5,737
3 Tangibleassets 8,603 (5,737) 2,866
2 Deferredtaxasset - 141 141
8,603 141, 8,744
Current assets
Inventory 6,880 - 6,880
2 Tradeand otherreceivables 14,385 (141) 14,254
4 Treasury deposits 24,263 (24,263) -
4 Cashandcashzquivalents 1,686 24,263 25,949
47,224 (141) 47,083
Total assets 58,827 - 55,827
Currentliabilities
Trade and other payables 19,476 - 19,476
Obligations under finance leases 202 - 202
5 Short-term provisions - 756 756
19,678 756 20,434
Net current as}sets 27,546 (897) 26,649
Non-currentligbilities
5 Long term provisions 756 (756) -
Total liabilities 20,434 - 20,434
Net assets 35,393 — 35,393
Effect of
UKGAAP  transitionto IFRS IFRS
Note $000 $'000 $'000
Equity
Share capital 1,000 - 1,000
Share premiumjaccount 20,107 - 20,107
Otherreserve | 325 - 325
Merger reserve | 61,574 = 01,574
1 Share-based payment reserve - 59 59
1 Retained earnings (47,613) (59) (47,672)
Total equity 35,393 - 35,393
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Notes ‘to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Forthe 52 weeks ended 30 Deg:ember 2005

28 Explanati
Notes to the

1 Share-based payment

A share-based payment reserve of $59,000 was recorded, representing the charge of $59,000 for all preceding penods

2 Deferred tax

$141,000 was reclassified from trade and other receivables to deferred tax assets.

3 Intanglble assets

At 1 January. 2004 the adoption of IFRS resulted in the reclassification of $5,737,000 of computer software as intangiole assets, mainly being

licences forC,AD tools.

4 Treasurydeposits

At 1 January

5 Provisions

ion of transition to IFRS {continued)
reconciliation of equity at 1 Jénuary 2004

2004, the adoption of IFRS resulted in the reclassification of $24,263,000 as cash and cash equivalents.

Under IFRS, provisions should be split between shorter than one year and greater than one year. At 1 January 2004, this resulted inthe reclassification
of $756,000it0 provisions less than one year.
Reconciliation of equity at 31 December 2004 (date of last UK GAAP financial statements)
| UKGAAP transition?;e\?;sf FRS
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-cuirentassets
3 Otherintangiole assets - 6,350 6,350
3 Tangbleassets 12,825 (6,350) 6,475
2 Deferreditax asset : - 8,112 8,112
12,825 8,112 20,937
Currentassets
Inventory 30,088 - 30,088
2 Tradeand other receivables 43,981 (8,029) 35,9852
4 Treasury'deposits 108,167 (73,167) 35,000
4 Cashandcashequivalents 1,907 73,167 75,074
‘ 184,143 (8,029) 176,114
Total assets 196,968 83 197,051
Current\liabilities
5, 6 Trade and other payables 36,454 (651) 35,803
5 Taxliabiliies - 71 71
6 Obligations underfinance leases - 580 580
7 Short-tefm provisions - 2,348 2,346
36,454 2,346 38,800
Net current assets 147,689 (10,375) 137,314
1
Non-cunjrent liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 1,160 - 1,180
7 Longterm provisions 3,952 (2,346) 1,608
| 5112 (2,346) 2,766
Total liabilities 41,566 - 41,566
Netasseéts 155,402 83 155,485
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Notesto ﬂpe consolidated fﬁna ncial statements (continued)

Forthe 52 wéeks ended 30 December 2005

28 Explanation of transition to IFRS {continued)

Effect of

. UKGAAP  transitiontoIFRS IFRS

Note ; $000 $000 $000
Equity ,

Share capital | ‘ 218 - 218

Share premiumiaccount ] 77,769 - 77,769

Capital redemption reserve 1 950 - 950

Merger reserve| 61,574 - 61,574

i Share-based payment reserve ‘ - 759 759

1,2 Retained earnings % 14,891 (676) 14,215

Total equity | ‘ 155,402 83 155,485

Notes to the reconciliation of equity at 31 Decerﬁber 2004

1 Share-based payment
Ashare-based payment reserve of $759,000 was reoorded representing the charge of $700,000 for 2004 and a charge of $59,000
for all preceding periods. ‘

2 Deferredtax '
The deferred tax as‘set was increased by $83,000 bemg the additional taxation benefit in the year from the recording of share-based payment
charges under JFRQ 2.

\

$8,029,000 wasg reclassified from trade and other reoéivables to deferred tax assets.

3 Intangible assets

At 31 December 2094 the adoption of IFRS resulted in the reclassification of $6,350,000 of computer software as intangible assets,
mainly being licences for CAD tools.

4 Treasury deposnts '
At 31 December 2004 the adoption of IFRS resulted i |n the reclassification of $73,167,000 as cash and cash equivalents.

5 Taxliabilities '
Tax liabilities are shcwn separately on the face of the balance sheet, this resulted in the reclassification of $71,000 from trade and other payables
totax liabilties. ‘

6 Financeleases !
Liabilities related to the purchase of intangible licences under payment plans have been reclassified as finance leases.

7 Provisions | !
Under IFRS, provisions should be split between shorter than one year and greater than one year. At 31 December 2004, this resulted inthe
reclassification of $2,346,000 to provisions less than one year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

|

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

28 Explana%ion of transition to IFRS (contihued}
Reconciliation of profit for 2004

Effect of
UKGAAP  transitionto!FRS IFRS
Note £000 $000 $'000
Revenus 253,146 - 253,146
1 Costofsales (134,721) (42) (134,763)
1 Gross profit 118,425 (42) 118,383
1 Researchand development ‘ (27,281) (302) (27,583)
1 Salesandmarketing | {20,710) (154) (20,864)
1 Administrative expenses (11,702 223 (11,479
1 Operating profit 58,732 (275) 58,457
Investmentincome 1,213 - 1,213
Finance costs (690) - (690)
Profitbefore tax 59,255 (275) 58,980
2 Tax 2,496 83 2,579
Profitfor the period 61,751 (192) 61,559
Earnings per share $ $
Basic 0.53 0.563
Diluted | 0.48 0.48

Notes to the reconciliation of profit for 2004

1 Share-based payment

Acharge of $700,000 was recognised in respect of share options falling within the scope of IFRS 2, this was allocated between cost of sales,

research and development, sales and marketing and administrative expenses inline with staff costs.

Acredit of $425,000 was recorded in respect ofthe reversal of the UITF 1 7 share related charge, previously recognised under UK GAAP,
as this transaction fell outside the scope of IFRS 2. This was allocated between sales and marketing and administrative expenses.

2 Deferrei‘i tax ‘
In accordancs with IFRS 2, an increase of $83,000 was made to the tax credit, being 30% of the charge above.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

28 Explanation of transitionto IFRS {continued)
Reconciliation of the cash flow statement for 2004

Effect of
UKGAAP  transitiontoIFRS IFRS

Note $000 $'000 $'000

Net cash fronﬁ operating activities 33,600 - 33,600

Investing activities

Interest received 1,213 - 1,213
3 Purchaseof treésury deposits (83,904) 48,904 (35,000)
1,2 Purchases ofpﬂ'operty, plant and equipment (7,624) 2,797 4,827)
1 Purchases ofintangible assets - (2,417) (2,417)

Net cash used in investing activities (90,315) 49,284 {41,031)

Financing activities

Dividends paid (325) - (325)

Redemption of preference shares (10,864) - (10,864)
2 Repayment of @bligations under financeleases ' - (202) (380) (582)

Proceeds on issue of share capital ‘ 74,510 - 74,510

Share capital issue costs (5,531) - (5,531)

Net cash from financing activities 57,588 (380) 57,208
3 Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 873 48,904 49,777
3 Cashand casilequivalents at beginning of period 1,686 24,263 25,949

Effect of foreigniexchange rate changes (652) - (652)
3 Cashand cashequivalents at end of period 1,907 73,167 75,074

Notes to the recohciliation ofthe cash flow for 2b04

1 Intangible ass.‘J

ets

At 31 December 2004, the adoption of IFRS resulted inthe reclassification of the purchase of $2,417,000 of computer software as intangible assets,

mainly being licences for CAD tools.

\

2 Finance Ieasets j
Liabilities related to the purchase of intangible licences under payment plans have been reclassified as finance leases.

1

3 Treasury deposrts
At 31 December 2004 the adoption of IFRS resulted inthe reclassification of $73,1 67,000 as cash and cash equivalents

(1January 2004: $2

80 Changing the way the wo

4,263,000).

id connects




Notesto the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 30 Depember 2005 '

28 Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued)
Reconciliation of the notes to the cash flow for 2004

Effect of
transition
UKGAAP toIFRS IFRS
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
1 Operating profit . : 58,732 (275) 58,457
Adjustments for:
2 Amortise‘}ti;on ofintangible assets - 2,040 2,040
2 Depreciétion of property, plant and equipment 4,311 (2,040) 2,271
Loss on property, plant and equipment ; 186 - 186
1 Sharerelated charge ‘ : 425 275 700
Increaseln provisions 3,196 — 3,196
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 66,850 - 66,850
Increase’n inventories : (23,208) - (23,208)
!ncrease?in receivables (24,777) - (24,777)
Decrease in payables ‘ 16,982 - 16,982
Cash generated by operations : 35,847 ~ 35,847
Foreigntax ! ‘ (20) - (20)
Repaymént of Research and Development tax credit (2,495) - (2,495)
Receipt of Research and Development tax credit 576 - 576
interest paid ‘ (308) - - {308)
Net cash from operating activities 33,600 - 33,600

Notes to the reconciliation of the notes to ihe cash flow for 2004

1 Share-bgsed payment ;
A charge of $700,000 was recognised in respect of share options falling within the scope of IFRS 2, this was allocated between cost of sales,

research and\development, sales and marketing and administrative expenses in line with staff costs.

A credit of $425,000 was recorded in respect of the reversal of the UITF 17 share related charge, previously recognised under UK GAAP,
as this transaction fell outside the scope of IFRS 2. This was allocated between sales and marketing and administrative expenses.

2 Intangible assets ‘
At 31 Decemper 2004, the adoption of IFRS resulted in the reclassification of $6,350,000.0f computer software as intangible assets
(1 January 2004: $5,737,000), mainly being licences for CAD tools,
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Company

statement ofchénges in shareholders’ equity

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

Notes 2008 2004

: $:000 $'000
At beginning of period 80,612 21,595
Profit for the period 23 425
lssue of share capital 21 3,402 74,553
Share issue costs | - (5,531)
Share-based payments 2,408 759
Redemption of redeemable preference shares - (11,189)
Atend ofperiod | 86,445 80,612
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Company balance sheet

30 December 2005

300ecember 2005 31 December 2004

Notes $'000 $'000

Non-currentassets
Investments| 31 50,311 991
Current assets
Otherreceivables 32 478 736
Treasury deposits 32 25,000 35,000
Cashand cash eguivalents 32 40,716 43,906

] 66,194 79,642
Total assets; 116,505 80,633

!
Current liabjlities
Tradeand otfher payables 33 30,0680 21
Net current assets 36,134 79,621
Net assets 86,445 80,612
Equity
Share capital 21 228 218
Share premium account 22 81,161 77,769
Capital rederpption reserve 22 950 850
Share-based payment reserve 22 3,167 759
Retained eanHJngs 34 939 316
Total equity 86,445 80,612

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue.

(olliaon.

Glenn Collinson
28 February 2006

They were signed on its behalf by:

l
Paul Goodridge
28 February 2008
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Compa ny cashflow statement

Forthe 52 w

seks ended 30 December 2005

‘ 2005 2004
: Notes $000 $'000
Net cash from operating activities 35 29,690 8,429
Investing activities
Interest received 1,593 865
Sale (purchase) of treasury deposits 10,000 (35,000)
Acquisition of subsidiary 23 (47,541) —
Net cash usedin investing activities (35,948) (34,135)
Financing activities
Dividendspaid | - (325)
Redemption of red%aemable preference shares - (10,864)
Proceeds onissue bf share capital 3,435 74,510
Share capital issus'costs - (6,531)
Net cash from financing activities 3,435 57,790
Net (decrease)increasein cash and cash equivélenté (2,823) 32,084
Cash and cash equivalents atbeginning of period 43,906 11,040
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (367) 782
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 40,716 43,806
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Notestothe Company financial statements

For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

29 Significant accounting policies

The separaté financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985. As permitted by that Act,
the separate ‘financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Thefinancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those

setoutin noti 2 tothe consolidated financial statements.

30 Profit attributable to CSR plc

The profit forthe financial year dealt with in the financial statements of the parent Company, CSR pic, was $23,000 (2004: $425,000).
As permitted|by s230 of the Companies Act 1985, no separate income statement is presented in respect of the parent Company.

Profitis stated after charging:

2005 2004
$'000 $'000
Net foreign exchange losses 367 782
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services 48 10
The Company had no employees during 2005 (2004: ni).
31 Subsidiaries :
Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 30 December 2005 are as follows:
Place of Proportionof Proportion of
incorporation ownership voting power Methodusedto
(or registration) interest held account for
Name and operation % % investment
Direct ownership
Cambridge Silicon Radio Limited UK 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics VP Uimited (note 23) UK 100 100 Acguisition
Indirect ownership
Cambridge Sjlicon Radio Inc. USA 100 100 Acquisition
CSRkk Japan 100 100 Acquisition
CSR Korea Limited Korea 100 100 Acquisition
CSR Sweder| AB Sweden 100 100 Acquisition
Cambridge Silicon Radio Sarl France 100 100 Acquisition
Cambridge Silicon Radio (UK) Limited UK 100 100 Acquisition
Cambridge Silicon Radic Holdings Inc Delaware 100 100 Acquisition
Clarity Technologies, Inc. (note 23) Michigan 100 100 Acquiisition
CSR{India) Private Limited India 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics Witeless Technologies (Shenzen) Limited China 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics (Cayman Islands) Ltd Cayman Islands 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100 100 Acguisition
UbiNetics(Nérth America) Inc. USA 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics Taiwan Limited Talwan 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics ({P)|Limited UK 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics 3G|Limited UK 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics Module Limited UK 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics Technology Limited UK 100 100 Acquisition
UbiNetics Designs Limited UK 100 100 Agguisition
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Notes to the Company financial statements (continued)

Forthe 52 w}eeks ended 30 December 2005

32 Other financia‘l assets
Otherreceivables
2005 2004
$'000 $'000
Amounts receivablé from subsidiary undertakings - 12
VAT - 368
Other debtors 181 158
Prepayments and accrued income 297 197
‘ 478 736

The directors consider that the carrying amount of othei’ receivables approximates their fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cashandcash eqdiva!ents comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Treasury depositi;

Treasury deposits represent bank deposits withan origina\ maturity of over three months.

33 Other financiai liabilities
Trade and other payables

‘ 2005 2004
$'000 $'000
Trade creditors - 12
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 29,893 -
Other taxation and 50cial security 167 9
30,080 21

accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken

Trade creditorsand
fortrade purchases is 30 days.
34 Reserves

Retained earnings

$'000

Balance at 1 Januaiy 2004 . 491
Net profit for the year ﬁ 425
Balance at 1 January 2005 I 916
Net profit for the year 23
Balance at 30 December 2005 939

The movements orithe other reserves are disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notesto the Company financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

35 Notes tothe cash flow statement

2005 2004
‘ $'000 $'000
Operating loss from continuing operations {1,488) (1,222)
Adjustments for:
Share relatejc‘;rcharge ; 2,408 700
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 920 (522)
Decrease inteceivables 511 9,002
Increase (decrease) in payables 28,261 (49)
Cash generated by operations ‘ 29,692 8,431
Interest paid " @) )
Net cash frdm operating activities 29,690 8,429

Cashand Ca,‘sh equivalents (which are presented as a single class of asset on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank and other short
term highly liguid investments with a maturity ofthree months orless.

|

36 Explanat‘ion of transition to IFRS
Thisisthe ﬁrs‘t year thatthe Company has presented its financial statements under IFRS. The following disclosures are required in the year of transition.
Thelast finanpial statements under UK GAAP werefor the year ended 31 December 2004 and the date of transition to IFRS was therefore

1 January 2004,
Reconciliation of equity at 1 January 2004 (date of transition to IFRS)

Effect of
‘ UKGAAP  transitiontoIFRS IFRS
Note $000 $'000 $000
Non-current assets |
Investments ‘ 991 - 991
Currentassets '~
1 Otherreceivables 9,634 59 9,693
2 Treasury deposits 10,314 (10,314) -
2 Cashand cashequivalents ‘ 726 10,314 11,040
| " 20,674 59 20,733
Total assets ‘ 21,665 59 21,724
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables ‘ 70 - 70
Net current assets 20,604 59 20,663
Netassets 21,585 59 21,654
Equity | ‘
Share capital ‘ 1,000 - 1,000
Share premium account 20,107 - 20,107
1 Share-based payment reserve g - 59 59
Retained 2arnings 488 - 488
Total equity 21,595 - 59 21,654

Notes to the reconciliation of equity at1 Jahuary 2004

1 Share-based payment
A share-based payment reserve of $59,000 was recorded, representing the charge of $59,000 for all preceding periods, this charge related
to employees bofother Group companies and was recharged to the trading company Cambridge Silicon Radio Limited.
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Notes to the Company financial statements (continued)

For the 52 we

36 Explanation of

eks ended 30 December 2005

transition to IFRS (continuedy),

Notes to the reconciliation of equity at 1 January 2004 (continued)

2 Treasury deposnts
At 1 January 2004, the adoption of IFRS resultedin the reclassification of $10,314,000 as cash and cash equivalents.

Reconciliation of

equity at 31 December 2004 (date of last UK GAAP financial statements)

Effectof

1 Share-based

payment

UKGAAP transition to IFRS IFRS
Note $'000 $'000 $000
Non-current assets
Investments 991 - 991
Current assets
1 Otherreceivables 724 12 736
2 Treasury deposi:ts 78,906 (43,906) 35,000
2 Cashandcash équivalents - 43,906 43,906
] 79,630 12 79,642
Total assets 80,621 12 80,633
]
Currentliabilities
1 Tradeand otheripayables 683 (662) 21
Net current as&ets 78,947 874 79,621
Netassets 79,938 674 80,612
Equity
Share capital 218 - 218
Share premium account 77,769 - 77,769
Capital redemption reserve 950 - 950
1 Share-based pa]yment reserve - 759 759
Retained earnings 1,001 . (85) 916
Total equity 79,938 674 80,612
" Notes to the reconciliation of equity at 31 December 2004

Ashare-based payriﬂent reserve of $759,000 was recorded, representing the charge of $700,000 for 2004 and a charge of $59,000 for all preceding

periods, this charge re

2 Treasury deposnts
At 31 December 20:)4 the adoption of IFRS resu!ted in the reclassification of $4 3,906,000 as cash and cash equivalents (1 January 2004: $10,314,000).
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Notesto the Company financial statements (continued)

Forthe 52 weeks ended 30 December 2005

36 Explanation of transition to IFRS (continued)
Reconciliation of the cash flow statement for 2004

Effect of
UKGAAP  transitiontoIFRS IFRS
Note $'000 $'000 $000
Net cas:h from operating activities 8,429 - 8,429
Investing activities
Interest received 865 - 865
1 Purchase of treasury deposits (68,592) 33,592 (35,000)
1 Netcashusedininvesting activities 67,727) 33,592 (34,135)
Financing activities ’
Dividends paid (325) - (325)
Redempgtion of preference shares (10,864) - (10,854)
Proceeds on issue of share capttal 74,510 - 74,510
Share capital issue costs (5,531) - (5,531)
Net cash from financing activities 57,790 - 57,790
1 Net(decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,508) 33,592 32,084
1 Cash aﬁxd cash equivalents at beginning of period 726 10,314 11,040
Effect offo reign exchange rate changes 782 - 782
1 Cash ar.\gd cash equivalents atend of period - 43,906. 43,908

Notesto thc}: reconciliation of the cash flow for 2004
1 Treasury deposits i

At 31 Decenj‘ber 2004, the adoption of IFRS resulted inthe reclassification of $43,906,000 as cash and cash equivalents (1 January 2004: $10,314,000).

Reconciliation of the notes to the cash flow for 2004

Effect of
UKGAAP  transition toIFRS IFRS
Note : $'000 $'000 $'000
1 Operating loss i (1,562) 340 {(1,222)
1 |
Adjustments for: :
1 Sharerelated charge ‘ 340 360 700
Operatih_g cash flows before movements in working capital (1,222) 700 (522)
1 Decreass in receivables 9,040 (38) 9,002
1 Increase|(decrease) in payables 613 (662) {49)
Cash generated by operations 8,431 - 8,431
Interest paid 2) - )
Net cash from operating activities 8,429 - 8,429

Notes to the reconciliation of the notes to the cash flow for 2004

1 Share-bpsed payment

Acharge of $JVOO,OOO was recognised in respect of share options falling within the scope of IFRS 2, this charge related to employees of other

Group companies and was recharged to the trading company Cambridge Silicon Radio Limited.

A credit of $426,000 was recorded in respect of the reversal of the UITF 17 share related charge, previously recognised under UK GAAP, as this

transaction fell outside the scope of IFRS 2. This was allocated between sales and marketing and administrative expenses. Of thig charge, $85,000

had been reciﬁarged toanother Group company.
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Five yearsummary

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Results
Turnover 16,979 27,682 67,622 253,148 486,531
Operating {loss) profit (22,412) (15,343) (2,407) 58,457 111,936
(Loss) profit on ordinary activities before taxation (21,497) (15,175) (1,616) 58,980 114,366
Taxation | 827 1,123 4,540 1,579 (31,210)
(Loss) profit for the financial year (20,670) (14,052) 2,924 61,559 83,156
Assets employeé}
Nor-current assets 7,686 6,530 8,603 20,937 118,883
Net current assets] ' 21,808 25,678 27,546 137,314 160,133
Creditors: Amount.'ﬁ; falling due after more than one year (2,846) (202) ~ (1,160) (1,979)
Long term provisions | 277) (£64) (756) (1,606) -
Net assets 26,371 31,542 35,393 155,485 277,037
Key statistics $ $ $ $ 3
Earnings per share (0.26) 17) 0.03 0.53 0.67
Diluted earnings pershare (0.26) 17) 0.03 0.48 0.62

The amounts disclésed for 2003 and earlier periods are stated onthe basis of UK GAAP because it is not practicable to restate amounts for periods

priortothe date oft(ansition to IFRS. The principal differences between UK GAAP and IFRS are explained in note 28 to the financial statements which

provides an explanation of the transitionto IFRS.
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Glossaryofindustryterms

analogue: acontinuous representation of phenomenain
terms of points along a scale, each point merging impearceptibly
into the next; anatogue signals vary continuously over arange of
values; real world phenormena, such as sound, lightand touch,
areanalogue

application software: software that is written specifically

to address areal-world problem or task

baseband processor: that part of a chip whichis designed
taimplementinadigital fq rmat the algarithms, protocals and
logic required to implement, for example, astandard such as
the Bluetooth wireless standard

bit: aunit of infarmation; 2 computational quantity that can
take one of two values, su‘ch astrueandfalseorOand 1, also
the smaltest unit of storage sufficient to hold one bit, kbt or Mbt

Bluetooth protocol stack: the communications software
which is required together with the baseband processor and
other subsystems, toimplement the Bluetooth standard

Bluetooth qualified: certified by one of a number of
organisations approved by the SIG as mesting the Biuetooth
specification and ‘Bluetocth qualified products’ argend products
andmodules which are Bllistooth qualifisd

Bluetooth specificatior;: the specification determined by the
SIG which defines the parameters which a device providing a
Bluetooth system must mlaet; different versions ofthe Bluetooth
specification are designated vi.0,vi.1, vi.2andv2.0

CAD: Computer Aided Design: ageneral termreferring
to software applications and the method of designing things
using acomputer

CMOS: Complermentary l“AetaJ Oxide Semiconductor
technology: asemicondu?ior process technology that uses
planar transistors to make chips that consume relatively low

power and permit a high level of integration

codec: anacronymfor coper/decoder: codecs are integrated
cireuits or chips thatinclude analogue-to-digital conversion and
digital-to-analogue conversion onasingle chip

chip: short for amicrochip; semiconductor device or
integrated circuit

communications protoi?ol stack: communications
software, whichis mquireq, together with the baseband
processor and other subsystems, toimplement awireless

communications standarg

converged phones: ph_opes capable of switching between
fixed broadband and wireless telecommunications networks
zutomatically without interruption in the reception or transmission
ofvoice ordata

CSP: Chip-Scate Package: a ssmiconductor package whichiis
2s smallas the semiconductor chipandis used for small firm factor
applications such as mabile phones, PDAs and wireless devices

customer applications software: software thatis not generic
and whichis written to specifically address a customer-defined
problem or task

DSP: Digital Sigral Procegsor; adevice which enables computer
manipulation using processing elements or stored programs of
analogue signals which have been sampled and converted to
digital form

designwin: CSR records;xdeggn winwhen a product using
aneofits ICs becomes Blu?tooth qualified

die: another word for chip; Pﬁen usedtorefertothe ‘chips’ whilst
they are stitanintegral part of the silicon 'wafer’ orwhere they

have been cut fromthe ‘wafer’ but are, as yet, unpackaged

digital: the representation of data by a series of bits or discrete
valuessuchasOsandis |

dongle: anelectronic devic‘;e that is usually pluggedinto the
USB port of a computerin ﬂ)rderto provide added functionality
EDR (EnhancedData Ra‘te) An extension of the Biuetooth
standard enabling faster ccmmunication of larger files (pictures,
videos and music) bya rate}of upto3times

embedded solution: a system in which all processing is carried
out on-chip without the need for an externat host processor
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end products: products produced by a product manufacturer
wplch arein their final formand ready for the user, examples
include PCs and mobile phones

fab: short for silicon fabrication facility, manufacturing plant

or foundry

fabless: shortfor fabricationless, a business model used inthe
sermiconductor industry, where the manufacture (or fabrication)
of ICs is subcontracted to a foundry

fabless semiconductor company: Company that uses a third
party semiconductor fabrication service to manufacture siicon
chips as opposed to fabrication facilities owned directly
firmware: software which interfaces with and typically configures
and manages the hardware in a system

flash memory: electronic memory where the contents (usually
an applications program) may be programmed prior touse and
which retains its contentsirrespective of applied power
fdundry: asemiconductor manufacturer that makesintegrated
Gifeuits for third parties

GHz: giga-Hertz

GSM/GPRS: GSM (Global Syster for Mobile Communications)
the most common digital mobile standard; GPRS {General
Packet Radio Service) a digital mobile standard designed to send
and receive voice and data such as emailinformation fromthe
weband whichis ableto transmit data at higher rates than the
GSMstandard

host software: software running on the system in which the
deviceis embedded

IC orintegrated circuit: a semiconductor device consisting
of many thousands cr millions ofinterconnected transistors

and other components

|EEE: Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers

1S0: International Standards Organisation: the international
organisation responsible for developing and maintaining
worldwide standards for manufacturing, environmental
protection, computers, data communications, and many

other fields

1S0 9000: a series of international standards for quality
assurance In business practices, ratified by thelSO beginning
in 1987. Certification of IS0 9000 compliance is important for
selling many types of goods and servicesincluding
data-communications equipment and services

internet protocols: the communications protocols used
overthe internet

kbs: 1kbsisaunitof 1024 'bits’ per second

LEDs: Light Emitting Diode; a semiconductor device that

emits visible light when electrical power is suppliedtoit

Mb orMega Byte: 1024 times 1024 bytes where 1 byte
isegualto 8 ‘bits’

memaory:any device that can store datain machine-readable
format which may inciude RAM, ROM and Flash
microcontrolier: often defined as being a microprocessor
together with its memory and a means of allowing input
andoutput

microprocessor: a computer with its entire CPU contained

on ane integrated circuit

modem: A device that enables electronic equipment to transmit
and receive data over a network

motherboard: the principal printed circuit board embedded
wfthin an electronic product

MP3: afile format which compresses or ‘shrinks’ voice and music
files for transter betwesn one electronic davice to another whilst
retaining CO quality audio

ODM: or Original Design Manufacturer: a manufacturer that
designs and manufaciures equipment for another Company
who will, in turn sell this to the end-user

OEM: or Criginal Equipment Manufacturer: a manufacturer
that sells equipment toretall and wholesale outlets

PAN (Personal Area Network) a short distance wireless
network specifically designed to suppon portable and mobile
computing devices

PC: personal computer

PCM: Puise Code Modulation: a coding technique where
anelectrical signalisrepresented as digital data |

PDA: personal digital assistant: a pocket-sized

personal computer

package: the package of a semiconductor is the physical
andelectricalinterface between the chip and the systemin
whichitoperates

profile: a set of specifications defined by the SIG aimed at
facilitating communication between classes of Bluetooth-
enabled devices; examples include the headset and
hands-free profiles

protocol: amethod by which two dissimilar systems
cancommunicate

RAM:randomaccess memory

RF:radio frequency

ROM:read only memory

radio modulation: dynamic modffication of the characteristics
of aradio (electrormagnetic) wave in order to convey information

SIG: the Blustooth Special Interest Group

sampling: the process of shipping small quantities of a new

IC toacustomerinorder to allow the custorner to test the IC
inits product

semiconductor:amaterial, typically crystalline, that canbe
altered to allow electrical current to flow or not low in a pattern;
common semiconductors are silicon, germanium and gallium-
arsenide and the termis also used 10 apply 0 1Cs made from
these materials

silicon: asemiconducting material used to make wafers,
widely used inthe sermiconductor industry as the basic

rmaterial forintegrated circuits

short range: Bluetoothis principally used for communicating
overrangesof upto 10metres

sniffer: Software that is combined with hardware for monitoring
dataand voice traffic on anetwork overthe air

S0C (System on chip) Atechnology that takes allthe necessary
electronic circuits and parts for a cormnpiete system and integrates
theminto a single circuit (Silicon chip)

software stack: software required toimplement the

Bluetooth standard

transistor: the basic building biock of modern semiconductor
microelectronics; a transistor regulates current flow or voltage
Unlicensed Mobile Access (UMA - also known as GAN
Generic Access Network) is the technology that enables GEM
voice and GPRS data services to be pravided aver unficensed
radio interfaces such as Wi-Fi

USB: Universal Serial Bus: aninterface between a computer
and add-on devices

UWB: Ultra wideband, a wireless technology for fransmitting
large amounts of digital data over awide spectrum of frequency
bands with very low power for a short distance

Wi-Fi: Wi-Fi short for 'wireless fidelity’ (also known as [EEE
802.11a/b/g)isan 1155 Mbs raw radio bit rate data centric
wireless communication standard mainly used today for wireless
computer networks at home andin the office

wafer: adisc made of a semiconducting material such as
silicon, usually between 150mm{6') and 300mm (12°)in diameter,
inwhich integrated circuits are manufactured; a wafer may
contaln several thousand individual integrated circuits

wireless modem: amodem that accesses a wirsless network

yield: when used in connection with manufacturing, theratio
ofthe number of usable products tothe total number of products
onawafer
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